
1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JANUARY 04, 2021 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 21, 2020: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to five (5) minutes duration during the occasion for citizen comments and questions.  
Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration during each 
public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall be relevant to the subject for which the 
public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Final PUD Site Plan Review – N. Washington Street.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen 

comment regarding the proposed PUD Site Plan for North Washington Street at Wesley Street, parcel 
050-535-000-001-00. 
 

2. Rezoning Request – 210 Monroe Street.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 
regarding the proposed rezoning of the parcel located at 210 Monroe Street from I-1, Light Industrial 
District, to R-2, Two-Family Residential District. 

 
3. Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 34, Utilities and Services - A.  Conduct a public hearing to receive 

citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 34, Utilities and Services, Article III, 
Water, Section 34-67, Water service connections, connection charges, of the code of ordinances of 
the City of Owosso, Michigan to maintain regulatory compliance. 
 

4. Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 34, Utilities and Services - B.  Conduct a public hearing to receive 
citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to Chapter 34, Utilities and Services, Article III, 
Water, Sections 34-75 and 34-76 of the code of ordinances of the City of Owosso, Michigan to reflect 
the installation of new water meter technology. 



2 
 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Proposed Special Assessment Project – Glenwood Avenue.  Authorize Resolution No. 1 for proposed 

Special Assessment District No. 2021-02 for Glenwood Avenue from Farr Avenue to the south end for 
street resurfacing. 
 

2. Flexible Spending Account Terms Adoption. Authorize acceptance of the terms governing the Flexible 
Spending Accounts available to City employees, with an effective date of January 1, 2021. 

 
3. Purchase Authorization – WACHS Valve Turner.  Authorize the purchase of one WACHS Valve 

Turner & Trailer unit from E.H. WACHS, via National Buy Board – Local Government Purchasing 
Cooperative Contract No. 597-19, in the amount of $32,095.14 and further authorize payment to the 
vendor upon satisfactory delivery of said equipment. 
 

4. Purchase Authorization – Sign Truck.  Authorize the purchase of one 2021 Ford F550 cab and 
chassis, one VERSALIFT unit and utility service body, utilizing State of Michigan contracts 
#071B7700180 and #071B7700166 respectively, in the amount of $37,587.00 for the cab and chassis 
and $59,602.00 for the lift unit and utility service body, and further authorize payment to vendors upon 
satisfactory delivery of completed unit. 

 
5. Niche Bar & Lounge Parking Space Closure Permission.  Approve request from Niche Bar & Lounge 

for closure of four (4) parking spaces from January 5, 2021 through March 1, 2021 directly in front of 
112 North Washington Street for outdoor/shanty seating for patrons to comply with COVID restrictions 
and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1442 formalizing the request.  

 
6. Warrant No. 595.  Authorize Warrant No. 595 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Gould Law, PC Professional services- 
11/10/20-12/14/20 General $10,267.40 

 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Emergency Action Support Plan Adoption.  Consider adoption of the Emergency Action Support Plan 

for the City of Owosso. 
 

2. Policy Changes – Water and Sewer Connection Charge Policies.  Consider changes to the Water and 
Sewer Connection Charge Policies to update fees and procedures. 
 

3. Policy Changes – Miscellaneous Water Policy and Service Charges.  Consider changes to the 
Miscellaneous Water Policy and Service Charges policy to update fees and procedures. 
 

4. Pay Increase & Minimum Recommended Pay Range – General City Employees.  Consider 
authorizing a 2% pay increase for General City Employees and institute the recommended minimum 
pay range for seven of said employees according to the MML wage study. 

 
5. OHC/CCM Executive Director Contract. Consider the contract between the City of Owosso and the 

Historical Commission/Castle City Museums Board governing the duties and responsibilities of the 
executive director.  

 



3 
 

6. Downtown Revolving Loan Program Standards. Consider approval of the revised standards for the 
downtown revolving loan fund. 

 
7. Mortgage Discharge – Capitol Bowl.  Authorize Agreement for Release of Mortgage as it relates to 

Capitol Bowl and further authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute appropriate documents. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Nathan Henne, City Manager. December 2020 Report. 
2. N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  November 2020 Building Department Report. 
3. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  November 2020 Code Violations Report. 
4. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  November 2020 Inspections Report. 
5. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  November 2020 Police Report. 
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  November 2020 Fire/EMS Report. 
7. Owosso Historic District Commission.  Minutes of November 18, 2020. 
8. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of December 2, 2020. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals 
with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by 
writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  
48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address 
is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   

http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING WILL BE A VIRTUAL 
MEETING 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Owosso City Council will conduct a virtual meeting January 4, 2021, 
consistent with the Open Meetings Act of the State of Michigan. 

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 
Monday, January 4, 2021 

at 7:30 p.m. 

The public may attend and participate in public comment. 
• Join Zoom Meeting:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82048890748?pwd=Rks5Nlo3V1ZVbUdrYWFoa3hhVVNOZz09

• Meeting ID:  820 4889 0748

826327 • Password:

• One tap mobile
+13126266799,,82438790516#,,,,,,0#,,309366# US (Chicago)
+16465588656,,82438790516#,,,,,,0#,,309366# US (New York)

• Dial by your location
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington D.C.)
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

• For video instructions visit:
o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ

o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY

• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on January 4, 2021 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City Clerk’s 
Office prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for individual 
Council members can be found on the City website at: http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals 
with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 
with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or 
emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 
725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.

WARNING:  According to the State Attorney General, interrupting a public meeting in Michigan with hate 
speech or profanity could result in criminal charges under several State statutes relating to Fraudulent 
Access to a Computer or Network (MCL 752.797) and/or Malicious Use of Electronics Communication (MCL 
750.540).  Per the US Attorney for Eastern Michigan, Federal charges may include disrupting a public 
meeting, computer intrusion, using a computer to commit a crime, hate crimes, fraud, or transmitting 
threatening communications.  

City of Owosso related meetings are being monitored and violations of statutes will be prosecuted. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82048890748?pwd=Rks5Nlo3V1ZVbUdrYWFoa3hhVVNOZz09
https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 12-21-2020 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF DECEMBER 21, 2020        
7:30 P.M. 

VIRTUAL MEETING 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  COUNCILMEMBER JEROME C. HABER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: COUNCILMEMBER ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 

Councilmembers Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. Haber, Daniel A. Law, 
Nicholas L. Pidek, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pidek to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 7, 2020 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 7, 2020 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Pidek and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 
Prior to the public hearings it was mentioned the link to the meeting was incorrectly directing participants 
to the January 4, 2021 meeting.  Out of an abundance of caution the Council decided to postpone all 
action on tonight’s agenda until the meeting of January 4, 2021, ensuring the confusion with the link 
would not exclude anyone from being present for the meeting.   
 
Motion by Councilmember Fear to postpone action on tonight’s agenda until the meeting of Monday, 
January 4, 2021. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, January 04, 2021 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 



Draft 2 12-21-2020 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – County Representative – term expires 06-30-2020 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2022 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
DATE: December 1, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Planning Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Set a Public Hearing for January 4, 2021 to receive citizen comment regarding the 

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay Site Plan Review for N Washington Street; 
Parcel 050-535-000-001-00 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Owosso Planning Commission recommends setting a public hearing to receive citizen comment 
regarding the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay Site Plan Review.  After which the Planning 
Commission recommends approval with the following conditions: 
 
1. That waivers are granted by the Planning Commission for front yard setbacks along Washington and 

Wesley Streets; 
2. That a waiver is granted by the Planning Commission for total lot coverage; 
3. That a waiver is granted by the Planning Commission for minimum distance between buildings to be 

allowed at less than 20-feet; 
4. That side egress on the homes have fixed porches or stairs attached to the structure; 
5. That the Master Deed require any homes to be replaced due to an act of God, be replaced by a new 

structure and not a previously used structure; 
6. That the by-laws for the condominium development strictly prohibit chain link fencing; and 
7. That all other agencies, departments and reviewing entities grant approval prior to the issuance of 

any building permits. 
NOTE: THIS DOES NOT INCLUDE THE REQUIREMENT OF TRADITIONAL DETACHED GARAGES. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regularly scheduled meeting on November 23, 
2020.  Due to Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay, a public hearing is required for the Site Plan 
Review at both the Planning Commission and City Council meetings.   
 
This parcel was recently rezoned from RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential District-Low Rise to RM-1 
Multiple-Family Residential District-Low Rise with Planned Unit Development (PUD) Overlay. 
 
The Planning Commission, after mailing notices and holding a public hearing, voted to approve the Site 
Plan Review with conditions at its regular meeting on November 23, 2020. 

CAFarr
Text Box
Item reprinted from meeting of December 7, 2020. 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

SET A PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR CITIZEN COMMENT AND REVIEW OF THE  
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) OVERLAY SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR THE  

PARCEL ON THE SW CORNER OF N. WASHINGTON & WESLEY STREETS 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a Site Plan Review from Bailey Park Homes, L3C, 
developer of the real property identified as N. Washington Street, parcel number 050-535-000-001-00 to 
develop the Washington Park Smart Homes consisting of 14 new homes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Zoning Ordinance Chapter 38 Article XVII, Section 390 (7) a. 4. And b. 
requires Public Hearings for Planned Unit Developments for both the Planning Commission and City Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, with conditions, the approval of the Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) Overlay Site Plan Review of N. Washington Street as applied; and 
 
WHEREAS, the item must now be considered by the city council and a public hearing by the council is 
required before any such final approval can be acted upon. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 

SECTION 1.  PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) OVERLAY SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR 
THE FOLLOWING: 

 
SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing is set for Monday, January 4, 2021 at 7:30 p.m. for 

the purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the site plan review. 
 
SECTION 3.  NOTICE. Council hereby directs staff to supply a public notice concerning the site plan 

review. 
 
SECTION 4. AVAILABILITY. This site plan review may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's 

office, Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This site plan review shall become effective immediately after 

passage. 

Parcel Address     Zoning Parcel number 

N. Washington Street 

RM-1 Multiple-Family Residential 
District-Low Rise with 
Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) 
Overlay 

050-535-000-001-00 

Legal Description:   COM 358' N & 33' W OF INTER S LN SEC 12 & C/L N WASH ST TH W 231' N 6' 
W 133.7' N 279' E 364.21' S 284' TO POB PART OF SE 1/4 SE 1/4 SEC 12T7N R2E 



Washington Park Smart Homes Development  Date Issued: November 6, 2020 

Issued For: Site Plan Approval Resubmission

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning, Engineering and
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Engineer
Landscape Architect / 

Environmental Services

Owosso, MI 48867

SHEET INDEX 
Cover Sheet

C1.0 Topographic Survey
C1.1 Existing Conditions Plan
C2.0 Demolition Plan (Reserve For Future)
C3.0 Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan
C4.0 Layout and Materials Plan
C4.1 Common Area Plan
C5.0 Grading Plan
C6.0 Utilities Plan
C7.0 Stormwater Management Plan
C8.0 Utility Profiles (Reserve For Future)
C9.0 Fire Safety Plan
C10.0 Site Details
C11.0 Utility Details
A1.0 Building Plans and Elevations
A1.1 Building Plans and Elevations
A1.2 Building Plans and Elevations
L1.0 Landscape Plan
L2.0 Landscape Details

Location Map
NTS

NORTH

W WESLEY DR

N
 W

A
TE

R 
ST

N
 A

D
A

M
S 

ST

N
 W

A
TE

R 
ST

N
 B

A
LL

 S
T

N
 W

A
SH

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T

E NORTH STU
S-

52

C
H

ER
RY

LA
W

N
 S

T

HICKORY MANOR DR

E WESLEY DR

VELMA DR

E NORTH DR

SOUTH TO
DOWNTOWN
OWOSSO

KIAWANIS VILLAGE DR

N WASHINGTON ST

PROJECT SITE

W NORTH ST

E NORTH ST
N

 W
A

TE
R 

ST

Surveyor

landmark@michonline.net

LANDMARK URVEYING
204 N. SHIAWASSEE ST.

OWOSSO, MI 48867
(989) 725-8725
(810) 659-1053

FAX (989) 725-2452

 Developer: Bailey Park Homes L3C 

landmark@michonline.net

LANDMARK URVEYING
Mark L. VanRaemdonck, Michigan PS 24622

CLIENT:

DATE:

SCALE: JOB NO.

204 N. SHIAWASSEE ST.
OWOSSO, MI 48867
(989) 725-8725
(810) 659-1053

FAX (989) 725-2452

CERTIFICATE OF LAND SURVEY

I hereby certify that I have surveyed and mapped the land above platted and/or described on
and that the relative positional precision of the corners identified for this survey and shown on the map are within
the limits accepted by the practice of professional surveying, and that the requirements for 1970 PA 132,
MCL 54.213 have been met.

CL WESLEY ST.

S86°59'43"E 364.21'

N
00

°2
6'

20
"W

 2
79

.0
0'

FOUND REROD
& CAP #24622

PRE
VIO

US 
SUR

VEY

JOB
 NO

. 10
363

REC
. L.

 6, 
P. 6

87

FOUND REROD
& CAP #24622

12
9.

83
'

FOUND REROD
& CAP #24622

18
.8

7'

132.40'
N86°40'07"W N87°09'09"W 231.00'

N
00

°1
5'

40
"W

6.
00

'

S0
0°

16
'2

3"
E 

28
4.

90
'

C L
 W

AS
H

IN
G

TO
N

 S
T.

N
00

°1
6'

23
"E

 3
24

.9
8'

FOUND "T" IRON

N87°06'22"W 231.08'

N
00

°1
6'

23
"W

33
,0

2'

924.62'
N87°04'47"W

SO
U

TH
EA

ST
 C

O
R

N
ER

SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

2,
 T

7N
-R

2E
FO

U
N

D
 H

AR
R

IS
O

N
 M

AR
KE

R

N87°01'00"W 1656.57'

FOUND REROD & CAPIN MONUMENT BOX

SO
U

TH
 1

/4
 C

O
R

N
ER

SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

2,
 T

7N
-R

2E

WESLEY   STREET

2.36 ACRES
(102,655 SQ. FT.)

W
A
S
H
IN
G
T
O
N
 
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED):  Commencing 358 feet North and 33 feet

West of the intersection of the South line of Section 12 and the centerline

of North Washington Street; thence West 231 feet; thence North 6 feet;

thence West 133.7 feet; thence North 279feet; thence East 364.21 feet;

thence South 284 feet to the point of beginning, part of the Southeast 

1

4

 of

the Southeast 

1

4

 of Section 12, T7N-R2E.

NOTE:  Rerods, 18" in
length, with cap #24622,
were driven at all points
marked thus:

Bailey Park Homes, L3C

March 18, 2020

1" = 100' 27516

Section 12, T7N-R2E,
Owosso Township,
Shiawassee County,
Michigan

03/11/2020

(REC. 133.7')

(R
EC

. 2
84

')
35

8.
00

'

N
00

°1
5'

40
"W

 3
24

.7
9'

33.07'

Seal



C1.0 Topographic Survey



W
O
O
D
E
D
 
A
R
E
A

1" = 20'

C1.1

Existing Conditions Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

SURVEYOR NOTES & EXISTING
CONDITIONS LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL MISS DIG (811) A
MINIMUM OF THREE WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO
START OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL INVESTIGATE EXTENT AND
LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES AND SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTION AND RESTORATION
OF SAME IF DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF
CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS.

3. CONTOUR INTERVAL SHOWN IS 1-FOOT.

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:

2.36 ACRES
(102,655 SQ. FT.)

1500 N Water St
Owosso, MI 48867
Religious Facility
Zoning - R3
Owosso Township

1450 Washington St
Zoning - R3
Single-Family Residential
Owosso Township

1500 N Water St
Zoning - R3
Single-Family Residential
Owosso Township

FIRST UNITED METHODIST CHURCH

SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

114 W North St
Single Story Office Building
Zoning - OS
Office Service

SHIAWASSEE RESD

207 W Wesley Dr
Single-Family Housing
Zoning - R2
Residential 1 & 2 Family
Owosso Township

SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

BroaaA

CvraaB

SfA

Bh

BroaaA

CvraaB

SITE SOILS INFORMATION

SITE SOILS MAP

Shiawasee County, Michigan
Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name
Bh Berville loam
BroaaA Brookston loam, dense substratum, 0 to 1 percent slopes
CvraaB Conover loam, 0 to 4 percent slopes
SfA Selfridge loamy sandy, 0 to 3 percent slopes

NO SCALE

Data from FEMA Firm: Site area is located in Zone X, area of
minimal flood hazard.
26155C01C eff. 9/29/2011

FLOOD PLAIN

RM1 with PUD Overlay

ZONING CLASSIFICATION

PROJECT
SITE

SITE ANALYSIS
-
-

-

-

DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED):  Commencing 358 feet North and
33 feet West of the intersection of the South line of Section12 and
the centerline of North Washington Street; thence West 231 feet;
thence North 6 feet; thence West 133.7 feet; thence North
279feet; thence East 364.21 feet; thence South 284 feet to the

point of beginning, part of the Southeast 14 of the Southeast 14 of
Section 12, T7N-R2E.

-

-

2.36 Acres
Mostly open field with light vegetation surrounding parts of the
property boundary.
Site is flat with a depression in the southwest corner within
property boundary.
Adjacent property located north of the site consists of a religious
facility named First United Methodist Church: Zoned - R3
Adjacent property located south of the site consists of a single
story office building named Shiawassee RESD: Zoned - OS
Adjacent properties located to the west of the site consist of
Single-Family residential housing: Zoned - R2.
Adjacent properties located to the east of the site consist of
Single-Family residential housing: Zoned - R3.

-

SEE C1.0 FOR LEGENDS AND NOTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP BANK DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=746.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=742.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=744.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=743.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=746.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE, 4' HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP BANK DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP BANK DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM CENTERLINE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM CENTERLINE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING BLOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME CATHC BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=742.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
743

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 12" CONC=741.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV E 12" BLACK TILE=740.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV W 12" BLACK TILE=738.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 12" CONCRETE=738.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV N 12" CONCRETE=

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV NE 12" ID CONCRETE=738.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV SW 12" ID CONCRETE=739.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV N 15" ID CONCRETE=737.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 15" ID CONCRETE=738.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV N 15" ID CONCRETE=739.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 15" ID CONCRETE=739.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV SW 12" GREEN DVC=739.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 8" ID BLACK TILE=739.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 12" GREEN PVC=739.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV W 14" PVC=739.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV NE 12" CONCRETE=739.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV NE 12" GREEN PVC=739.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV SE 12" CONCRETE=739.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
742.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
742.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV=745.898

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIKE IN NW FACE UTIL POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

50.0'

1" = 20'

C3.0

Soil Erosion and

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL NOTES:

C10.0
6

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

PROPOSED INLET FILTER

PROPOSED MUD TRACKING MAT

PROPOSED FILTER FABRIC FENCE

S53
MTDMB STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS
KEY SYSTEM: USED AT EVERY POINT WHERE
CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC ENTERS OR LEAVES A
CONSTRUCTION SITE.  ALL CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS POINTS ARE NEW, IF NEEDED.

MDTMB SESC LEGEND 
NOTE: SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR WRITTEN DESCRIPTION INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE.

1. ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL (SESC) RULES
AND REGULATIONS (SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL - 1994 PA 451, PART 91, AS AMENDED, MCL
324.9101 ET. SEQ.).

2. ALL EARTH CHANGES OF ONE ACRE OR MORE OR WITHIN 500 FEET OF WATERS OF THE STATE REQUIRE A SESC
PERMIT.  IF A SESC PERMIT IS REQUIRED, THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTOR (DESIGN CONSULTANT)
SHALL PREPARE AN SESC PLAN.  THE SESC PLAN SHALL ADDRESS BOTH WIND AND WATER EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION. SESC PERMIT MUST BE OBTAINED FROM SHIAWASSEE COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
DEPARTMENT.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE DESIGN CONSULTANT'S SESC PLAN IN ORDER TO PREPARE AND ISSUE FOR
APPROVAL AN "SESC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN", WHICH INDICATES THE CONTRACTOR'S INTENDED
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SESC PLAN FOR THE PROJECT, INCLUDING A SCHEDULE.

4. THE DTMB SESC PROGRAM, UPON APPROVAL OF THE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN, WILL ISSUE THE CONTRACTOR AN
"AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH EARTH CHANGE", WHICH IS TO BE POSTED AT THE JOB SITE.  THIS
DOCUMENT IS ISSUED IN LIEU OF A PERMIT FROM THE COUNTY OR OTHER LOCAL ENFORCING AGENCY.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES AS REQUIRED
BY THE PROJECT'S SESC PLAN, SESC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN, DTMB'S SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION
CONTROL GUIDEBOOK, DATED FEBRUARY 2005, AND AS DIRECTED BY THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CONTRACTOR, DTMB SESC INSPECTOR, AND / OR DTMB PROJECT DIRECTOR.  THE DTMB SESC INSPECTOR SHALL
INSPECT THE SITE WEEKLY AND AFTER SIGNIFICANT RAIN EVENTS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES PRIOR TO
OR UPON COMMENCEMENT TO EARTHWORK ACTIVITIES.

7. THE CONTRACTOR WILL PERFORM SWEEPING AS NEEDED TO REMOVE ANY SEDIMENT TRACKED OFF SITE.
FREQUENCY OF SWEEPING WILL BE BASED ON SITE CONDITIONS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR WILL PERFORM DUST CONTROL AS NEEDED BASED ON SITE CONDITIONS.  DUST CONTROL
SHOULD OCCUR ALONG THE TRAIL AND PARKING AREA AS WELL AS IN THE VICINITY OF ACCESS INTO THE SITE.

9. DISTURBED AREAS THAT WILL REMAIN IDLE DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE TEMPORARILY STABILIZED,
INCLUDING SOIL STOCKPILES, USING DTMB SESC BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AND INSPECT SESC MEASURES THROUGHOUT THE COURSE OF THE
PROJECT.,RECOMMENDED ON A DAILY BASIS.  AT A MINIMUM, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT AND
MAINTAIN SESC MEASURES ONCE A WEEK AND AFTER RAIN EVENTS.

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CORRECT NON-CONFORMING SESC MEASURES WITHIN 24 HOURS, IF WATERS OF THE
STATE ARE BEING IMPACTED OR WITHIN 48 HOURS FOR ROUTINE MAINTENANCE ITEMS.  OTHER SESC
MAINTENANCE SHALL BE COMPLETED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NEVER MORE THAN FIVE (5) DAYS AFTER
DETECTION.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE PERMANENT SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES FOR ANY DISTURBED
LAND AREA WITHIN 5 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER FINAL GRADING OR THE FINAL EARTH CHANGE HAS BEEN
COMPLETED.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN TEMPORARY CONTROL MEASURES UNTIL PERMANENT SOIL
EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE IN PLACE AND THE AREA IS STABILIZED.  .THERE WILL BE A $500/DAYFINE
AND ASSESSMENT OF ACTUAL DAMAGE.

13. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AFTER PERMANENT SOIL
EROSION MEASURES ARE IN PLACE AND THE AREA IS STABILIZED.  CARE SHALL BE TAKEN DURING REMOVAL TO
PREVENT SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION.

14. AFTER THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT, PERMANENT SESC MEASURES WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE PROPERTY
OWNER.

15. ALL WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT MUST MEET THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE
PROJECT AND COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL (SESC) RULES AND
REGULATIONS (SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL- 1994 PA 451, PART 91, AS AMENDED, MCL
324.9101 ET SEQ.) AND SPECIFIC PROVISIONS AND REGULATIONS FOR SAME WITHIN THE CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS. THE DEPARTMENT OF TECHNOLOGY, MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET, FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION,
AN AUTHORIZED PUBLIC AGENCY (APA), HAS PROMULGATED STANDARD PROCEDURES AND SPECIFICATIONS
FOR EROSION CONTROL THAT SHALL BE CONSIDERED A PART OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  SESC MEASURES
WILL BE MONITORED AND ENFORCED BY FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION THROUGH THE REVIEW OF THE
CONTRACTOR'S IMPLEMENTATION PLANS AND SITE INSPECTIONS.  FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION OR THE
PROFESSIONAL WILL NOTIFY THE CONTRACTOR IN WRITING OF ANY VIOLATION(S) OF THE APPLICABLE SESC
STATUTES AND/OR THE CORRECTIVE ACTION(S) UNDERTAKEN BY THE OWNER AND MAY ISSUE STOP WORK
ORDERS.  FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION HAS THE RIGHT TO ASSESS A FINE TO THE CONTRACTOR FOR
NONCOMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND/OR SESC REGULATIONS
APPLICABLE TO THIS WORK AND FINES SHALL BE IN ADDITION TO ANY OTHER REMEDIATION COSTS OR
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES APPLICABLE TO THE PROJECT AND MAY EXCEED THE VALUE OF THE CONTRACT.

16. PERIMETER EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN, SUCH AS SILTFENCE OR TURBIDITY CURTAIN, ARE
SCHEMATIC.  CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE ANY ADJUSTMENTS REQUIRED TO ENSURE PROPER SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENFORCING AGENCYTHE TOTAL AREA OF DISTURBANCE IS
2.63 ACRES.

17. SITE SOILS ARE AS INDICATED ON SHEET C1.1.

S53

PROPOSED LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE

C10.0
5

C10.0
4

E5
MTDMB DUST CONTROL KEY SYSTEM: FOR USE ON
CONSTRUCTION SITES, UNPAVED ROADS, ETC. TO
REDUCE DUST AND SEDIMENTATION FROM WIND AND
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES, IF NEEDED.

S51
MTDMB SILT FENCE KEY SYSTEM: USE
ADJACENT TO CRITICAL AREAS, TO PREVENT
SEDIMENT LADEN SHEET FLOW FROM ENTERING
THESE AREAS.

MTDMB PERMANENT SEEDING / SODDED KEY
SYSTEM: STABILIZATION METHOD UTILIZED ON SITES
WHERE EARTH CHANGE HAS BEEN COMPLETED
(FINAL GRADING ATTAINED)  (REFERENCE SHEET
WL-07 LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR PERMANENT SEEDING
LOCATIONS.)

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E8

E5

Sedimentation Control Plan

PROPOSED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



14.0' 14.0'

44
.6

'

CL

12
2.

0'
24

.5
'

5.0'

15.0'
10' MIN.

12.0'

8.
0'

12
2.

0'

17
.0

'
10

.0
' M

IN
.

15
.0

' M
IN

.

V
A

R
IE

S
14

.0
'-

15
.2

'

V
A

R
IE

S
9.

1'
-9

.3
'

15.0' FRONT SETBACK

30.0' REAR SETBACK

5.
0'

 S
ID

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

5.
0'

 S
ID

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

24
.0

'

V
A

R
IE

S
2.

3'
-1

8.
8'

1.0'

5.0'

20
.0

'

17
.0

'
10

.0
 M

IN
.

18
.0

'

4.
0'

1" = 20'

C4.0

Layout and Materials Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1. WASTE HAULING WILL DETERMINED ON THE INDIVIDUAL RESIDENTIAL HOME BASIS.

2. REMAINING PROJECT PERMITS:

SHIAWASSEE COUNTY - SESC

CITY OF OWOSSO  - ROAD ROW PERMITS

CITY OF OWOSSO - BUILDING PERMIT

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY HMA PAVING

PROPOSED ENGINEERED WOOD
FIBER SAFETY SURFACE

1,493 SF

1,386 SF

1,120 SF

PROPERTY SETBACK

26.67'

26.67'

26.67'

42
.0

0'
52

.0
0'

56
.0

0'

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVING
C10.0

1

C10.0
3

C10.0
2

JOINTS

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

# OF DWELLING UNITS 14

# OF BEDROOMS 42

GROSS USABLE FLOOR AREA 18,875 SF

PARKING SPACES 28

TOTAL AREA OF PAVED SURFACES SEE SHEET C7.0

TOTAL AREA OF UNPAVED SURFACES SEE SHEET C7.0

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS NOTES:
THIS SIDEWALK WILL
BE EXTENDED
ALONG THE
FRONTAGE OF THE
RESD TO NORTH
STREET BY THE
WASHINGTON PARK
DEVELOPER

PROPOSED DETECTABLE WARNING PLATE

PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY HOME
HOUSING UNIT TYPE A

PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY HOME
HOUSING UNIT TYPE B

PROPOSED SINGLE FAMILY HOME
HOUSING UNIT TYPE C

24
.0

0'

14.00'

336 SF

PROPOSED CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



15.0' FRONT SETBACK

30.0' REAR SETBACK

5.
0'

 S
ID

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

5.
0'

 S
ID

E 
SE

TB
A

C
K

1" = 20'

C4.1

Common Area Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

LAYOUT AND MATERIALS LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

PROPOSED COMMON AREA

PROPERTY SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

PROPOSED PROPERTY OWNED BY UNIT OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



45

44

43

42

42

43

44

45
46

62

+

68.47 TC
68.08 EM

68.47 FF

48.00 FF

49.50 FF

49.50 FF
49.00 FF

49.00 FF

49.00 FF

49.00 FF
48.00 FF

48.00 FF

47

47

47

47

48

49.00 FF
48.00 FF

47.00 FF
47.00 FF

49.00 FF

48

48

48

47
4747

47

47

47

48

47

46
46

46

47

46
46

46

46

46

46

45

46

46

46

4545

46

46

46

45

44

45

43

44

46

44

43

43

44
45

45
44

45
44

45

1" = 20'

C5.0

Grading Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

GRADING PLAN LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

GRADING PLAN NOTES:

EXISTING MINOR CONTOURS

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOURS

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATIONS

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR 

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

45

44

1. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION ALL WORK COMPLETED IN
CONFORMANCE WITH CURRENT ADA STANDARDS.

2. PROPOSED CONTOUR LINES AND SPOT ELEVATIONS REFLECT FINISH GRADES.
HOLD DOWN SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS ACCORDINGLY.

3. ADJUST RIM ELEVATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES AFFECTED BY WORK IN THIS CONTRACT.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE ON THE SITE.  ANY AREA THAT
APPEARS TO NOT PROPERLY DRAIN SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE
ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT/ ENGINEER FOR RESOLUTION.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

49.00 FF PROPOSED FLOOR FINISHING ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
743

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
748.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
742.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
742.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
747.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
746.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
743.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
744.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
745.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
+745.38



CO
CO

CO
CO

CO

CO
CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

CO

45

44

43

42

42

43

44

45
46

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

62

+

68.47 TC
68.08 EM

68.47 FF

48.00 FF

49.50 FF

49.50 FF
49.00 FF

49.00 FF

49.00 FF

49.00 FF
48.00 FF

48.00 FF

47

47

47

47

48

49.00 FF
48.00 FF

47.00 FF
47.00 FF

49.00 FF

48

48

48

47
4747

47

47

47

48

47

46
46

46

47

46
46

46

46

46

46

45

46

46

U
D

U
D

U
D

46

4545

46

46

46

45

44

45

43

44

46

44

43

43

44
45

45
44

45
44

45

NORTH

1" = 20'

C6.0

Utilities Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1. PROPOSED CONTOUR LINES AND SPOT ELEVATIONS REFLECT FINISH GRADES.
HOLD DOWN SUBGRADE ELEVATIONS ACCORDINGLY. ADJUST RIM
ELEVATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES AFFECTED BY WORK IN THIS CONTRACT.
CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE ON THE SITE.  ANY AREA
THAT APPEARS TO NOT PROPERLY DRAIN SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT/ ENGINEER FOR
RESOLUTION.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS, DEPTHS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  NO CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE
WILL BE AWARDED FOR ACTUAL DISCREPANCIES IN UTILITY LOCATIONS DUE
TO THE FAILURE TO VERIFY ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY HIS
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN
THAT EXISTING PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN
UP AND HAUL AWAY ALL CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS AND LITTER CAUSED BY
HIS OPERATIONS.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES FROM DAMAGE
DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY DAMAGE INCURRED SHALL BE REPAIRED AT
THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

5. ALL UTILITY CROSSINGS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF 18" VERTICAL
CLEARANCE.

UTILITIES NOTES

UTILITIES LEGEND

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PROPOSED SANITARY LINE

PROPOSED STORM LINE

PROPOSED ELECTRIC LINE

PROPOSED MANHOLE/CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED CLEANOUT

PROPOSED VALVE

PROPOSED GAS SERVICE

PROPOSED STORM FLARED END SECTION

CO

PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT

PROPOSED HYDRANT

LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE

UD UD UD PROPOSED UNDERDRAIN

FUTURE FIBER OPTIC BY OTHERS

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

STR MH 100 48" DIA.  (DOG HOUSE)
RIM 746.40
INV 12" W 739.05
EX. INV 15" S 738.95
EX. INV 15" N 738.95

42 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

74 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

200 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

STR MH 105 24" DIA.
RIM 745.50

INV 6" N 739.86
INV 12" E 739.36
INV 12" E 739.26

STR MH 120 24" DIA.
RIM 745.50

INV 6" N 740.23
INV 12" E 739.83
INV 12" E 739.73

STR OCS 125 36" DIA.
RIM 744.00

INV 12" E 740.83

12" FES 130
INV 12" E 741.33

57 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

95
 L

F 
12

" 
H

D
PE

ST
R 

@
 0

.5
0%

26 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

350 LF 8" PVC
WATERMAIN

HYDRANT

WATER SERVICE (TYP.)

SAN MH 305
RIM 746.00

INV 8" E 740.00

STR CB 135
RIM 745.50
INV 12" NE 741.56
INV 12" E 741.56
INV 12" SW 741.46 STR CB 140

RIM 746.50
INV 12" 741.85

STR CB 155
RIM 744.45

INV 8" E 742.95

90
 L

F 
12

" 
H

D
PE

ST
R 

@
 0

.5
0%

90
 L

F 
12

" 
H

D
PE

ST
R 

@
 0

.5
0%

STR CB 190
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 742.79

STR CB 150
RIM 747.50
INV 12" 742.27

STR CB 165
RIM 746.00

INV 12" SW 741.71

STR CB 170
RIM 746.50

INV 12" 741.92

STR CB 175
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 742.37

STR OCS 125 36" DIA.
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 740.83

STR OCS 125 36" DIA.
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 740.09

23 LF 6" HDPE
STR @ 1.0%

23 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

RAIN GARDEN RAIN GARDEN

RAIN GARDEN

RAIN GARDEN

30 LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

STR CB 185
RIM 747.50

INV12" 742.34

STR CB 145
RIM 746.50
INV 12" 742.06

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

42  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

STR CB 160
RIM 747.50
INV 12" 742.48

STR CB 180
RIM 746.50

INV 12" 742.13

STR CB 195
RIM 747.50

INV 12" 742.55

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

SAN MH 300 (BY OTHERS)
RIM 745.10
INV 8" W 738.33
INV 8" S  738.23

335  LF 8" PVC SAN @ 0.50%

SANITARY SEWER
(BY OTHERS)

WATERMAIN
(BY OTHERS)

HYDRANT
(BY OTHERS)

HYDRANT
(BY OTHERS)

WATERMAIN
(BY OTHERS)

HYDRANT
(BY OTHERS)

STR CB 205
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 742.79

STR CB 200
RIM 745.00

INV 12" E 742.79

12" CULVERT

12" CULVERT

12" CULVERT EXISTING CB
RIM 742.04
INV 12" SW 739.30 (CORE NEW)
INV 12" N
INV 12" NE 738.30

72  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

24  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

EXISTING CB
RIM 742.54
INV 12" SW XXX.XX (CORE NEW)
INV 12" N

20  LF 12" HDPE
STR @ 0.50%

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=742.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOME CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=743.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=746.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM ELEV=745.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE, 4' HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING BLOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"S-MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
743

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 12" CONC=741.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV E 12" BLACK TILE=740.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV W 12" BLACK TILE=738.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV S 12" CONCRETE=738.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 8" ID BLACK TILE=739.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 12" GREEN PVC=739.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV W 14" PVC=739.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV NE 12" CONCRETE=739.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV NE 12" GREEN PVC=739.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV SE 12" CONCRETE=739.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



45

44

43

42

42

43

44

45
46

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

U
D

62

47

47

47

47

48

48

48

48

47
4747

47

47

47

48

47

46
46

46

47

46
46

46

46

46

46

45

46

46

U
D

U
D

U
D

46

4545

46

46

46

45

44

45

43

44

46

44

43

43

44
45

45
44

45
44

45

1" = 20'

C7.0

Stormwater Management Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN NOTES:

IMPERVIOUS PAVEMENT & BUILDINGS

PERVIOUS OPEN SPACES

STORMWATER PIPE FLOW LINE

OVERLAND FLOW LINE

DRAINAGE AREA SUB-AREA DELINEATION LINE

LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

EXISTING  STORM SEWER

DETENTION BASIN

RAIN GARDEN C

RAIN GARDEN A RAIN GARDEN B

RAIN GARDEN D

EXISTING CONDITIONS

Type of Surface

PERVIOUS (Lawn & Landscape)

IMPERVIOUS (Pavement)

Type of Surface

PERVIOUS (Lawn & Landscape)

IMPERVIOUS (Building & Pav't)

PROPOSED CONDITIONS

Size (SF) Size (ac)

102,576 2.35

0 0

102,575 2.35

Size (SF) Size (ac)

60,782 1.40

41,793 0.96

102,575 2.35

SEMI PERVIOUS (Gravel) 0 0

SEMI PERVIOUS (Gravel) 0 0.00

WATERSHED
TOTAL AREA

(AC) % IMP
REQ. DETENTION

VOL. (CFT)
PROVIDED DETENTION

VOL. (CFT)
RELEASE

RATE (CFS)

DET. BASIN 1.58 38% 9,988 10,500 0.32

RAIN GARDEN A 0.17 43% 1,146 1,250 0.03

RAIN GARDEN B 0.17 46% 1,189 1,289 0.03

RAIN GARDEN C 0.23 47% 1,629 1,746 0.05

RAIN GARDEN D 0.20 48% 1,436 1,512 0.04

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



1" = 20'

C9.0

Fire Safety Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

FIRE SAFETY PLAN LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

250' HYDRANT COVERAGE RADIUS

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HOSE LAY PATH AND LENGTH

PROPOSED FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

14

13
12 11

10

9

FIRE HOSE LAY PATH 305'

FIRE HOSE LAY PATH 285'

FIRE HOSE LAY PATH 395'

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'



1" = 20'

C10.0

Site Details

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Concrete Pavement
NO SCALE

1

FILLER, HELD DOWN 1/2"

TO DIRECTION OF TRAVEL
FINISH PERPENDICULAR

HAND-TOOLED CONTROL JOINT

APPROVED COMPACTED SUBBASE

WITH 1/2" PREMOLDED 
TYPICAL EXPANSION JOINT

MEDIUM BROOM
CONCRETE WALK WITH

1/4 DEPTH OF SLAB

1/4"

1/4" R 1/4" R

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 D
U

TY
4"

4"

4 x 4 x W4 WWF AT CENTER OF
CONCRETE (HD ONLY)

COMPACTED AGGREGATE FOR
HEAVY DUTY AND COMPACTED
GRANULAR MATERIAL FOR
STANDARD DUTY

2

NO SCALE

HMA Pavement

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 D
U

TY

PROOF ROLL SUBGRADE

COMPACTED AGGREGATE BASE

BITUMINOUS LEVELING COURSE

TACK COAT AS SPECIFIED

BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE

8"
2"

2"

INSTALLATION DETAIL

STANDARD SYMBOL

2'-0"

ISOMETRIC VIEW

4'-0"

3'
-0

"

INLET
GRATE

1" REBAR FOR
BAG REMOVAL
FROM INLET

6

NO SCALE

Inlet Filter4

NO SCALE

Filter Fabric Fence: MDMB SESC Detail 5

NO SCALE

Stabilized Construction Access: MDMB SESC Detail 

3

SCALE: 1"=1'-0"

Engineered Wood Fiber Safety Surface

COMPACTED SUBBASE 

CONCRETE FLUSH CURB

COMPACTED ENGINEERED WOOD FIBER

WITH CONTROL AND EXPANSION
JOINTS SIM TO DETAIL 1 THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"-3" CRUSHED ROCK (8" DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 50' MINIMUM LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH OF STABILIZED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' MINIMUM LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH OF STABILIZED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. Establish stabilized construction entrance prior to the initiation of site construction activities.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. Care should be taken to prevent material movement into adjacent wetlands/waterbodies.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. Care should be taken to maintain existing roadside drainage via culvert installation, with sediment sump placed down flow of culvert.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHIGAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING 6-10' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" ANCHOR TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE POSTS DRIVEN INTO GROUND 1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC TO BE WRAPPED AROUND FENCE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC FASTENED ON UPHILL SIDE, TOWARDS EARTH DISRUPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE OF COMPACTED EARTH ON UPHILL SIDE OF FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6" ANCHOR TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHIGAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPARTMENT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S51

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL JOINT



1" = 20'

C11.0

Utility Details

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

XX

X

NO SCALE

Fire Hydrant Assembly

HYDRANT TO STAND PLUMB
(WITHIN 1" IN 6')

5 1/4" WATEROUS TVC-5
OR 6" (EJIW6-BR)
HYDRANT VALVE
OPENING AS SPECIFIED.

UNDISTURBED NATURAL SOIL
CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK

6"CL.50 D.I.P.

HYDRANT BRANCH MIN 6"
REDUCER AS REQUIRED

EXISTING MAIN

CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK

UNDISTURBED NATURAL SOIL

6" GATE VALVE
IN BOX

4'-10" MIN.

3'-0"

18
"-

24
"

5'
-6

"

XX

X

NO SCALE

Thrust Block

MINIMUM STANDARDS

FITTINGS
I.D.

INCHES

PLUG

CROSS
TEE

BENDS HYDRANT

W   H W   H W   H W   H W   H W   H

90° 45° 22 1/2° 11 1/4°

2.5
4
6
8

12
16
20
24

1
1
2
2.5
3.5
6
8
11

1
1
1.5
2
3
3.5
4
4

1
1
2
3.5
5.5
6
12
17

1
1
2
2
3
4
4
4

1
1
2
2
3.5
5
6
9

1
1
1
2
2.5
3
4
4

1
2
2
3.5
4
6

1
1
2
2.5
3
4

1
1
2
2
3
3.5

1
1
1
2
2
2

2
2.5

1.5
2

W= WIDTH IN FEET
H= HEIGHT IN FEET

H
W

NOTE:
THESE ARE MINIMUM STANDARDS
WHERE SOIL CONDITIONS DICTATE,
ADJUSTMENTS IN SIZE SHALL BE MADE
BY THE ENGINEER

REACTION BACKING: The Class "A" concrete at the Fitting face shall extend to within (2) inches of the bell and shall extend from the
fitting face a minimum of (2) feet to the UNDISTURBED SOLID GROUND.  The dimensions of the reaction backing (thrust block) at the
face of the undisturbed solid ground  shall be as shown in the Table below If there is not sufficient space for the installation of the
"thrust block" without interference with other services, a metal harness shall be used or another arrangement satisfactory to the
engineer shall be used, i.e. encasement.  When the  thrust is upwards, as in the case of vertical offsets, a metal harness shall be used
to prevent movement.

UNDISTURBED
SOLID SOIL

 

3

NO SCALE

Water Valve Box

NOTE:
RAISE CASTING TO PROPOSED
FINISH GRADE AFTER
PLACEMENT OF LEVELING
COURSE(S) AND PRIOR TO
PLACING FINAL WEARING
COURSE

LA
W

N

PA
V

EM
EN

T

FINISH ROAD GRADE

FINISH GRADE OF PROPOSED
WEARING COURSE

PAVEMENT COURSES AS SPECIFIED

STREET BASE

CLASS 'A' HIGH EARLY
STRENGTH CONCRETE PLACE
CONCRETE TO UNDISTURBED
ROAD BASE

XX

X

NO SCALE

Watermain Service

CURB BOX AS
SPECIFIED

CURB STOP AS
SPECIFIED

WATERMAIN AS SHOWN
ON PLANS

CORPORATION STOP TO BE
LOCATED AS SHOWN

TYPE K COPPER
SERVICE LINE

CAP FLUSH WITH GRADE

XX

X

NO SCALE

Sewer Cleanout

V
A

RI
ES

FLOW

LC

NEENAH CASTING R-7506-D

1.5'X 1.5' SQUARE CONCRETE
PAD IN PAVED AREAS W/ NO.4
REBAR EACH SIDE

BEND AS REQUIRED

WYE FITTING TO MATCH LEAD

PIPE, AS REQUIRED

GRADE

RISER

12" TYP.

4"

XX

X

NO SCALE

Trench Detail

EXISTING SUBGRADE

UNDER GREENBELTUNDER WALKS AND
PAVEMENT

ZONE OF 1:1 INFLUENCE

APPROVED NATIVE MATERIAL
COMPACTED TO 90%

GRANULAR MATERIAL
COMPACTED TO 98%

PIPE AS SPECIFIED

XX

X

NO SCALE

4' Diameter Catch Basin

2'
-8

" 
M

IN
IM

U
M

FRAME AND COVER AS
SPECIFIED; SET IN 1"
MORTAR

PRECAST CONCRETE
ADJ. RINGS OR BRICK

PRECAST CONCRETE
MANHOLE CONE AS
SPECIFIED

PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE
SECTIONS OR 6" CONCRETE
BLOCK AS SPECIFIED

MORTAR FILLET (TYP.)

10' MIN. LENGTHS OF 6"
WRAPPED SUBDRAIN AT
QUAARTER POINTS

ALUMINUM OR REINFORCED
POLYPROPYLENE STEPS, 16"
SPACING MAX.

PRECAST CONCRETE BASE
OR POURED-IN0-PLACE AS
SPECIFIED

6" COMPACTED GRANULAR
MATERIAL AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED EARTH

XX

X

NO SCALE

Detention Basin Outlet Structure

MDOT 6A STONE, TYP.

BOTTOM OF BASIN

3" WASHED STONE TYP. DO
NOT BLOCK OPENINGS WITH
STONE

HIGH WATER
ELEV. XXX.XX

36" DIA. CMP OVERFLOW
STRUCTURE W/ BAR GRATE.
GRATE TO HAVE #6 REBAR
@ 4" O.C., TYP.

4" THICK CONCRETE SPILLWAY
SPILLWAY ELEVATION XXX.XX

12" DIA. HDPE OUTLET PIPE

RIP-RAP CONSTRUCTED OF MIN.
6" DIA. STONE

FILTER FABRIC

CONCRETE BASE

COMPACTED GRANULAR
MATERIAL AS SPECIFIED

TREATMENT OF SLOPES
AS INDICATED

INVERT ELEVATION XXX.XX

PROVIDE X -X" DIA. HOLES AT
ELEVATION XXX.XX

XX

X

NO SCALE

4' Diameter Manhole

2'
-8

" 
M

IN
IM

U
M

PLAN VIEW

SECTIONAL PLAN A-A'

A A'

FRAME AND COVER AS
SPECIFIED SET IN 1" MORTAR

ALUMINUM OR REINFORCED
POLYPROPYLENE STEPS, 16"
SPACING MAX.

PRECAST CONCRETE
ADJ. RINGS OR BRICK

PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE
CONE AND MANHOLE SECTIONS AS
SPECIFIED

PRECAST CONE
SECTION

MANHOLE FRAME
AND COVER

MANHOLE STEPS

PRECAST CONE SECTION

FLEXIBLE AND
WATER-TIGHT JOINTS

PRECAST CONCRETE OR
POURED-IN-PLACE BASE
AS SPECIFIED

6" COMPACTED GRANULAR
MATERIAL AS SPECIFIED

UNDISTURBED EARTH

10

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

Pedestrian Inlet
C9.0

PEDESTRIAN GRATE
NYLOPLAST 1299CGP,
ROUND

12" NYLOPLAST
DRAIN BASIN
2812AG_ _X

WATERTIGHT JOINT

4" MIN. BACKFILL MEETING
ASTM D2321. BEDDING &
BACKFILL FOR SURFACE
DRAINAGE INLETS SHALL BE
PLACED & COMPACTED
UNIFORMLY IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ASTM D2321.

SUMP DEPTH VARIES,
MIN. 6". SEE PLANS.

OUTLET CONNECTION
PER PLAN



A1.0

Building Plans and Elevations

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

HOUSING UNIT TYPE A FLOOR PLAN

EXAMPLE PERSPECTIVE IMAGE

HOUSING UNIT TYPE A FRONT & REAR ELEVATIONS

EXAMPLE PERSPECTIVE IMAGE 2

HOUSING UNIT TYPE A SIDE ELEVATIONS



A1.1

Building Plans and Elevations

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

HOUSING UNIT TYPE B FLOOR PLAN

HOUSING UNIT TYPE B FRONT & REAR ELEVATIONS

HOUSING UNIT TYPE B SIDE ELEVATIONS

CARPORT CONCEPT



A1.2

Building Plans and Elevations

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

HOUSING UNIT TYPE C FLOOR PLAN

HOUSING UNIT TYPE C FRONT & REAR ELEVATIONS

HOUSING UNIT TYPE C SIDE ELEVATIONS



45

44

43

42

42

43

44

45
46

62

47

47

47

47

48

48

48

48

47
4747

47

47

47

48

47

46
46

46

47

46
46

46

46

46

46

45

46

46

46

4545

46

46

46

45

44

45

43

44

46

44

43

43

44
45

45
44

45
44

45

1" = 20'

L1.0

Landscape Plan

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

LANDSCAPE PLAN LEGEND

804020100 60

SCALE: 1" = 20'

WESLEY STREET

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES:

PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREE

PROPOSED SEEDED LAWN

EXISTING TREE

PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREE
TREE LINE

1. PROVIDE 4" TOPSOIL AND SEED ONLY IN ALL AREAS DENOTED TO BE RESTORED AS
SODDED LAWN.

2. PROVIDE 4" TOPSOIL AND SEED IN ALL AREAS DENOTED AS SEEDED LAWN.

3. ALL IMPORTED TOPSOIL SHALL BE SCREENED AND BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  PROVIDE CERTIFICATION FOR ALL
IMPORTED TOPSOIL.

4. MULCH ALL LANDSCAPE BEDS PER SPECIFICATIONS.

5. THE SITE WILL NOT BE IRRIGATED.

6. A LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WILL BE EXECUTED BY THE HOME
OWNERS' ASSOCIATION.

AR
AR

AR

AP

AP

AP

AP

UA

UA

UA

UA

UA

UA

UA

UA

PA
PA

PA
PA

PA
PA

QTY.  KEY   BOTANICAL NAME             COMMON NAME         COMMENT

3           AR       ACER RUBRUM                                          RED MAPLE
4           AP       ACER PLATANOIDES 'CRIMSON KING'       CRIMSON KING MAPLE
8           UA       ULMUS AMERICANA 'VALLEY FORGE'       VALLEY FORGE AMERICAN ELM
6           PA        PICEA ABIES                                              NORWAY SPRUCE

PROPOSED WET MEADOW SEED MIX

Andropogon gerardii
Carex comosa
Carex cristatella
Carex lurida
Carex sparganioides var. cephaloidea
Carex vulpinoidea
Elymus virginicus
Glyceria striata
Panicum virgatum
Scirpus atrovirens
Scirpus cyperinus
Spartina pectinata

MEADOW SEED MIX SCHEDULE

PERMANENT GRASSES/ SEDGES/RUSHES:

Big Bluestem
Bristly Sedge
Crested Oval-Sedge
Bottle Brush Sedge*
Rough Clustered Sedge
Brown Fox Sedge
Virginia Wild Rye
Fowl Manna Grass
Switch Grass
Dark Green Rush
Wool Grass
Prairie Cord Grass

TEMPORARY COVER:

Avena sativa
Lolium multiflorum

Common Oats
Annual Rye

FORBS:

Alisma spp.
Asclepias incarnata
Aster novae-angliae
Coreopsis tripteris
Eupatorium maculatum
Iris virginica
Liatris spicata
Lobelia cardinalis
Lobelia siphilitica
Sagittaria latifolia
Silphium terebinthinaceum
Verbena hastata
Zizia aurea

Water Plantain (Various Mix)
Swamp Milkweed
New England Aster
Tall Coreopsis
Spotted Joe-Pye Weed
Blue Flag Iris
Marsh Blazing Star
Cardinal Flower
Great Blue Lobelia
Broad-Leaf Arrowhead
Prairie Dock
Blue Vervain
Golden Alexanders

EXISTING TREE LEGENDS

PLANT SCHEDULE

PROPOSEDEXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
#207 WESLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
746

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
745

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
743

AutoCAD SHX Text
747

AutoCAD SHX Text
744

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00' PRESCRIPTIVE R.O.W. LINE



L2.0

Landscape Details

Checked:

Approved:

Drawn:

Issued forDates

535 West William, Suite 101

Planning & Engineering
Landscape Architecture

Beckett & Raeder, Inc.

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

734
734

663.2622
663.6759

ph
fx

Beckett&Raeder
RB i

Owosso, MI

Washington Park

Re-zoning Submission04.09.2020

Smart Homes Development

JC / XL

CD

CS

202014

Site Plan Approval10.12.2020

Site Plan Approval Resubmission11.06.2020

PLANTING SOIL MIX 

W
IT

H
 B

A
LL

V
A

RI
ES

1

NO SCALE

Deciduous Tree Planting - 3" Or Smaller

8"

3'
-0

"

12" 12"

ON 8" COMPACTED BASE (EX. SOIL),
SET BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL OR 

SCARIFY WALL OF PLANTING PIT

( SEE SPECIFICATIONS )

COMPACT IN 4" LIFTS.

EXISTING SUB GRADE

FINISH GRADE
SEE PLANS

3"

5'
-0

" WOOD STAKES - 2"x 2" HARDWOOD,

SET AND MAINTAIN TOP OF ROOT BALL 

ROOT BALL, REMOVE CAGE, BURLAP

EQUALLY SPACED, 2 PER TREE.

2" ABOVE FINISH GRADE

3" SHREDDED BARK MULCH (SEE SPEC.'S)

& ROPE FROM TOP OF BALL

SHOVEL CUT EDGE

3" GALV. TURNBUCKLE

(TURNBUCKLE TO EACH END OF BOLT)
(2) 12 GA. GALV. GUY WIRES 

DO NOT CUT CENTRAL LEADER

1/2" BLACK  2 PLY REINFORCED

12 GA. GALV. GUY WIRE

RUBBER HOSE

2

NO SCALE

Evergreen Tree Planting

4" SHREDDED BARK MULCH

REMOVE BURLAP, TWINE AND
CHOKER ROPE FROM TOP 1/3
OF BALL. TOP OF WIRE CAGE
TO BE CUT AND REMOVED

PLANTING MIXTURE

3" TOPSOIL SAUCER/
SHOVEL CUT EDGE

FINISH GRADE-SLOPE 
AWAY FROM TREE

2X2X30" HARDWOOD STAKES
SET 24" BELOW FINISH GRADE

UNDISTURBED SOIL OR 4"
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

SCARIFY BOTTOM OF PIT TO
4" DEPTH AND RECOMPACT.
SCARIFY WALLS OF PIT.

12"

60°

SPACED AT 120 ) 11 GA. GALV. 
WIRE AND GALV. TURNBUCKLES

GRADE BASED ON FIELD 

1/2" DIA. BLACK RUBBER HOSE
WITH GUY CABLE (3 PER TREE

2"-4" HIGHER THAN FINISH
TREE SHALL BE PLANTED

CONFIRMATION OF PERCOLATION

NEVER CUT CENTRAL LEADER.
DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES.
PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE



 
 
 

 

                   
 
  
 

   17195 Silver Parkway, #309 
   Fenton, MI  48430 

 
   

  Phone:  810-734-0000 
  Email: sprague@cibplanning.com 

 
   
 

 

November 17, 2020 
 
Planning Commission 
City of Owosso 
301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
 
Subject:  Washington Park Smart Home Site Plan Review (Second Review). Approximately 2.36 

acres at located at the intersection of Washington and Wesley at the northern end of the 
city limit. Zoned RM-1 PUD, Multi-Family Residential PUD.   

 
Attention: Mr. Brad Hissong, Building Official 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners:  
 
At your request, we have reviewed the above revised application from Bailey Park Homes to develop 2.36 
acres of the subject property utilizing PUD Standards within the Zoning Ordinance. The applicant is 
proposing to develop a 14-unit, single-family residential Planned Unit Development that would be 
permitted under the existing zoning but requires the flexibility that the PUD will be provided to meet 
certain approval requirements such as setbacks and property coverage requirements. The development 
will meet the density requirements of the RM-1 district, and the new housing to be constructed will help 
to relieve the current significant need for new, middle-income housing within the City of Owosso.  
 
The opinions in this report are based on a review of the site plan submitted by the applicant and 
conformance to ordinance standards.  Please note that the applicant and their design professionals shall 
be responsible for the accuracy and validity of information presented with the application. In reaching a 
decision on the application, the Planning Commission should consider our comments along with those 
from other staff and consultants, additional information provided by the applicant, and your own findings 
based on ordinance standards as part of your deliberation. 
 
REVIEW COMMENTS 
 
Section 36-390 of the City of Owosso Zoning Ordinance lists the submittal requirements for site plan 
review.  Based on our review of the proposal, discussions with Mr. Brad Hissong, Building Manager, and a 
visit to the site, we offer the following comments for your consideration: 
 
1. Information items.  The applicant has provided a complete detail of informational requirements; 

however, some clarification is needed on the site plan. While the property is being developed as 
a PUD Site Condominium, the plan should delineate specifically what areas of the development 
are common areas and what areas are for purchase units. The current plan identifies structure 
locations, and we are led to assume that the ownership of the unit is only from the wall-in and all 
land outside of the unit is common area. The applicant has since provided information clarifying 
which areas will be common and which areas will be owned as requested.  



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
Washington Park Smart Home Development (revised review) 
November 17, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 
2. Area and Bulk.  The proposed site was reviewed in accordance with Article 16, Schedule of 
Regulations, as described in the following table.  

 
Required Provided Comments 

Residential PUD Development    

Front Yard Building Setback (Wesley) 30 ft.  15 ft. Requires PC Waiver per PUD  

Front Yard Building Setback 
(Washington) 

20 ft. 12 ft. Requires PC Waiver per PUD 

Rear Yard Building Setback   30 ft. 83 ft. In compliance 

Maximum Building Lot Coverage 
(Impervious Surface)  

25% 40% Requires PC Waiver per PUD 

 
3. Building Design & Materials. The proposed homes have an attractive design and utilizes 
multicolor and multi-design vinyl siding with traditional windows, shutters and front porches. We will 
require as part of the PUD that side egress for the homes have fixed porches or fixed steps as part of 
the home structure per building code. Additionally, per the PUD we would highly recommend 
traditional detached garages opposed to car sheds or ports and will included that recommendation 
in any final development agreement for the property. The applicant would like to offer both car ports 
as well as a garage as an option to buyers. It is still our belief that garages should be required as a 
condition of approval to meet site plan standards for maintaining essential neighborhood 
character. 
 
Lastly, as part of the development agreement and the master deed for the condominium, we will 
require that any home which may be damaged or destroyed as an act of god (fire, storm damage or 
other) which requires replacement of an existing structure, that a new structure shall be the only 
appropriate replacement on the unit site. The applicant has agreed with this request. 
 
Further, a waiver will be required from the Planning Commission per the PUD Standards from the 
requirement buildings be separated by a minimum of 20-feet. This is a requirement typically applied 
to apartment buildings and is only a 10-foot requirement for single-family, detached units. 
 
4. Building Height. The maximum building height for the district will not be exceeded for this 
project. 
 
5. Parking Requirements. The following table lists the requirements for parking requirements for 
the proposed development. 
 

PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS Required Provided Comments 

Parking Spaces 28 28 In compliance 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
Washington Park Smart Home Development (revised review) 
November 17, 2020 
Page 3 
 

* barrier free spaces are subject to the State of Michigan Department of Labor, Construction Code Commission, Barrier Free 
Design Division regulations. 

 
6. Landscaping. A landscaping plan has been provided that meets the intent of the ordinance. 
 
7. Lighting Plan. No street lighting is proposed for this development. 

 
8. Fencing. The site plan does not indicate any fencing for the development, but we recommend if 
fencing is permitted per the condominium bylaws, that it be high quality fencing such as vinyl, wood 
or other material and that chain link fencing be prohibited. The developer will add a clause to the 
master deed prohibiting chain link fencing. 

 
9. Other Approvals. The proposed site plan must be reviewed and approved by the appropriate city 
departments, consultants, and agencies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon the above comments, we recommend approval of the Washington Park Smart Home 
Condominium Development, conditioned upon the following:   
 
1. That waivers are granted by the Planning Commission for front yard setbacks along Washington and 

Wesley Streets; 
2. That a waiver is granted by the Planning Commission for total lot coverage; 
3. That a waiver is granted by the Planning Commission for minimum distance between buildings to 

be allowed at less than 20-feet; 
4. That the Planning Commission require traditional detached garages opposed to car ports or sheds 

to preserve neighborhood character; 
5. That side egress on the homes have fixed porches or stairs attached to the structure; 
6. That the Master Deed require any homes to be replaced due to an act of God, be replaced by a new 

structure and not a previously used structure; 
7. That the by-laws for the condominium development strictly prohibit chain link fencing; and 
8. That all other agencies, departments and reviewing entities grant approval prior to the issuance of 

any building permits.  
 
If you have any further questions, please contact us at 810-734-0000. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
CIB Planning 
 
 
 
 
Justin Sprague 
Vice President  
 



 

 

initiative 

 

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 

535 West William, Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI  48103 
 
734 663.2622 ph 
734 663.6759 fx 
 
www.bria2.com 

Traverse City Office 
148 East Front Street, Suite 207 
Traverse City, MI  49684 
 
231 933.8400 ph 
231 944.1709 fx 
 
 

Petoskey Office 
113 Howard St. 
Petoskey, MI  49770 
 
231 347.2523 ph 
231 347.2524 fx 

Toledo 
419.242.3428 ph 
  
 
 

November 6, 2020 
 
Mr. Justin Sprague 
Vice President 
Community Image Builders 
17195 Silver Parkway, #309 
Fenton, MI 48430 
 
Regarding: Washington Park Smart Home Site Plan Review – Response to Comments 
 
Dear Mr. Sprague, 
  
We are in receipt of your letter to the City of Owosso Planning Commission dated October 
28, 2020 with your review comments related to the above-referenced project.  We offer 
the following response to comments  
 

1. Information Items:  Please be advised that we have added Sheet C4.1 Common 
Area Plan to our drawings, which delineates that ownership of the units is from the 
wall/foundations-in and all land outside wall/foundations is common area.   
 

2. Area and Bulk:  We are in agreement with your assessment that certain setbacks 
and lot coverage regulations require a PC Waiver. 

 
3. Building and Design Materials:   

Fixed Porches:  We are in agreement that the porches on the homes will be fixed, 
meaning constructed on a foundation and not free-standing/floating on grade.  
Front porches will be integral to the building foundation and rear porches will be 
wood decks (and wood steps) with poured concrete foundations. 
 
Carports:  The Developer intends to allow the initial buyers the option of carports or 
garages as a part of the menu of selections that buyers will be offered, which will 
impact the ultimate sale price of the unit.  We have included a plan and illustration 
of the proposed car ports and bring to your attention that an enclosed storage area 
is included in the car port design in order to address your concern that storage is 
accommodated in a manner that will not be unsightly.  However, if the Planning 
Commission does require garages per your recommendation, then the developer 
will construct such resulting in an increased base cost to each unit. 
 
Home Replacement:  Please be advised that the homes are not mobile and though 
they are manufactured offsite and shipped to the site for installation on a crawl 
space, once installed, they are permanently affixed to their foundation.  The 



 

                                                           

 

initiative 

 

Developer is willing to write language into the master deed that is consistent with 
City requirements for any other single-family home that is damaged or destroyed. 
 
Building Separation Waiver:  We agree with your suggested waiver to reduce the 
building separation dimension. 
 

4. Building Height:  Agreed. 
 

5. Parking Requirements:  Agreed. 
 

6. Landscaping:  Agreed. 
 

7. Lighting Plan:  Agreed. 
 

8. Fencing:  The Developer is not intending to provide any fencing in the initial 
development, and intends to allow the Home Owners’ Association to create rules 
and regulations related to fencing.  However, the Developer will write into the 
Master Deed that fencing shall be consistent in materials, and that chain link 
fencing will not be allowed. 

 
9. Other Approvals: We are prepared to respond and adhere to the review 

comments provided by other city departments and agencies.  Thus far, we have 
received comments from the City Engineer and the Fire Department.  The City 
Engineering comments mostly address details that will be finalized as the design 
proceeds into preparation of construction drawings.  Likewise, we are confident 
that the Fire Department’s comments will reach an agreeable conclusion.  

 
We look forward to seeing you on November 23 when the project will be before the 
Planning Commission for Site Plan Review.  Please do not hesitate to contact me should you 
have any questions or concerns. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
  
 
Christy D. Summers, PLA, ASLA, LEED AP 
Principal 
 
Encl.  Site Plan Approval Resubmission Drawings dated 11.05.2020 
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: December 1, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Nathan Henne, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request for 210 Monroe Street; Parcel 050-652-001-004-00 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Planning Commission recommends city council conduct first reading and set a public hearing for 
January 4, 2021 to receive citizen comment regarding request to rezone the parcel commonly known as 
210 Monroe Street (City owned vacant lot) from I-1, Light-Industrial to R-2, Two-Family Residential 
District. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Planning Commission, after mailing notices and holding a public hearing, voted at its regular meeting 
on November 23, 2020 to recommend rezoning the aforementioned parcel.  Further, staff recommends 
approval of this petition to rezone property as submitted, subject to the ordinance reading and public 
hearing process. 

CAFarr
Text Box
Memo reprinted from meeting of December 7, 2020.



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AMEND CHAPTER 38 ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
TO REZONE THE PARCEL AT 210 MONROE STREET  

AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Owosso received a request from City Manager Nathan 
Henne for the property identified as 210 Monroe Street, parcel number 050-652-001-004-00 to 
rezone the parcel from I-1, Light Industrial to R-2, Two-Family Residential District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission subsequently published the request and mailed notices of 
the request to surrounding property owners, held a public hearing on the request, and deliberated 
on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city staff and planning commission recommend, without reservations or 
conditions, the rezoning of 210 Monroe Street as requested; and 
 
WHEREAS, the item must now be considered by the city council and a public hearing by the 
council is required before any such ordinance amendment can be acted upon. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 

SECTION 1.    OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT. That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-
27, Zoning Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the 
official map and filed with the city clerk: 

 
    

SECTION 2.  PUBLIC HEARING. A public hearing is set for Monday, January 4, 2021 at 7:30 
p.m. for the purpose of hearing citizen comment regarding the proposed 
ordinance amendment. 

 
SECTION 3.  NOTICE. Council hereby directs staff to supply a public notice concerning the 

rezoning to a newspaper of general circulation within the city. 
 
SECTION 4. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's 

office, Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective twenty days after 

passage. 

Parcel Address     Current Zoning Amended Zoning 
210 Monroe 

Stre
et 

I-1, Light Industrial R-2, Two Family Residential 
District 

Parcel Number:  050-652-001-004-00 
LOTS 9, 10, 13, BLK 1, ALL OF BLK. 2 INCLUDING CLOSED ALLEY, PT OF 

CLOSED S. PARK ST. AL WILLIAMS 2ND ADD. 



 
 
 

 

                   
 
  
 

   17195 Silver Parkway, #309 
   Fenton, MI  48430 

 
   

  Phone:  810-734-0000 
  Email: sprague@cibplanning.com 

 
   
 

 

November 12, 2020 
 
Planning Commission 
City of Owosso 
301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
 
 
Subject: REZONING  
Location: 210 Monroe Street 
Size of Site: 2.46 acres 
Request: To rezone roughly 2.46 acres at 210 Monroe Street from I-1, Light Industrial to R-2 Two-

Family Residential. 
Applicant: City of Owosso 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners: 
 
At your request, we have reviewed the above application from the City of Owosso to rezone 2.46 acres 
from I-1, Light Industrial to R-2, Two-Family Residential. The property is currently owned by the City of 
Owosso, and the city would like to prepare the property for potential future residential development as 
outlined in the draft master plan for the city. 
 
Our comments are based on a review of the information submitted by the applicant, a site visit, meetings 
with the applicant, discussions with the Planning Commission, and conformance to the City’s Master Plan 
and Zoning Ordinance. In reaching a decision on the application, the Planning Commission should consider 
our comments along with those from other staff and consultants, relevant input from the public, 
additional information provided by the applicant, and your own findings based on ordinance standards as 
part of your deliberation and recommendation to City Council. 
 
LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
 
The subject parcel is located along the northern side of Monroe Street, adjacent to the rail line. The 
property is identified in the draft master plan as an area for development of new housing, specifically of 
the missing-middle variety which can include row-housing, townhouses, apartments or higher-density 
detached one-family residential.   
 
EXISTING LAND USE, ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE 
 

 Existing Land Use Zoning Master Plan 

Subject Site Vacant I-1 Light industrial *  Industrial 

North Industrial I-1, Light Industrial I-1, Light Industrial, General 
Commercial 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
210 Monroe Rezoning Review 
November 12, 2020 
Page 2 
 

South 
One-family residential and 
Commercial 

R-1, One-Family Residential, B-
1, Local Business (Josh’s Frogs) 

Residential 

East Industrial and Rail I-1, Light Industrial Industrial 

West Industrial and Commercial 
B-4, General Commercial and I-
1, Light Industrial 

Local business and industrial 

 *The map below is the existing zoning map for the City of Owosso 
 

 
 
PERMITTED AND SPECIAL LAND USES  
 
While the area is a mish-mash of zoning districts including R-1, R-2 Commercial and Industrial, it is 
important to consider what land uses could be utilized on these properties should the Planning 
Commission approve the rezoning -R-2, Two-Family Residential. A full list of uses is provided below; 
 
In an R-2 district, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for one (1) or 
more of the following specified uses unless otherwise provided in this chapter: 
 

(1) All uses permitted and as regulated in the one-family residential districts. The standards of the 
"schedule of regulations" applicable to the R-1 one-family residential district shall apply as 
minimum standards when one-family detached dwellings are erected; 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
210 Monroe Rezoning Review 
November 12, 2020 
Page 3 
 

 
(2) Two-family dwellings; 

 
(3) Accessory buildings and uses customarily incident to any of the above permitted uses and subject 

to the conditions of section 38-379, accessory buildings; 
 

(4) A dwelling constituting the home for not more than three (3) aged and physically handicapped 
persons provided such use is in accordance with all state and local requirements; 

 
(5) Bed and breakfast operations as a subordinate use to single-family dwelling units subject to city 

licensing provisions and a determination by the city planning commission that the applicant has 
shown proof of historic significance of the dwelling unit. In making the determination, the 
planning commission shall reference the historic criteria developed and adopted by the 
commission. 
 

(6) Family day care home, foster family group homes and foster family homes shall be permitted 
subject to the following provisions: 
 

a. For family day care homes only, a minimum of four hundred (400) square feet of usable 
outdoor play area in the rear or side yard shall be available on the premises. 

b. Such uses are duly licensed by the state department of social services or other equivalent 
public agencies authorized to license these uses. 

c. Building and lots so used shall conform to all state and local code requirements, except 
that such uses or structures shall be permitted in buildings and lots which are 
nonconforming uses or structures as defined in this chapter. 

   
DISCUSSION 
 
In considering any petition for an amendment to the official zoning map, the planning commission and 
city council shall consider the following criteria in making its findings, recommendations and decision:  
 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies, and future land use map of the City of Owosso Master Plan. 
If conditions upon which the master plan was developed (such as market factors, demographics, 
infrastructure, traffic and environmental issues) have changed significantly since the master plan 
was adopted, as determined by the city, the planning commission and council shall consider the 
consistency with recent development trends in the area.  
 
Finding – While the current future land use map identifies this area as industrial, it is important 
to highlight what is proposed in the city’s new draft master plan. The following text describes the 
intent for this area.  
 
Washington and Monroe Street - Located south of Downtown and Corunna Avenue, this 5.5-acre 
site is located in a transitional zone between commercial and industrial uses and a residential 
neighborhood to the south. The site includes multiple parcels including a city-owned property 
along the railroad corridor and the Former Grace Church, 715 S. Washington (built in 1950). The 
site is connected to public water/sewer. In the near term, the site provides an opportunity for 
infill residential. The adaptive reuse of church building for condominium development may be 
considered, however, the building does not have architectural or historical significance and could 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
210 Monroe Rezoning Review 
November 12, 2020 
Page 4 
 

be demolished as part of the redevelopment. A desirable future use for the site is single-family 
attached residential. Infill development should be compatible with the existing neighborhood 
incorporating front porches/stoops, alley access, parking in the rear, and building heights 
between 2-3 stories. Existing street trees should be preserved.   
 

 
 
It is our belief that this rezoning would significantly improve the neighborhood and would not be 
in conflict with the overall goals of the Master Plan, nor impact the intent of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
with the host of uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.  
 
Finding – This site would be compatible with the host of uses permitted under the R-2 Zoning 
Classification.  

 
3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 

property with at least one (1) use permitted under the current zoning.  
 
Finding – To our knowledge, no evidence exists showing that the applicant could not receive a 
reasonable return on investment through developing the property as industrial, however the City 
of Owosso is generally not in the position to be the developer of this property.  

 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
210 Monroe Rezoning Review 
November 12, 2020 
Page 5 
 

4. The compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values.  
 
Finding – It is our belief that land uses within the R-2 district are more compatible with this site 
and its location to the neighborhood to the south than if the site were to be developed as 
industrial. 

 
5. The capacity of the city's infrastructure and services sufficient to accommodate the uses 

permitted in the requested district without compromising the "health, safety, and welfare."  
 

Finding – There should be no issues with existing infrastructure being able to accommodate and 
service this site.  

 
6. The apparent demand for the types of uses permitted in the requested zoning district in relation 

to the amount of land currently zoned and available to accommodate the demand.  
 

Finding – We find that there is high demand for new housing throughout the City of Owosso and 
surrounding areas. While there is no imminent development proposed for this site, the city is 
positioning itself to have vacant, city-owned property available for redevelopment as 
opportunities present themselves. 
 

7. The request has not previously been submitted within the past one (1) year, unless conditions 
have changed, or new information has been provided.  

 
Finding – This application has not been previously before the City.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon the above comments, we recommend approval of the rezoning request for 210 based on 
the following items; 
 

1. That the request is not in overwhelming conflict with the Master Plan or the Zoning Ordinance; 
2. The site is compatible with uses in the proposed R-2 Zoning District;  
3. The applicant is not rezoning to increase the return on investment of the property; 
4. That the Planning Commission understands that the proposed use may be more compatible with 

surrounding land uses; 
5. Infrastructure to the site is appropriate for the proposed use; and 
6. The request has not been previously submitted to the City for consideration. 

 
We look forward to discussing this with you at your November Planning Commission meeting. If you have 
any further questions, please contact us at 810-734-0000. 
 
Sincerely, 
  
CIB Planning 
 
 
 



City of Owosso Planning Commission 
210 Monroe Rezoning Review 
November 12, 2020 
Page 6 
 

 
Justin Sprague 
Vice President  
 



      
DATE: December 14, 2020 
 
TO: City Council   
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Water Use Ordinance 34-67 Water Service Connections 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Conduct first reading and set a public hearing for revised Water Use Ordinance Article III Section 34-67(a) & (b) to meet 
regulatory compliance.      
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Statutory requirements under the Michigan Safe Drinking Water Act, 1976 PA 399, and the revised lead and copper rules 
as promulgated within the Michigan Department of Energy Great Lakes & Energy (EGLE) Administrative Code  
R 325.11604, require Michigan municipalities to replace private property water service lines that are constructed of non-
compliant lead or galvanized metal containing lead.  Commencing January 1, 2021 most Michigan municipalities 
including Owosso, are mandated to replace 5% to 7% of their public and private property lead and galvanized water 
service lines over the next 20 years at no expense to the property owner. 
 
The city of Owosso began replacing private property water service lines during 2018 and 2019 from a State of Michigan 
Pilot Grant.  This Grant laid the foundation for development of an Asset Management Plan and Distribution System 
Material Inventory (DSMI), subsequently submitted to EGLE on December 20, 2019 in compliance with Administrative 
Rule R 325.10604(c)(i). This DSMI is the 20 year replacement planning document staff will need to manage and report 
on until all non-compliant water service lines are removed.  Additional private property water service lines were replaced 
during 2020 as related to street and water main construction, as well as several locations having high lead sampling test 
results.              
 
Approximately 220 city addresses will be targeted for replacement in 2021, thus beginning the 20 year replacement 
program.  This represents 5% of the suspected non-compliant locations within the city.  These replacements will occur as 
result of a competitive bidding contract specifying locations, as well as other customer requests for planned home 
renovations and/or water flow and pressure issues that may surface.  Once a private property water service line is 
replaced, the city will honor and warranty installation workmanship for one (1) year only.  Subsequent to the warranty 
expiration, the property owner will then resume full ownership and responsibility for maintenance and replacement.  As 
city staffs continue to investigate and verify suspected non-compliant addresses, these projected numbers for the 20 year 
replacement program may significantly reduce.     
 
Attached are resolutions proposing ordinance revisions for compliance with EGLE administrative rules, and to provide 
staff with the authority to enforce the same.  Council will need to set a public hearing for Monday, December 21, 2020 to 
receive citizen comment regarding the proposed changes.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None 
 
Document originated by:  Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
Attachment:   (1) Resolution  &  (2) Water Use Ordinance Section 34-67(a) & (b)      

  

  330011  WW  MMAAIINN  SSTT      ••      OOWWOOSSSSOO,,  MMII      4488886677--22995588      ••      998899--772255--00555555      ••    FFAAXX    998899--772233--88885544  

AKKirkland
Text Box
Memo reprinted from the meetings of December 7, 2020 and December 21, 2020.



ORDINANCE NO. 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
TO SECTION 34-67, WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS, CONNECTION CHARGES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is required by the State of Michigan to replace at least 5% of all public 
and private property lead and galvanized water service lines over the next 20 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, this new obligation must be incorporated into the code of the City of Owosso which regulates 
utilities and services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the request December 21, 2020, heard all 
interested persons, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the proposed changes to be prudent. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 34, Utilities and Services, Article III, Water, Section 34-67, 
Water service connections, connection charges, be amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 34-67. - Water service connections, connection charges.  
 
(a)  Application for water service connection(s) shall be made to the public utilities department on forms 

prescribed and furnished by it. Water service connections and water meters shall be installed, 
maintained and replaced in accordance with applicable rules and standards of the public utilities 
department and applicable plumbing code provisions. The size of the service line and meter, and 
installation details, are subject to review and approval by the director.  Partial water service line 
replacements are not permitted under Michigan Department of Environment Great Lakes & Energy 
(EGLE) Administrative Code R325.11604f(5)(c), except as necessary to address a emergency repair.  
The replacement of lead or galvanized water service lines from the city owned water main to the 
private property building premises, shall be accomplished at city expense in accordance with EGLE 
Administrative Code R325.11604f(5)(c) and R325.11604f(5)(g), except that the responsibility for 
maintenance, repair, or replacement of the private property water service connection, shall terminate 
one (1) year after installation.  

 
(b)  The city shall be responsible for the installation, maintenance and replacement in like size of that 

portion of the water connection from the water main to and including the curb stop and stop box, or 
through the water meter pit if the meter is located in a pit in the public right-of-way or water 
easement.  

The property owner or customer shall be responsible for the installation, maintenance and 
replacement of that portion of the water connection from the curb stop, or meter pit if such meter pit 
is located in the public right-of-way or water easement, to and within the premises being served., 
except during the period of time commencing January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2040 (unless 
extended by EGLE), whereby the city is mandated under the EGLE Administrative Code 
R325.11604f(6)(b) to replace all private property water service lines at city expense.  The 
responsibility of the city for maintenance, repair, or replacement of the private property water service 
connection, shall terminate one (1) year after installation of the new regulatory compliant water 
service line.  
   

(c)  Water meters shall generally be supplied by the city. Any water meter provided by the customer shall 
conform to city standards and specifications, and shall be approved by the director prior to 
installation or start of service. All meters shall be owned by and under the control of the city. The city 
shall be responsible for the cost of meter replacement except in the case of a customer requested 



change in meter size, or damage to the meter attributable to the customer, or agent or tenant of the 
customer.  

(d) Connection charges for new water service connections, or for an increase in service size or capacity, 
in effect on the effective date of this ordinance shall remain in effect until changed by resolution of 
the council, which may thereafter be modified or revised by council resolution. Such connection 
charges may include: recovery of costs for water system capacity attributable to the new user, 
recovery of costs for water distribution piping serving the user if not previously assessed, recovery of 
city costs for the initial installation of the service connection and initial provision of the water meter, 
and recovery of city costs for increasing the service connection and/or meter size. In addition the 
connection charge schedule may include permit application and review fees, and inspection fees.  

SECTION 2.  AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective January 11, 2021. 
     
 



      
DATE: December 14, 2020 
 
TO: City Council   
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revision of Water Use Ordinances 34-75 and 34-76 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Conduct first reading and set a public hearing for revised Water Use Ordinance Article III Sections 34-75 and 34-76 to 
reflect the installation of new water meter technology. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
From June of 2017 through October of 2019, the city of Owosso replaced all water meters with new technology Badger 
Ultrasonic meters having no moving parts.  These meters require no maintenance and record usage every few seconds.  
This usage data is then forwarded to the Water Billing Office on demand via a milliamp signal polled from one of five (5) 
relay towers within the city.  Older style water meters replaced were of numerous make, model, and age.  These meters 
were repairable by replacement of moving parts within the casing, which could then be placed on a test bench to verify 
recording accuracy after repair. Some newer model meters could also be repaired by simply replacing the magnetically 
driven register head from the meter casing.       
 
Repair and/or rebuilding of water meters and bench testing for accuracy is no longer performed, which is reflected in the 
existing ordinance 34-75.  The new Badger Ultrasonic will either cease to record usage data or record negative readings.  
Negative readings can only occur when the meter is installed backwards. A no read can only occur as result of an 
electrical interference or a dead battery, which are both easily detected and readily corrected.  Water meters themselves, 
whether older style or newer technology units, do not over register usage.  Older style meters with mechanical moving 
parts gradually under register usage through the passage of time, which is why municipalities ran meters through an eight 
(8) year repair and test cycle, or just replaced all meters about every 18 to 25 years when register accuracy was below 
92%.  Many of the early 2010 style E-coder meters had electronic touch pads attached to the exterior of the house, which 
when bumped could jump readings forward.  These are no longer used.              
 
This proposed language revisions coincide with the Water Billing Policy and the fixed network operating system 
AclaraOne, in recording billable water usage as integrated with the BS&A billing software.    
 
Council will need to set a public hearing for Monday, December 21, 2020 to receive citizen comment regarding the 
proposed changes. 
   
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
None 
 
Document originated by:  Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
Attachments:   (1) Resolution    
                        (2) Water Use Ordinance Sections 34-75 & 34-76                          

  

  330011  WW  MMAAIINN  SSTT      ••      OOWWOOSSSSOO,,  MMII      4488886677--22995588      ••      998899--772255--00555555      ••    FFAAXX    998899--772233--88885544  

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



ORDINANCE NO. 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
TO SECTIONS 34-75 & 34-76 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso replaced all of its water meters with meters utilizing new technology; and  
 
WHEREAS, the code of ordinances of the City of Owosso regulating utilities and services must be 
updated to reflect said new technology; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on the request December 21, 2020, heard all 
interested persons, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds the proposed changes to be prudent. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 34, Utilities and Services, Article III, Water, Section 34-75, 
Accuracy required, be amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 34-75. - Accuracy required.  
 

A meter shall be considered accurate if, when audited it registers consumption movement when the 
water is turned on from the off position at either the meter pit or inside the building plumbing.  A meter 
shall be considered inaccurate if, when audited it registers no consumption movement or negative 
consumption movement when the water is turned on from the off position at either the meter pit or inside 
the building plumbing.   

 
 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 34, Utilities and Services, Article III, Water, Section 34-76, Bill 
adjustment, be amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 34-76. - Bill adjustment.  
 

If a meter has been audited at the request of a consumer and shall have been determined to register 
accurately, no charge will be assessed.  If a meter so tested at the request of the consumer, is 
determined to not register water consumed or is registering negative flow, applicable equipment causing 
the inaccuracies shall be replaced or repaired and the water bill shall be recalculated from historical 
demand usage from date of known inaccuracies to the date of correction.  There shall be no charge to the 
customer for the audit, repair, or replacement services.  
 
SECTION 3. AVAILABILITY. This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerk's office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This amendment shall become effective January 11, 2021. 
     
 
 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: December 10, 2020 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Glenwood Avenue: Special Assessment Resolution No. 1  
 
 
Each year the city considers a street program to improve selected city streets.  Streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program staff recommendation with council approval, and by citizen initiated petition.  
Reconstruction or resurfacing of these streets is funded in part via special assessment.  Special 
Assessment is the process by which a portion of the cost for making a local improvement is assessed 
against a property owner based upon the value that the property receives from the improvement.  The city 
assumes the remaining portion of the cost (public benefit portion).  In recent years, the city has spread 
this amount as 60% public benefit and 40% property benefit.  The city usually finances special 
assessments for property owners over a 10 year period at 6% interest.  The property owner can pay an 
assessment in one lump sum or in installments over the 10 year period.  

The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the proposed special assessment districts, directs the city manager 
to estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the 
proposed improvements.  City Council is scheduled to approve Resolution No.1 at its regular meeting on 
December 21, 2020. 

Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs notices to 
be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of the public 
hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment.  

Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the proper 
scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  If they agree that 
the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to go on with the 
next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project should go forward, but 
with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and proceed; if they feel the 
project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail to act on Resolution No. 3, 
effectively stopping the process. 

Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment amounts are 
adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A second public hearing 
is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each property owner is sent a 
second notice containing the date and time of the second public hearing and the amount of the proposed 
assessment for their property.  

 
 
 
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll 
and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity 
to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the assessments are fair and 
equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

Tonight the council will be considering a petition signed by a majority of property owners of Glenwood 
Avenue. Enclosed is Resolution No. 1 for the proposed district as a part of the Consent Agenda.  
Because this item simply introduces the proposed district and directs staff to develop estimates it is 
typically handled without discussion of each individual item.   
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 1 for the following proposed project: 
 
 Glenwood Avenue: from south end to Farr Avenue  Street Resurfacing 
  
Resolution No. 2 will be introduced at a later time when the plans and estimates for this project have been 
completed. 
 
Attachment(s): Glenwood Avenue Resolution No. 1 
  Glenwood Avenue Signed Petition  
  Glenwood Avenue Signature Spreadsheet 



RESOLUTION NO. 

GLENWOOD AVENUE 
FROM SOUTH END TO FARR AVENUE 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 1 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Owosso deems it necessary to acquire and construct 
the following described improvement: 

Glenwood Avenue from south end to Farr 
Avenue Street Resurfacing 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The matter of making said public improvement is hereby referred to the City Manager, who
shall prepare a report thereon, which shall include plans and detailed estimates of the cost
thereof and a description of the special assessment district and such other pertinent
information as will permit the City Council to decide the cost, extent and necessity of the
public improvement and what proportion of the cost should be paid by the City at large.

2. The City Manager shall present said report to the City Council when same has been
prepared.







GLENWOOD FROM SOUTH END TO FARR

WEST SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE "YES" FRONT FOOTAGE MAILING ADDRESS
NO. YES NO

912 GLENWOOD COOMER, CASSANDRA L & DEBRA 050-010-003-001-00 91 X 91 912 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
904 GLENWOOD WEST, CHRISTOPHER M 050-010-003-024-00 66 X 66 904 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
902 GLENWOOD LAWSON, JO ANN 050-010-003-023-00 33 X 33 PO BOX 2372 FORKS, WA 98331
830 GLENWOOD CUMMINGS, JOHN & BARBARA 050-010-003-022-00 66 X 66 830 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
822 GLENWOOD GRACE, SHAWN M 050-010-003-021-00 198 X 198 822 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
710 GLENWOOD REDMOND, JASON J 050-101-003-018-00 141 X 141 710 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
706 GLENWOOD CRAMMER, TRACY O 050-010-003-026-00 68 X 68 706 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
704 GLENWOOD KAISER, ANGELA 050-010-003-025-00 61 X 61 315 W HOLLAND AVE SAGINAW, MI 48602-4356
702 GLENWOOD HAMMOND, BREENNA 050-010-003-015-00 51 X 702 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867

775

EAST SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE "YES" FRONT FOOTAGE MAILING ADDRESS
NO. YES NO

740 LINCOLN MILLS, KURT 050-010-004-001-00 91 X 1842 BIG BEAR DR OWOSSO, MI 48867
903 GLENWOOD MILLS, KURT 050-010-004-002-00 66 X 1842 BIG BEAR DR OWOSSO, MI 48867
837 GLENWOOD MILLS, KURT 050-010-004-003-00 99 X 1842 BIG BEAR DR OWOSSO, MI 48867
827 GLENWOOD JAMROCH, MONICA 050-010-004-004-00 99 X 99 823 GELNWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
823 GLENWOOD JAMROCH, MONICA 050-010-004-005-00 66 X 66 823 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
819 GLENWOOD LOUCH, TIMOTHY 050-010-004-006-00 66 X 308 BLOOMSBURY AVE FAIRHOPE, AL 36532-7110
721 GLENWOOD LOUCH, TIMOTHY 050-010-004-007-00 66 X 308 BLOOMSBURY AVE FAIRHOPE, AL 36532-7110
715 GLENWOOD ROACH, MARK A 050-010-004-008-00 102 X 102 715 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867
703 GLENWOOD LOTT, VINCENT G 050-010-004-010-00 120 X 703 GLENWOOD AVE OWOSSO, MI 48867

775

SOUTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE "YES" FRONT FOOTAGE MAILING ADDRESS
NO. YES NO

OAK HILL CEMETERY 007-30-100-001 60 X 1101 WASHINGTON OWOSSO, MI 48867
60

Total Front Footage: 1610.00 TOTAL "YES" FRONT FOOTAGE: 991.00

PERCENT "YES": 61.55%

SIGNED PETITION

SIGNED PETITION

SIGNED PETITION



 
 
 
 
 
 
   301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   December 9, 2020  
 
TO:   Mayor & City Council  
  
FROM:   Jessica B. Unangst, Director of HR & Administrative Services 
  
RE:   City of Owosso Flexible Spending Plan 
  
 
Attached is an updated Service Agreement for the City of Owosso’s Flexible Spending 
Plan.  Over the past eleven years we have utilized Employee Benefit Concepts (EBC), a 
Group Resources company to administer our flexible spending account (FSA) plans 
(both health and dependent care).  I have reviewed all documents and have worked 
with EBC to update the language as it relates to the City of Owosso.  These documents 
are updated on an annual basis.  I recommend approval and authorization of the 
Flexible Spending Plan. 

 
 
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO. 

ADOPTING THE CITY OF OWOSSO FLEXIBLE SPENDING PLAN 

WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, a Michigan municipal corporation, provides a cafeteria plan for its 
employees; and 

WHEREAS, under the tax laws of the United States of America the city council must adopt a 
resolution for the calendar year effective January 1, 2021 and subsequent years. 

NOW THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan (the employer) resolves: 

FIRST that the form of Cafeteria Plan including a Dependent Care Flexible Spending 
Account and Health Flexible Spending Account effective January 1, 2021 
presented and attached is approved and adopted and that the duly authorized 
agents of the city are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to 
the Administrator of the Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan. 

SECOND  that the Administrator is instructed to take such actions that they deem necessary 
and proper to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and 
administrative procedures to provide benefits under the Plan. 

THIRD that attached as Exhibit 1, is a true copy of the City of Owosso Flexible Spending 
Plan approved and adopted in this resolution. 

FOURTH  that all prior resolutions and documents for the City of Owosso Flexible Spending 
Plan are rescinded as of January 1, 2021. 

Passed and approved by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan this 4th day of 
January 2021. 



1 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT CONCEPTS, INC. 
CONSULTING AND THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made by and between City of Owosso (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Employer") and Employee Benefit Concepts, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "Third Party 
Administrator" or "TPA"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Employer has adopted and sponsors a Flexible Spending Account 
Plan(s) (the "Plan") for its employees and the dependents of participating employees and has 
agreed to provide certain benefits through the Plan; 

WHEREAS, under the Plan, the Employer as the administrator has the authority to 
appoint, hire others to perform and/or delegate the duties it provides under the Plan; 

WHEREAS, the Employer is desirous that the TPA furnish certain services to the Plan 
with respect to the benefits to be provided under the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer is executing this Agreement on behalf of itself and the Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, the Employer and the TPA hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION I 
PLAN 

Wherever, in the Agreement reference is made to the term "Plan" it shall mean the 
benefits provided under the Flexible Spending Account Plan of the Employer as furnished to 
TPA from time to time by the Employer and as defined in the Flexible Spending Account Plan 
Document(s). 

SECTION II 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE TPA 

During the continuance of this Agreement, the TPA shall provide those certain services 
to the Employer relating to the administration of the plan as outlined in the Fee Schedule 
appended hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein. 

SECTION III 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER AND TPA 

(A) It is understood that the Employer retains all final authority and responsibility
for the Plan and its operation and that the TPA is empowered to act on behalf of the Plan and 
the Employer in connection with the Plan only as expressly stated in this Agreement or as 
mutually agreed to in writing by the Employer and the TPA.  

EXHIBIT  1



 

 
2 

(B) The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) of 1996, as it 
may be amended; from time to time requires “covered entities” to have contracts with its 
“business associates.”  Employer has signed the Agreement on behalf of itself and the Plan. 
Since the Plan is a Covered Entity, it must have a contract with TPA as its Business Associate.  
Exhibit “B,” which is a business associate agreement and which is attached to this Agreement, 
is hereby added to and deemed a part of this Agreement.  The meanings of the terms “covered 
entities” and “business associates” are as defined in HIPAA. 

(C) The TPA shall, when reasonable, advise the Employer of matters which come to 
its attention involving potential legal actions involving the Plan and shall promptly advise of 
legal actions commenced against the Plan which come to its attention.  The defense of any 
legal action involving a claim for benefits under the Plan shall not be the obligation of the TPA 
under this Agreement, but it is understood and agreed that the TPA shall fully cooperate with 
the Plan in defense of any action arising out of matters related to this Agreement. 

(D) The TPA shall discharge its duties with respect to the Plan covered under this 
Agreement solely in the interest of the Plan, the Employer and participants of the Plan with 
the ordinary care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that 
a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the 
conduct of an enterprise of like characteristics and with like aims, and in accordance with the 
Plan documents, to the extent they are consistent with applicable provisions of applicable law.  
Further, TPA shall only be liable for losses, damages, expenses, or claims arising out of or 
with respect to this Agreement for the performance of any obligations or any functions in the 
administration of the Plan resulting from or arising out of the fraudulent, intentional, criminal 
or negligent acts or omissions of the TPA, or its employees. 

(E) The Employer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the TPA and its directors, 
officers and employees against any and all claims, lawsuits, settlements, judgments, costs, 
penalties and expenses, including attorney's fees resulting from, or arising out of or in 
connection with, a claim for benefits under the Plan during the continuance of this Agreement 
unless it is determined that the liability therefore resulted from or arose out of the fraudulent, 
intentional, criminal or negligent acts or omissions of the TPA, or its employees. 

(F) If it is determined that any payment had been made under this Agreement to an 
ineligible employee or dependent, or if it is determined that an incorrect amount has been paid 
by the TPA, the TPA will make a diligent attempt to recover the payment but the TPA will not 
be required to initiate or continue any court proceedings for any such recovery. 

SECTION IV 
DUTIES OF THE EMPLOYER 

 
(A) Unless otherwise provided in Exhibit A, it shall be the obligation of the Employer 

(pursuant to MLA Section 550.932) to provide a written notice to each individual covered by 
the Plan, which notice shall contain the following information: 

 
(i) What benefits are being provided; 

 
(ii) Changes in benefits;  

 
(iii) The fact that individuals covered by the Plan are not insured, or are only partially 

insured, as the case may be;                     
    



 

 
3 

(iv) If the Plan is not insured, the fact that in the event the Plan or the 
Employer does not ultimately pay medical expenses that are eligible for payment under the 
Plan for any reason, the individuals covered by the Plan may be liable for those expenses; 

 
(v) The fact that the TPA merely processes claims and does not insure that 

any medical expenses of individuals covered by the Plan will be paid; and 
 

(vi) The fact that complete and proper claims for benefits made by 
individuals covered by the Plan will be promptly processed, but that in the event there are 
delays in processing claims, the individuals covered by the Plan shall have no greater rights 
to interest or other remedies against the TPA than as otherwise afforded them by law. 

 
(B) In order for the TPA to perform the benefit payment and other services for the Plan 

as set forth in this Agreement, the Employer shall furnish to the TPA certain information 
concerning the Plan and employees and dependents covered under the Plan as may from 
time to time be required by the TPA and shall furnish monies in a timely fashion to carry out 
the requirements of the Plan. 

  
(C) It shall be the sole obligation of the Employer and the Plan to comply with all 

provisions of HIPAA.  TPA will abide by the terms of HIPAA relating to Business Associates. 
 

SECTION V 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AGREEMENT PERIOD 

 
(A) This Agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 2021 and continue until 

December 31, 2021 unless continued in accordance with Section (B) below. 
 
(B) At the expiration of the Initial Year, or at the expiration of any year thereafter 

during which this Agreement is in effect, this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for 
a period of one (1) year under the same terms and conditions as were in effect for the year 
immediately preceding such renewal, unless written notice is given sixty (60) days in 
advance of the expiration of any such Plan year by either the TPA or the Employer to the 
other party to this Agreement. 

 
SECTION VI 

TPA SERVICE CHARGES 
 
(A) In consideration of the TPA providing the services provided for under this 

Agreement, the Employer agrees to pay the TPA those fees as provided for in the Fee 
Schedule. 

 
(B) In addition to the TPA fees as set forth on Exhibit A, the Plan shall reimburse 

the TPA for any premium taxes, or other charges or fees in connection therewith assessed 
against the TPA with respect to any benefit payments made by the TPA under the Plan and 
this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
4 

SECTION VII 
EXAMINATION OF RECORDS 

 
Subject to the provisions of Exhibit “B,” the Employer shall have the right, upon 

reasonable request, to examine any records of the TPA relating to the services provided 
hereunder: provided, however, that any examination of participant payment records shall be 
carried out in a manner agreed to between the Employer and the TPA designed to protect the 
confidentiality of the participant. 
 
 

SECTION VIII 
BENEFIT ENTITLEMENT DETERMINATION 

 
(A) During the continuance of this Agreement, all requests for benefit payments 

under the Plan will be made to the TPA.  The TPA shall determine the entitlement of any 
participating employee requesting benefits under the Plan.  Such determination will be made 
in accordance with the Plan documents. 

 
(B) With respect to any person who makes a request for benefits which is denied, 

the TPA will notify said person of the denial and of his or her right of review of the denial, in 
a manner agreed to between the Employer and the TPA designed to satisfy the requirements 
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 
 
 

SECTION IX 
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 

 
The TPA's personnel will be available to assist the Employer in connection with the 

general administration of the Plan, including assistance as to the enrollment of eligible 
Employees under the Plan and administration and record keeping systems for the ongoing 
operation of the Plan. 

 
SECTION X 

MAINTENANCE AND RETURN OF RECORDS 
 
The TPA shall maintain all records in connection with its administration of the plan.  In 

the event of discontinuance of this Agreement, any such records in possession of the TPA 
shall be forwarded to the Employer as soon as practicable, but in any case, within forty-five 
(45) days of the date of discontinuance.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
5 

SECTION XI 
DEFAULT; TERMINATION 

 
(A) The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a default under this 

agreement: 
 

Assignment.  TPA shall neither assign, transfer nor convey this Agreement nor suffer or 
permit any such assignment, transfer or encumbrance to occur by operation of law or 
otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Employer.  If the TPA purports to affect 
any assignment or transfer without the written consent of the Employer, the Employer may, 
without prejudice to any other rights or remedies contained in this Agreement or provided by 
law or equity, terminate this Agreement. 

 
(i) TPA makes, or has made, any gross misrepresentation to the Employer 

including inducing the Employer to enter into this Agreement. 
 

(ii) TPA materially defaults in the performance of any other obligations 
under this Agreement. 

 
(iii) TPA or any of its directors or officers shall have performed or have 

been guilty of fraudulent or criminal conduct in their administration under this Agreement. 
 

(B) Upon occurrence of any of the events set forth in Paragraph XI (A), the Employer 
may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies contained in this Agreement or 
provided by law or equity, terminate this Agreement.  Such termination shall be effective 
sixty (60) days after the Employer gives written notice to the TPA of any of the events set 
forth above. 

 
(C) The TPA will use its best efforts to provide the services contemplated by this 

Agreement. 
 

SECTION XII 
TERMINATION 

 
If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, TPA at the Employer's expense shall 

assist in the transition to a successor third party administrator so as not to unduly interrupt 
or disrupt the business of the Plan.  TPA shall provide such assistance for a period of sixty 
(60) days, during which time the TPA will be paid reasonable compensation for time actually 
spent. 
 

SECTION XIII 
GOVERNING LAWS 

 
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made and entered into in the State of 

Michigan, and all rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed by and 
constructed in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
6 

SECTION XIV 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between TPA and the Employer in 

respect of the subject matter hereof, and this Agreement supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous agreements between TPA and the Employer in connection with the subject 
matter of this Agreement.  No officer, employee or other servant or agent of the TPA or the 
Employer is authorized to make any representation, warranty or other promise not contained 
in this Agreement.  No change, modification, termination, or attempted waiver of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the TPA or the Employer unless in writing 
and signed by the TPA and the Plan. 
 

 
SECTION XV 

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer and the TPA have caused this Agreement to be 
executed in duplicate by their respective officers duly authorized to do so. 

 
 
Dated at   , Michigan this _____ day of _____________________, 20_______. 
 
 
WITNESS:               

City of Owosso 
 

_____________________________                    By: _____________________________ 
 
 

    Title: _____________________________ 
                     
 
                       Employee Benefit Concepts, Inc. 
                       A Group Resources, Inc.      
                       A Michigan Corporation 
 
_____________________________ 

               By: _____________________________ 
 
 
                          Title: ____________________________ 



City of Owosso 
Exhibit A 

January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021 
 

Compliance/Legislation 
     Discrimination Testing (as required) 
     Initial Preparation Flexible Spending Account Plan Document/Summary Plan Description 
 
Re-enrollment 
     Employee Group Meetings 
     Communication Materials 
     Enrollment Forms 
     Claim Forms (available via paper or online) 
     Pre-addressed Return Envelopes 
     System Data Loading 
 
Administration 
     Initial System Plan and Data Programming/Set Up 
     Payroll Posting/Reconciliation (to each employee account) 
     Claim Administration (via mail/fax/email) 
     Check Writing/Printing ACH Direct to Participants* 
     Monthly Bank Account maintenance/Reconciliation** 
     Eligibility Administration (adds/terms/change in status via paper or online) 
     On Line Statement to Employees      
     Claim Forms (available via paper or online) 
     Postage 
     COBRA Administration/Termination Notification 
     Employee/Employer Account Access via Internet 
     Toll Free Telephone Support Service Number (outside 248 area code) 
     Employer Management Reporting (via paper or online) 
     Annual Information for Form 5500 Filing if required 
      
 
Plan Year: 1/1/21 – 12/31/21: $5.50 per participant per month with a minimum of $100.00, whichever is 
greater, invoiced upon the commencement of TPA service. 
 
Re-enrollment services of $300.00 are payable annually in advance of the applicable plan year(s). 
 
Take Care Debit Card $15.00 per year per family to be paid by employee. 
 
Fees for required amendments to Plan Document/Summary Plan Description will be quoted at the time of 
the applicable occurrence. 
 
This fee schedule is exclusive of printing, travel and ongoing administrative costs, bank fees**, which will 
be invoiced monthly as incurred. 
 
* Daily or weekly as determined between TPA and Employer.  **Net monthly bank charges will be billed to 
the employer/employee, as determined between the TPA and Employer upon each applicable charge.  
 
 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Signature for City of Owosso    Signature for EBC, Inc. 
       A Group Resources® Company 
 
Date______________________________  Date_______________________________ 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

30 1 W M A IN  ∙   O WO SSO , M IC HIGA N 4 8 8 67-2958  ∙   WWW.C I.O WO SSO .M I.US 
  

 
 
 

 
DATE: December 15, 2020 
 
TO:  The Owosso City Council 
  
FROM:  Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities  
 
SUBJECT:  WACHS Valve Turner 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to purchase a WACHS Valve Turner & Trailer unit from E.H. WACHS of Lincolnshire, Illinois under 
the National Buy Board - Local Government Purchasing Cooperative - Contract No. 597-19. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
  
The Valve Turner is an essential equipment maintenance item for the water distribution system.  This is the 
second of two units to be purchased for isolation valve maintenance. 
 
Older means for exercising water main isolation valves was a long metal pipe with a T-handle, whereby up to 
two persons could manually walk the T-pipe in a clockwise (close) or counter clockwise (open) direction.  This 
tool was functional, time consuming, and often resulted in broken valve stems with too many foot pounds of 
torque applied by the employee.  The WACHS valve turner operates on hydraulic pressure, is programmed to 
count the turns to open & close, makes adjustments to torque values based on specification programming, is 
much faster and records historical data.         
 
WACHS is the premier supplier of water system maintenance equipment, and as such is recognized by the  
National Buy Board – Local Government Cooperative Purchasing Agency providing competitively priced 
products for government and educational entities nationwide.  Contract 597-19 is renewed annually, and is 
currently effective from December 31, 2020 thru November 30, 2021.   
 
Owosso City Ordinance section 2-345(3) exception to competitive bidding states:  Where the council shall 
determine that the public interest will best be served by joint purchase with, or purchase from, another unit of 
government.  Therefore, waiver of the city of Owosso competitive purchasing policy is hereby requested.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
To be funded from FY2020-21 Fleet Motor Pool 616-901-979.000 in the amount of $32,095.14.   
 
Requested by: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF WACHS VALVE TURNER FROM E.H. 
WACHS EQUIPMENT OF LINCOLNSHIRE, ILLINOIS UTILIZING THE NATIONAL BUY 

BOARD LOCAL GOVERNMENT COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Department of Public Works Fleet Motor 
Pool requires the use of a Valve Turner to perform specialized isolation valve maintenance and exercising 
on the water distribution system; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase one WACHS valve turner & trailer unit manufactured 
by E.H. WACHS Equipment, and it is in the best interest of the City of Owosso to utilize the National Buy 
Board Local Government Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, Contract No. 597-19 to purchase said 
equipment; and  

WHEREAS, E.H. WACHS Equipment is an authorized distributor for said equipment under the National 
Buy Board Local Government Purchasing Agreement; and    

WHEREAS, city ordinance section 2-345(3) provides for an exception to competitive bidding when the 
best interest of the city would be served by joint purchasing with another governmental unit. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase the following equipment from E.H. WACHS Equipment using 
the National Buy Board Local Government Purchasing Agreement - Contract No. 597-19: 

• One (1) WACHS model 79-000-25, 750/ft/lb extended reach valve operator with
trailer in the amount of $32,095.14

SECOND: The Director of Public Services is hereby instructed and authorized to sign any necessary 

THIRD: 

documents to complete said purchase. 

Payment is authorized to E.H. WACHS Equipment in the amount of $32,095.14 
upon delivery and acceptance.   

FOURTH: Said purchase shall be paid for from the Fleet Motor Pool 661-901-979.000 



Water Utility Products
600 Knightsbridge Pkwy | Lincolnshire IL 60069
T +1 847 537 8800 | F +1 847 520 1147
ehwachs.com

Page 1 of 1

4 Weeks AROEstimated Delivery:
Valid Through: 1/22/2021

FOB Origin
Net 30
CC146469
11/23/2020

Shipping Terms:
Payment Terms:

Quotation Number:
Date:

City of Owosso
301 W. Main Street
Owosso, MI  48867

Mark MItchellTO:

Quotation

E.H. Wachs is pleased to offer the following quotation.

U/MQtyDescriptionItem Number Disc%
Unit Price

(USD)
Line Total

(USD)

 31,777.50 33,450.00EA 1Compact LX (Gas) – VMT (RH): Single turner valve maintenance trailer; 
includes Wachs 750 Ft/lb (1020 Nm) Extended Reach Valve operator, 
telescoping valve key and Wachs ruggedized HC-100 with GPS 
controller/datalogger. A 16 H.P (12 kW) Briggs and Stratton V-Twin engine 
with hydraulic pump provides ample power for all contained functions, 
including an auxiliary HTMA Class II circuit ; 10 gallon (38 L) reservoir, fan 
cooled heat exchanger, continuous duty rated for 8 GPM (30.3 LPM) @ 1,800 
PSI (125 bar).  The LX package bundles the light bar with arrow board, 45' 
(14 M) auxiliary hydraulic hose reel for operation of hydraulic power tools, 
Bluetooth tethering module (installed in ERV-750) for wireless communication 
between the exerciser and Controller/Data Logger and steel storage bin.

Other options available include:  1-7/8"-2" Ball Tongue (79-020-01-03) or 
already GPS enabled, however adding option 79-412-02 (Trimble R2 GNSS 
receiver) provides survey grade centimeter accuracy.

79-000-25 1 5.0%

Subtotal  31,777.50

 317.64Motor Freight

$32,095.14Total (USD)

We will prepay and add shipping charges to your order, or we can ship collect via your choice of carrier service.  If you have any questions 
please feel free to call Rick Brennan at 513-305-3390.

(SALES TAX!!!!) We collect sales tax in all but the following states: AK, DE, MT, OR and NH. If you are tax exempt please supply your 
identification number and certificate with your order. If your exempt number is not on file, tax will be added to your invoice.

Please reference this quote number when placing your order. Thank You.

Rick Brennan
regional account manager
Rbrennan@ehwachs.com
513 305 3390

Sales of E.H. Wachs products and services are expressly limited to and made conditional on acceptance of its current Terms and Conditions of Sale , found at 
www.ehwachs.com (“Terms”). Any additional or different terms are hereby rejected . Commencement of work by E.H. Wachs or acceptance of delivery of products by 

you constitutes your acceptance of the Terms .

















 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

30 1 W M A IN  ∙   O WO SSO , M IC HIGA N 4 8 8 67-2958  ∙   WWW.C I.O WO SSO .M I.US 
  

 
 
 

 
DATE: December 15, 2020 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM:  Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities  
 
SUBJECT:  Ford F550 4X2 Cab & Chassis – State of Michigan-Macomb County Contract #071B7700180 
  
 VERSALIFT Unit & Utility Service Body – State of Michigan Contract #071B7700166 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to purchase one (1) Ford F550 4X2 Cab & Chassis from Signature Ford of Owosso, Michigan, in the 
amount of $37,587.00. 
  
Approval to purchase one (1) VERSALIFT Unit and Utility Service Body from VERSALIFT Midwest of Shelby 
Township, Michigan, in the amount of $59,602.00.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
  
This equipment will be used for sign maintenance and replacement.  This new vehicle will replace an existing 
1997 Ford DPW #311 Sign Truck, which has expended its useful life. 
 
Waiver of the competitive bidding process in accordance with the city of Owosso Purchasing Policy, in order to 
take advantage of State of Michigan competitive contract pricing, is recommended.  Owosso City Ordinance 
section 2-345(3) exception to competitive bidding states; “Where the council shall determine that the public 
interest will best be served by joint purchase with, or purchase from, another unit of government”.     

                               
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds will be expended from the Fleet Motor Pool Replacement Account 661-901-979.000 in amount of 
$37,587.00 for the 4X2 cab & chassis, and $59,602.00 for VERSALIFT and utility service body, for a total of 
$97,189.00.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 
           (2) Signature Ford Quote 
  (3) VERSALIFT Quote                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

  (3) State of Michigan Contracts  

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO SIGNATURE FORD OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN  
AND VERSALIFT MIDWEST OF SHELBY TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN  

TO PROCURE A FORD F550 CAB & CHASSIS AND A VERSALIFT UNIT AND UTILITY SERVICE 
BODY FOR USE IN THE FLEET MOTOR POOL AS A SIGN TRUCK 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool 
Replacement Fund for the purchase of a Sign Truck 4X2 cab and chassis to be used for sign 
maintenance and replacement, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool 
Replacement Fund for the purchase of a VERSALIFT unit and utility service body to be attached to the 
cab and chassis truck, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the replacement 
equipment on the State of Michigan Contracts as priced by Signature Ford and VERSALIFT Midwest and 
recommends authorizing purchase agreements between the city of Owosso and Signature Ford of 
Owosso, Michigan and VERSALIFT Midwest of Shelby Township, Michigan.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Owosso Motors, Inc. dba Signature Ford of Owosso, 
Michigan for the purchase of a 2021 Ford F550 4X2 Cab & Chassis on State of Michigan 
Contract #071B7700180 for use in the Fleet Motor Pool, in the amount of $37,587.00.  

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 

public interest to contract with VERSALIFT Midwest, LLC of Shelby Township, Michigan 
for the purchase of a VERSALIFT unit and Utility Service Body on State of Michigan 
Contract #071B7700166, for use in the Fleet Motor Pool, in the amount of $59,602.00.  

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to VERSALIFT 

Midwest in the amount of $59,602.00, and expense from account 661-901-979.000 
 
FOURTH: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Signature Ford in 

the amount of $37,587.00, and expense from account 661-901-979.000.  
 































 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

DATE: December 28, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Bowl Mortgage Discharge Agreement 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve the Mortgage Discharge Agreement between the City of Owosso and TCF bank in the amount of 
$33,400. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City loaned the owner of Capital Bowl $250,000 from the local Revolving Loan Fund in 2007 to help 
pay for a rebuild of the bowling alley after fire destroyed the facility.  The city secured a mortgage on the 
property (2nd line mortgage) as well as a personal guaranty from Ms. Trecha.  The loan term was for 20 
year (exp 2027) paid quarterly.  The last payment received by Trecha was in Jan, 2020.  Staff started the 
delinquent collection process but then got word from the bank that the property was to begin the 
foreclosure process.  So, staff began negotiations with TCF bank to release the city’s mortgage for a fair 
price determined by City Council.  That price was $33,400.  After further negotiation, the bank agreed. 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
The outstanding balance owed by Ms. Trecha to the city is around $106,000.  However, most of that is 
interest.  This $33,400 will ensure that the City’s Revolving Loan Fund receives the rest of the $250,000 
in principal on the loan.  While the RLF will break even on this loan with the approval of the Discharge, 
the city can still legally pursue repayment on the rest of the interest owed from Trecha herself. 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENT FOR RELEASE OF MORTGAGE OF 
CAPITAL BOWL LOCAL RLF LOAN 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, loaned $250,000 from the Local 
Revolving Loan Fund to rebuild Capital Bowl following a fire in 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso holds a 2nd line mortgage on the aforementioned property as collateral on 
said 20-year loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, $216,600 in loan principal has been repaid to date; and 
 
WHEREAS, TCF Bank is foreclosing on the aforementioned property and wishes to settle with the City on 
a mortgage discharge for the City’s interest in the property in order to clear title for potential buyers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso City Council has negotiated successfully for $33,400 to discharge the mortgage. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

 
FIRST: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached, Agreement for Release of Mortgage between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and TCF Bank in the amount of $33,400. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid to the local Revolving Loan Fund, 273-000-671.675. 

 
  
 
 



AGREEMENT FOR RELEASE OF MORTGAGE 

This Agreement is entered into on this ____  day of _____________ , 2020, between TCF 

BANK (f.k.a. Chemical Bank) hereinafter "TCF Bank", of 100 East Main Street, Owosso, 

Michigan 48867; and The City of Owosso, hereinafter "City" a Michigan municipal corporation, 

of 301 West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867; 

This Agreement is made with reference to the following facts: 

1. The City of Owosso has a recorded Mortgage at the Register of Deeds for Shiawassee  

County, Michigan, Liber 1098 and Page 984, against TRECHA ENTERPRISES DPHU L.L.C.,  

hereinafter "TRECHA", of 1115 Dowling Place, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (Mortgagor) on the  

premises described on the attached Exhibit A. 

2. TRECHA has been in arrears to the City of said Mortgage since on or about February 

1, 2020. 

3. TCF Bank have represented to the City that it has an interest in the property pursuant 

to TRECHA granting a Deed In Lieu of Foreclosure to TCF Bank. TCF Bank has submitted an 

affidavit of said Deed in support of that representation. 

4. The City offered to release and discharge said Mortgage upon TCF Bank paying a total  

sum equal to Thirty Three Thousand Four Hundred and No/100 ($33,400.00) Dollars. 

5. TCF Bank has accepted the City's offer and requests that the City release and discharge  

its Mortgage against the property upon receipt of said payment in full. 

6. The City is willing to release and discharge said Mortgage against the property based 

on the above representation and the remaining terms and conditions of this agreement. 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. TCF Bank will deliver to the City of Owosso, Thirty Three Thousand Four Hundred 

and No/100 ($33,400.00) Dollars no later than the closing of sale of the described property. 

2. The City Owosso will cause to be executed, upon full payment as describe above, a 

release and discharge of the Mortgage recorded against the property at Liber 1098, Pages 984, of 

the Shiawassee County Records; simultaneously, the City of Owosso (as the Mortgagee) will 

release the identified property of any and all claims or liens stemming from said Mortgage.



2 

3. The City of Owosso will release and discharge TCF Bank, from any claims, known or  

unknown, that it may have arising out of or in any way related to the recorded Mortgage. 

The parties have executed this agreement on the dates set forth below. 

DATED: December ____ , 2020 TCF BANK, 

BY: ____________________________ 

ITS: 

DATED: December ____ , 2020 CITY OF OWOSSO 

BY: 

Christopher T. Eveleth  

ITS: Mayor 

ATTEST: 

BY: 

Amy K. Kirkland  

ITS: Clerk 

PREPARED BY: 

Scott J. Gould P 76101 

Owosso City Attorney 

114 East Main Street, Suite 218 

Owosso, Michigan 48867 

Vice President

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   December 28, 2020 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1442 
 
 
Niche Bar & Lounge proposes to close four (4) parking spaces directly in front of 112 N. 
Washington St. The space will be used for outdoor/shanty seating for patrons to comply 
with restrictions due to Covid.  
 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order No# 1442 in accordance 
with the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends 
approval and further authorization of a traffic control order formalizing the action. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1442    12/28/20       2:30 pm 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

 Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Closure of four (4) parking spots in front of 112 N. Washington St.  
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL     
  
 Four (4) parking spots directly in front of 112 N. Washington St. 
          
  

Due to Covid restrictions, Niche Bar & Lounge would like to use parking 
spaces for outdoor/shanty seating for patrons. The requested dates are Jan 
5, 2021 to March 1, 2021.  

  
 
  
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0550  ·  FAX 725-0526 

 
         

The request for use of the parking lots, parade, or similar event shall be submitted to the Director of Public 
Safety not less than 14 days nor more than 120 days before the date for which the use is requested. 
 
The submission of a request by an individual or organization for a traffic control order pursuant to these rules 
and regulations shall constitute an agreement to indemnify and hold the City and its officers and employees 
harmless from any and all liability arising from the event or activities for which the request is made. 
 
 
Name of individual or group:             Date:      
 
Primary Contact Person 
  Name:          
 
  Title:           
 
  Address:        
 
           
 
  Phone:         
 
Requested Date(s):        Requested Hours:       
 
Area Requested (Parking Lot - Parade Route):           
 
                
 
Detailed description of the use for which the request is made:          
 
                
 

   Attach copies of any rules or policies applicable to persons participating in the event. 
 

 Evidence to the City of insurance coverage applicable to the event or activity naming the City as an 
 additional insured in an amount of not less than $500,000 combined single limit.  
     or  

 The City Council may waive such insurance requirement if it determines that insurance coverage is 
 unavailable or cannot be obtained at a reasonable cost and the event or activity is in the public interest or 
 fulfills a legitimate and recognized public purpose. 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Do Not Write Below This Line - For Officials Use Only 
 

Approved   Not Approved   Date:       Traffic Control Order Number    
 
Cc: DDA - Director 
 WCIA - Chairperson 

 

                       APPLICATION FOR USE OF           
     PARKING LOTS, PARADES, OR SIMILAR EVENTS 





Licensee Details

Alcohol Information Management System
Michigan Liquor Control Commission

Search Active/Escrowed Licensees 

Go Back

Insurance / Financial Responsibility

Subordinates

Licenses

To view details of a license, please click the   button to expand the license details.

Permits

To view details of a permit or permission, please click the   button to expand the permit or permission details.

Historical Sales Record

Violations

MI.gov  Home  About  Contact  Policies  

Copyright 2020 State of Michigan

Application Status Search Active/Escrow View LGUs Submit Complaint

Licensee Name CRAFT PUB OF OWOSSO, LLC Doing Business As (DBA) CRAFT PUB OF OWOSSO

Business ID 0260065 Local Governmental Unit
(LGU)

OWOSSO CITY

Status Active County SHIAWASSEE

Address 112 N Washington StOwosso, MI 48867-2827 Phone (989) 413-1207

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

Name Type Insurance Provider Effective Date (From) Status

IN-528124 Liquor Liability Insurance CONIFER INSURANCE COMPANY 2/28/2020 Active

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries Previous 1 Next

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

Name Relationship To Business Status

Brian Shufeldt Active

NADIA DAOUD Member Active

Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries Previous 1 Next

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

License # Group Type Subtype Status Issue Date
Expiration
Date Statute

Statute:
Location
Transferable

Under
Transfer
Process

L-000405350 Retail - On
Premises

Class C Regular Active 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 N/A Yes

L-000405351 Retail - Off
Premises

Specially
Designated
Merchant

N/A Active 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 N/A Yes

Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries Previous 1 Next

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

Permit # Type Specific Purpose Status Issue Date Expiration Date Child Permits

Sunday Sales (PM) Issued 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

Dance-Entertainment Issued 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

Direct Connection Issued 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

Sunday Sales (AM) Issued 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

Outdoor Service Area Issued 9/10/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

Additional Bar Issued 9/13/2018 4/30/2021 Not Applicable

18-2288+

18-2289+

18-2290+

18-2293+

18-38340+

18-39159+

Showing 1 to 6 of 6 entries Previous 1 Next

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

Year Month License Sales Amount

2018 L-000405350 $12,128.57

2019 L-000405350 $15,440.45

2020 01 L-000405350 $1,054.89

2020 02 L-000405350 $1,593.55

2020 03 L-000405350 $668.98

2020 04 L-000405350 $85.02

2020 05 L-000405350 $0.00

2020 06 L-000405350 $345.39

2020 07 L-000405350 $686.42

2020 08 L-000405350 $1,286.15

Showing 1 to 10 of 13 entries Previous 1 2 Next

Show 10  entries Copy CSV Print

Violation # Date Violation Occured Status Violation Description Event/Decision

CV-507133 3/2/2020 Closed 3/2/2020 Violation Warning Notice---MCL 436.1803(4)

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entries Previous 1 Next

Home About Contact MI.gov

http://www.michigan.gov/
https://customers.mlcc.michigan.gov/
http://www.michigan.gov/lcc
https://customers.mlcc.michigan.gov/SoM_ActiveEscrowLicenseList#
http://www.michigan.gov/policies
https://customers.mlcc.michigan.gov/


 

 

Warrant 595 
December 15, 2020 

  

 

 

 

 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

    

Gould Law, PC Professional services-11/10/20-12/14/20 General $10,267.40 

    

    

    

    

  Total $10,267.40 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

30 1 W M A IN  ∙   O WO SSO , M IC HIGA N 4 8 8 67-2958  ∙   WWW.C I.O WO SSO .M I.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: December 15, 2020 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety  
 
SUBJECT: Emergency Action Support Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommend Council adopt the City of Owosso Emergency Operations Plan as proposed. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
According to the administrative rules “State Assistance to Counties and Municipalities” put forward by the 
Department of the State Police per the Emergency Management Act (PA 390 of 1976), a municipality with 
a population of 10,000 or more that has elected to be incorporated in the county emergency management 
program shall maintain a support plan in accordance with the current standard of that county’s 
Emergency Action Guidelines.  It shall contain the signature of the chief executive official of the 
municipality (as defined in the Act) and be forwarded to the county.  This support plan must be approved 
and signed by the municipal executive at least every four years.  
 
Attached is a resolution for the adoption of the updated plan and a copy of the support plan.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
It is hoped that any fiscal impacts the City would incur when dealing with an emergency situation will be 
positively affected by the clear and defined processes outlined in this Support Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF  
THE UPDATED EMERGENCY OPERATIONS SUPPORT PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a Public Safety Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Public Safety Department has opted to participate in the Shiawassee 
County Emergency Management Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, State law requires municipalities with a population of 10,000 or more to maintain and file with 
the County a plan of support that is in accordance with the County’s Emergency Action Guidelines at 
least every four years.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

 
FIRST: The City of Owosso has elected to participate in the Shiawassee County Emergency 

Management Program. 
 
SECOND: The attached City of Owosso Emergency Operations Plan provides a framework for the 

City to use in performing emergency functions before, during, and after emergent 
situations and is hereby approved. 

 
THIRD: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the attached document in 

support of the Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan.  
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 
 
 
 
 

Owosso, Michigan 
 
 

(insert emblem) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting: 
 

Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan 
 
 
 

November 24, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
Promulgation 
Plan Distribution 
Supporting Plans and Procedures 
Plan Development and Maintenance 
Record of Changes 
 
Basic Plan 

1. Purpose 
2. Scope 
3. Situation and Assumptions 
4. Concept of Operations 
5. Continuity of Government 
6. Emergency Action Levels 
7. Homeland Security and Advisory System 
8. Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities  

 A. Incident Manager 
  City of Owosso, Director of Public Safety 
  City of Owosso Emergency Coordinator 
 B. Operations 
  City of Owosso 
 C. Planning 
  City of Owosso 
 D. Logistics 
  City of Owosso 
 E. Finance/Administration 
  City of Owosso 

9. Communications 
 
Appendix A: Acronyms 
Appendix B: Glossary 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: November 24, 2020 
 
To all Recipients: 
 
Transmitted herewith is the Emergency Operations Plan for the City of Owosso in support to the 
Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan.  The plan provides a framework for the City to use in 
performing emergency functions before, during, and after a natural disaster, technological incident or a 
hostile attack. 
 

This plan is adopted by the Owosso City Council under Resolution No.__________ dated 
_________________________.  It supersedes all previous plans.   
 

 

 

City Mayor     Date 

       
       
City Clerk     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLAN DISTRIBUTION 
 
The City of Owosso Emergency Operations Plan is provided to all municipal departments.  Non-
municipal departments may contact the Municipal Emergency Coordinator to obtain a copy of the plan.  
Additionally, this plan will also be provided to the Shiawassee County Emergency Management Program 
as support to the Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan.  
 
 
AUTHORITY AND REFERENCES 
 
State 

a. Act 390 of 1976, Michigan Emergency Management Act 
b. Michigan Emergency Management Assistance Compact 

 
Local 

a. Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan 
b. City of Owosso NIMS Resolution, adopted October 2, 2006 
c. City of Owosso participates in county wide mutual aid agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
 
The municipal operations plan will be maintained in accordance with current standards of the 
Shiawassee County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and in accordance with municipal government.  
Deficiencies identified in exercises and actual use, or organizational changes will stimulate revisions to 
the plan as well.  Revisions of the plan will be forwarded to all organizations/agencies assigned 
responsibilities in the plan.  Directors of supporting agencies have the responsibility for maintaining 
internal plans, Standard Operating Guidelines (SOG), and resource data to ensure prompt and effective 
response to emergencies. 
 
 

 
 



6 

BASIC PLAN 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

This operation plan has been developed to satisfy the requirements of the Michigan Emergency 
Management Act (P.A. 390, as amended) and to define the actions to be taken by the City of 
Owosso government to respond to various types of emergencies or disasters that affect the 
community.  It provides a link to procedures that will be used by county government since the 
City of Owosso is part of the Shiawassee County Emergency Management Program.  This plan 
is to be used in conjunction with the Shiawassee Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) / 
Emergency Action Guidelines (EAG)s.   

 
2. SCOPE 
  

This operation plan is a flexible document in which changes from the content of the plan may 
occur due to unique nature of emergencies.  The plan and its annexes provide instructions for 
accomplishing assigned functions.  

 
 
3. SITUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 

A. The City of Owosso is located in the central part of the State of Michigan within Shiawassee 
County.  The city’s population is 15,186.  The City is 5.23 square miles centrally located in 
mid-Michigan 35 miles from the City of Lansing the State Capital. 

 
B. The City of Owosso is subject to a variety of natural hazards.  According to the county 

Hazard Vulnerability Analysis, the most likely and damaging of these include, but are not 
limited to: fires, flooding, storms, and tornadoes.  

 
C. Adjacent municipalities and other governments will render assistance in accordance with the 

provisions of intergovernmental and mutual aid support agreements in place at the time of 
the emergency. 

 
D. The City of Owosso has the capability and resources, which, if effectively employed, would 

minimize or eliminate the loss of life and damage to property in the event of an emergency 
or major disaster. When municipal resources are exhausted, the Shiawassee Emergency 
Management Agency will coordinate assistance and help satisfy unmet needs.  Similarly, if 
the county requires additional assistance, it will call on mutual aid from adjacent counties or 
from the State of Michigan through the Michigan Emergency Management Assistance 
Compact (MEMAC).  Ultimately, the State can ask other states through the Emergency 
Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) or the federal government for assistance in 
dealing with a major disaster or emergency. 

 
E. The City of Owosso Mayor or designee declares a local state of emergency and notifies the 

municipal Emergency Coordinator (EC) and the Shiawassee County Emergency 
Management Coordinator (EMC) of this decision. 

 
4. CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 

 
A. The City of Owosso is responsible for the protection of the lives and property of the citizens.  

It exercises primary supervision and control over the four phases of emergency 
management (mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery) and activities within the 
municipality and in coordination with and support of Shiawassee Emergency Management. 

 
B. The City Manager is ultimately responsible for emergency management activities within the 



7 

boundaries of the jurisdiction. This position can delegate their authority, but never their 
responsibility.  An Emergency Operation Center (EOC), located in the James Capitan 
Building, 149 E. Corunna Ave, Corunna Mi., has been designated by the municipality, and 
may be activated by the EC or the city manager during an emergency. The EOC will be 
staffed according to the level of emergency.  
 

C. This plan is based on the concept that the emergency functions assigned to the various 
groups, organizations, and individuals in this plan will parallel their normal day-to-day 
functions as closely as possible. The same personnel and material resources will be 
employed as much as possible in both normal and emergency functions.  

 
D. The EC and City Manager will develop mutual aid agreements with other municipalities 

within and outside of Shiawassee County for reciprocal emergency assistance as needed.   
 

E. Emergency response by the municipal government or its agents will follow procedures in 
support of the Shiawassee County Emergency Management Procedures.  

 
F. Public Safety agencies will respond and operate as required in accordance with the 

standards of the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as adopted under the 
Owosso City Council NIMS Resolution.  This includes institutionalizing the Incident 
Command Structure (ICS) for all response disciplines at incident locations to provide for an 
efficient response operation as well as establishing an efficient public information system 
within the structure. 

 
G. Emergency response by the City of Owosso or its agents will follow procedures in support of 

the Shiawassee County Emergency Management Procedures.  
 

H. The City of Owosso will coordinate and support emergency incident and management 
through the development and use of integrated multi-agency coordination systems, which 
includes maintaining connectivity capability between incident command posts (ICP), 911 
Centers, and Emergency Operations Centers.  

 
I. City of Owosso response personnel will be qualified to provide an adequate level of 

performance to continue the operations of the City and for public safety needs. 
 

 
5. CONTINUITY OF GOVERNMENT 

 
This plan is an all-hazards plan concerning all types of emergency situations.  It deals with the 
activities that occur before, during, and after the emergency operations.  These activities are 
accomplished by dividing emergency management activities info the following phases: 
mitigation, preparedness, response, and recover. 
 
A. Mitigation: Mitigation activities are any actions taken to prevent or reduce the occurrence of 

any emergency or risk to human life and property.  
 
B. Preparedness: Preparedness activities are any actions taken prior to the emergency that 

facilitates the implementation of a coordinated response.  
 
C. Response: Response activities are any actions taken immediately before, during or directly 

after an emergency to save lives, minimize damage to property, and increase effectiveness 
of recovery efforts.  : 

 
D. Recovery: Recovery is the phase that involves restoring systems to normal conditions.  

Short-term recovery actions are taken to assess damage and reestablish vital life-support 
systems; long-term recovery actions may continue for years.  



8 

 
 

6. EMERGENCY ACTION LEVELS (National Weather Service) 
 

A. Watch – All emergency personnel placed on standby. (Conditions are favorable for severe 
weather) 

 
B. Warning – Partial activation of EOC by emergency management personnel.  (Actual 

sighting, actually occurring). 
 

C. Impact – Full activation of EOC 
 
D. Recovery – Continued response activities as needed. 

 
 

7. ORGANIZATION AND ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 The City of Owosso incident management operations will be conducted in Shiawassee County 
Emergency Operations Center.  Operations will be in accordance with the National Incident 
Management System to ensure that adequate capabilities and resources are provided under a 
manageable span of control for incident operation needs.  The management structure will consist of 
the City Manager or designee as the lead incident manager with subordinate agencies and personnel 
performing operational support tasks.  Each agency required to provide support during emergency 
operations will conduct their duties to the best of their abilities which will derive from continuous 
training and participation in exercises.  The following section provides the responsibilities and 
assignments that the selected agencies and personnel should address in supporting the City of 
Owosso emergency operations.  Each will be required to report to the Shiawassee County 
Emergency Operation Center located at the James Capitan Center, 149 E. Corunna Ave, Corunna, 
Michigan 48817 

 
A. INCIDENT MANAGER 

 
City of Owosso City Manager / designee 
 
1.  Ensure incident management functions are in accordance with NIMS. 

 
 2.  Ensure compliance with this plan and the Shiawassee County EOP, and any   
  pertinent procedures and documents issued, which impact the provision of   
  emergency services in the City of Owosso.  
 
 3.  Issue local emergency declarations and notify the proper emergency management 
  coordinators of this action.  
 
 4.  Seek federal post-disaster funds if available.  
 
 5.  Provide for continuity of operations.  

 
City of Owosso Emergency Coordinator/Public Safety Chief 
 
1.  Prepares and maintains an emergency plan for the municipality subject to the direction 
of  the elected officials; reviews and updates as required.  
 
2.  Coordinates EOC response and recovery operations.  
 
3.  Ensures appropriate personnel have completed NIMS and ICS training to enhance multi-
 discipline and multi-jurisdictional coordination.  



9 

 
4.  Acts as a liaison with the Shiawassee County Emergency Management Director.  
 
 
B. PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER 
 
Public Information is responsible for interfacing with the public and media and/or with other 
agencies with incident related information.  The Public Information Officer (PIO) develops 
accurate and complete information on the incident’s cause, size, and current situation for internal 
and external needs.   
 
1.   Providing for the planning and dissemination of emergency information to the public. 
 
2.   Assists in implementing procedures for the communications and warning function. 
 
3.   Ensures ability to communicate between the municipality, field operations and the county 
   EMA.  
 
4.   Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency  
  management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 
 
5.   Coordinating information with neighboring municipalities and the county. 

 
C. OPERATIONS 
   

  The following departments are selected to provide incident management support in their 
functional area to emergency operations.  These departments provide support to all disaster and 
emergency types no matter the cause, size or location of the incident and in accordance to NIMS 
standards.  In addition, each will develop and maintain its own Standard Operating Guidelines 
(SOG), to provide the steps in completing functions and tasks. 

 
Public Safety- Fire Department  
 
1.  In cooperation with the city Emergency Coordinator, develops and maintains the 
 Implementing Procedures for the Fire & Rescue function.  
 
2.  Assists in the development, review and maintenance of the Shiawassee County EOP.  
 
3.  Coordinates fire and search and rescue services with appropriate personnel at the County 
 Emergency Management Agency.  
 
4.  Assumes primary responsibility for emergency alerting of the public.  
 
5.  Advises the Municipal Emergency Coordinator about fire and rescue activities.   
 
6.  Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency 
 management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 
 
 
Public Safety-Police Department  
 
1.  In cooperation with the city Emergency Coordinator, develops and maintains procedures for 
 the Police Services function.  
 
2.  Assists in the development, review and maintenance of the Shiawassee County EOP.  
 



10 

3.  Coordinates security and law enforcement services; with appropriate personnel at the County 
 Emergency Operations Center.  
 
4.  Provides traffic and access control in and around affected areas.  
 
5.  Assists with emergency alerting and notification of threatened population.  
 
6.  Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency 
 management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 
 
Public Safety- Ambulance Service  
 
1.  In cooperation with the city Emergency Coordinator, develops and maintains the 
 Implementing Procedures for the Health/Medical Services function. 
 
2.  Assists in the development, review and maintenance of the EOP. 
 
3.  Coordinates emergency medical activities within the municipality, and with appropriate 
 personnel from the County Emergency Management agency. 
 
4.  Coordinates institutional needs for transportation if evacuation or relocation becomes 
 necessary for hospitals, nursing homes, day care and adult care facilities. 
 
5.  Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency 
 management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 

 
  
 City of Owosso Public Works Department 
 
 1.    Restore vital facilities and public utilities. 
 
 2.    Provide traffic and access control equipment; 
 
 3.    Assist in establishing alternate evacuation routes.   
 
 4.    Provide for damage assessment for public property and certain non-profit organizations. 
 
 5.    Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency   
        management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 
 
 6.    Coordinate or direct the protective actions and restoration of public utilities and municipal      
        facilities. 
 

 
D. PLANNING 
 
Planning is responsible for collecting, evaluating, disseminating tactical information pertaining to 
the incident. 
 
City of Owosso Community Development Department  
 
1.    Collects, evaluates and provides information about the incident. 
 
2.    Determines need for resources and maintains status of resources. 
 
3.    Assists in reviewing and updating the operation plan.  



11 

 
 
4.    Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency   
       management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 

 
E. LOGISTICS 
 
Logistics provides the support needs for the incident, including providing facilities, transportation, 
supplies, equipment maintenance and fueling, food service, communications, and medical 
services for incident personnel.   
 
Should City of Owosso resources become exhausted, requests will made for assistance from 
other local jurisdictions, higher levels of government, and other agencies in accordance with 
existing mutual aid agreements and understandings and the Shiawassee County Emergency 
Operations. 
 
City of Owosso Finance Department 
 
1.     Provides materials, services and facilities in support of the emergency; 
 
2.     Develops procedures for rapidly ordering supplies and equipment and to track their 
delivery.  
 
3.     Provides proper record keeping of expenditures and obligations in emergency operations.   
 
4.     Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency  
        management and emergency response, planning, and procedures. 

 
City of Owosso Engineering Department 
 
1.    Coordinate provision of equipment and supplies from public and private sources and 
maintain 
       resource lists and contacts.   
 
2.    Identify and train personnel to assist in the development of damage assessment reports.  
 
3.    Make situation and damage reports to the EMC and assist in the assessment of damage by  
       local, state or county teams.   
 
4.    Attends training and workshops to maintain proficiency and currency in emergency  
       management and emergency response, planning and procedures.  

 
F. FINANCE/ADMINISTRATION 
 
Finance/administration handles the need for financial, reimbursement (individual and agency or 
department), and/or administrative services to support incident management activities. 
 
City of Owosso City Manager / designee 
 
1.   Authority to order any emergency purchase and/or authorize the contracting of any 
emergency  
     services required.  
 
2. Augment personnel to fill response shortfalls. 
 
 



12 

 
 
 
 
 
City of Owosso Finance Department 
 
1.   Maintains oversight of all financial and cost analysis activities associated with the 
emergency. 
 
2. Tracks costs and personnel time records. 

 
3. Coordinate with state and local mutual aid agreements to properly reimburse for expenses. 

 
 
8. COMMUNICATION 
 

Existing communications systems available to each agency will be used during emergency 
operations.  Telephones, regular and cell phone will be considered the primary direction and 
control communications.  Two-way radios will be used in the direction and control of operations 
where the use of the telephone is neither possible nor convenient.  In accordance with the NIMS, 
common terminology will be used instead of coded language when communicating amongst 
agencies. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
ACRONYMS 
 
ALS   Advanced Life Support 
DOC   Department Operations Center 
EMA  Emergency Management Agency 
EMAC  Emergency Management Assistance Compact 
EOC   Emergency Operations Center 
EOP  Emergency Operations Plan 
FOG   Field Operations Guide 
GIS   Geographic Information System 
HAZMAT  Hazardous Material 
HSPD-5  Homeland Security Presidential Directive-5 
IAP   Incident Action Plan 
IC   Incident Commander 
ICP   Incident Command Post 
ICS   Incident Command System 
IC or UC  Incident Command or Unified Command 
IMT   Incident Management Team 
JIS   Joint Information System 
JIC   Joint Information Center 
LNO   Liaison Officer 
MEMAC Michigan Emergency Management Assistance Compact 
NDMS   National Disaster Medical System 
NGO   Nongovernmental Organization 
NIMS   National Incident Management System 
NRP   National Response Plan 
POLREP  Pollution Report 
PIO   Public Information Officer 
PVO   Private Voluntary Organizations 
R&D   Research and Development 
RESTAT  Resources Status 
ROSS   Resource Ordering and Status System 
SDO   Standards Development Organizations 
SITREP  Situation Report 
SO   Safety Officer 
SOG  Standard Operating Guideline 
UC   Unified Command 
US&R   Urban Search and Rescue 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX B 
 
GLOSSARY 
 
Agency: A division of government with a specific function offering a particular kind of assistance. In ICS, 
agencies are defined either as jurisdictional (having statutory responsibility for incident management) or 
as assisting or cooperating (providing resources or other assistance). 
 
Agency Representative: A person assigned by a primary, assisting, or cooperating Federal, State, local, 
or tribal government agency or private entity that has been delegated authority to make decisions 
affecting that agency's or organization's participation in incident management activities following 
appropriate consultation with the leadership of that agency. 
 
Area Command (Unified Area Command): An organization established (1) to oversee the management 
of multiple incidents that are each being handled by an ICS organization or (2) to oversee the 
management of large or multiple incidents to which several Incident Management Teams have been 
assigned. Area Command has the responsibility to set overall strategy and priorities, allocate critical 
resources according to priorities, and ensure that 
incidents are properly managed, and ensure that objectives are met and strategies followed. Area 
Command becomes Unified Area Command when incidents are multi-jurisdictional. Area Command may 
be established at an emergency operations center facility or at some location other than an incident 
command post. 
 
Assessment: The evaluation and interpretation of measurements and other information to provide a 
basis for decision-making. 
 
Assignments: Tasks given to resources to perform within a given operational period that are based on 
operational objectives defined in the IAP. 
 
Assistant: Title for subordinates of principal Command Staff positions. The title indicates a level of 
technical capability, qualifications, and responsibility subordinate to the primary positions. Assistants may 
also be assigned to unit leaders. 
 
Assisting Agency: An agency or organization providing personnel, services, or other resources to the 
agency with direct responsibility for incident management. See also Supporting Agency. 
 
Available Resources: Resources assigned to an incident, checked in, and available for a mission 
assignment, normally located in a Staging Area. 
 
Branch: The organizational level having functional or geographical responsibility for major aspects of 
incident operations. A branch is organizationally situated between the section and the division or group in 
the Operations Section, and between the section and units in the Logistics Section. Branches are 
identified by the use of Roman numerals or by functional area. 
 
Chain of Command: A series of command, control, executive, or management positions in hierarchical 
order of authority. 
 



15 

Check-In: The process through which resources first report to an incident. Check-in locations include the 
incident command post, Resources Unit, incident base, camps, staging areas, or directly on the site. 
 
Chief: The ICS title for individuals responsible for management of functional sections: Operations, 
Planning, Logistics, Finance/Administration, and Intelligence (if established as a separate section). 
 
Command: The act of directing, ordering, or controlling by virtue of explicit statutory, regulatory, or 
delegated authority. 
Command Staff: In an incident management organization, the Command Staff consists of the Incident 
Command and the special staff positions of Public Information Officer, Safety Officer, Liaison Officer, 
and other positions as required, who report directly to the Incident Commander. They may have an 
assistant or assistants, as needed. 
 
Common Operating Picture: A broad view of the overall situation as reflected by situation reports, 
aerial photography, and other information or intelligence. 
 
Communications Unit: An organizational unit in the Logistics Section responsible for providing 
communication services at an incident or an EOC. A Communications Unit may also be a facility (e.g., a 
trailer or mobile van) used to support an Incident Communications Center.  
 
Cooperating Agency: An agency supplying assistance other than direct operational or support functions 
or resources to the incident management effort. 
 
Coordinate: To advance systematically an analysis and exchange of information among principals who 
have or may have a need to know certain information to carry out specific incident management 
responsibilities. 
 
Deputy: A fully qualified individual who, in the absence of a superior, can be delegated the authority to 
manage a functional operation or perform a specific task. In some cases, a deputy can act as relief for a 
superior and, therefore, must be fully qualified in the position. Deputies can be assigned to the Incident 
Commander, General Staff, and Branch Directors. 
 
Dispatch: The ordered movement of a resource or resources to an assigned operational mission or an 
administrative move from one location to another. 
 
Division: The partition of an incident into geographical areas of operation. Divisions are established 
when the number of resources exceeds the manageable span of control of the Operations Chief. A 
division is located within the ICS organization between the branch and resources in the Operations 
Section. 
 
Emergency: Absent a Presidential declared emergency, any incident(s), human-caused or natural, that 
requires responsive action to protect life or property. Under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and 
Emergency Assistance Act, an emergency means any occasion or instance for which, in the 
determination of the President, Federal assistance is needed to supplement State and local efforts and 
capabilities to save lives and to protect property and public health and safety, or to lessen or avert the 
threat of a catastrophe in any part o the United States. 
 
Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs): The physical location at which the coordination of information 
and resources to support domestic incident management activities normally takes place. An EOC may 
be a temporary facility or may be located in a more central or permanently established facility, perhaps 
at a higher level of organization within a jurisdiction. EOCs may be organized by major functional 
disciplines (e.g., fire, law enforcement, and medical services), by jurisdiction (e.g., Federal, State, 
regional, county, city, tribal), or some combination thereof. 
 



16 

Emergency Operations Plan: The "steady-state" plan maintained by various jurisdictional levels for 
responding to a wide variety of potential hazards. Emergency Public Information: Information that is 
disseminated primarily in anticipation of an emergency or during an emergency. In addition to providing 
situational information to the public, it also frequently provides directive actions required to be taken by 
the general public. 

 

Emergency Response Provider: Includes Federal, State, local, and tribal emergency public safety, law 
enforcement, emergency response, emergency medical (including hospital emergency facilities), and 
related personnel, agencies, and authorities. See Section 2 (6), Homeland Security Act of 2002, Pub. L. 
107-296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). Also known as Emergency Responder. 



17 

Evacuation: Organized, phased, and supervised withdrawal, dispersal, or removal of civilians from 
dangerous or potentially dangerous areas, and their reception and care in safe areas. 
 
Event: A planned, non-emergency activity. ICS can be used as the management system for a wide 
range of events, e.g., parades, concerts, or sporting events. 
 
Federal: Of or pertaining to the Federal Government of the United States of America. Function: 
Function refers to the five major activities in ICS: Command, Operations, Planning, Logistics, and 
Finance/Administration. The term function is also used when describing the activity involved, e.g., the 
planning function. A sixth function, Intelligence, may be established, if required, to meet incident 
management needs. 
 
General Staff: A group of incident management personnel organized according to function and reporting 
to the Incident Commander. The General Staff normally consists of the Operations Section Chief, 
Planning Section Chief, Logistics Section Chief, and Finance/Administration Section Chief. 
 
Group: Established to divide the incident management structure into functional areas of operation. 
Groups are composed of resources assembled to perform a special function not necessarily within a 
single geographic division. Groups, when activated, are located between branches and resources in the 
Operations Section. (See Division) 
 
Hazard: Something that is potentially dangerous or harmful, often the root cause of an unwanted 
outcome. 
 
Incident: An occurrence or event, natural or human-caused that requires an emergency response to 
protect life or property. Incidents can, for example, include major disasters, emergencies, terrorist 
attacks, terrorist threats, wild land and urban fires, floods, hazardous materials spills, nuclear accidents, 
aircraft accidents, earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, tropical storms, war-related disasters, public 
health and medical emergencies, and otheroccurrences requiring an emergency response. 
 
Incident Action Plan (IAP): An oral or written plan containing general objectives reflecting the overall 
strategy for managing an incident. It may include the identification of operational resources and 
assignments. It may also include attachments that provide direction and important information for 
management of the incident during one or more operational periods. 
 
Incident Command Post (ICP): The field location at which the primary tactical-level, on-scene incident 
command functions are performed. The ICP may be collocated with the incident base or other incident 
facilities and is normally identified by a green rotating or flashing light. 
 
Incident Command System (ICS): A standardized on-scene emergency management construct 
specifically designed to provide for the adoption of an integrated organizational structure that reflects the 
complexity and demands of single or multiple incidents, without being hindered by jurisdictional 
boundaries. ICS is the combination of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures, and communications 
operating within a common organizational structure, designed to aid in the management of resources 
during incidents. It is used for all kinds of emergencies and is applicable to small as well as large and 
complex incidents. ICS is used by various jurisdictions and functional agencies, both public and private, 
to organize field-level incident management operations. 
 
Incident Commander (IC): The individual responsible for all incident activities, including the 
development of strategies and tactics and the ordering and the release of resources. The IC has overall 
authority and responsibility for conducting incident operations and is responsible for the management of 
all incident operations at the incident site.  
 
Incident Management Team (IMT): The IC and appropriate Command and General Staff 
personnel assigned to an incident. 



18 

Incident Objectives: Statements of guidance and direction necessary for selecting appropriate 
strategy(s) and the tactical direction of resources. Incident objectives are based on realistic expectations 
of what can be accomplished when all allocated resources have been effectively deployed. Incident 
objectives must be achievable and measurable, yet flexible enough to allow strategic and tactical 
alternatives. 
 
Initial Action: The actions taken by those responders first to arrive at an incident site. 
 
Initial Response: Resources initially committed to an incident. 
 
Intelligence Officer: The intelligence officer is responsible for managing internal information, 
intelligence, and operational security requirements supporting incident management activities. These 
may include information security and operational security activities, as well as the complex task of 
ensuring that sensitive information of all types (e.g., classified information, law enforcement sensitive 
information, proprietary information, or export-controlled information) is handled in a way that not only 
safeguards the information, but also ensures that it gets to those who need access to it to perform their 
missions effectively and safely. 
 
Joint Information Center (JIC): A facility established to coordinate all incident-related public 
information activities. It is the central point of contact for all news media at the scene of the incident. 
Public information officials from all participating agencies should collocate at the JIC. 
 
Joint Information System (JIS): Integrates incident information and public affairs into a cohesive 
organization designed to provide consistent, coordinated, timely information during crisis or incident 
operations. The mission of the JIS is to provide a structure and system for developing and delivering 
coordinated interagency messages; developing, recommending, and executing public information plans 
and strategies on behalf of the IC; advising the IC concerning public affairs issues that could affect a 
response effort; and controlling rumors and inaccurate information that could undermine public 
confidence in the emergency response effort. 
 
Jurisdiction: A range or sphere of authority. Public agencies have jurisdiction at an incident related to 
their legal responsibilities and authority. Jurisdictional authority at an incident can be political or 
geographical (e.g., city, county, tribal, State, or Federal boundary lines) or functional (e.g., law 
enforcement, public health).  
 
Liaison: A form of communication for establishing and maintaining mutual understanding and 
cooperation. 
 
Liaison Officer: A member of the Command Staff responsible for coordinating with representatives from 
cooperating and assisting agencies. 
 
Local Government: A county, municipality, city, town, township, local public authority, school district, 
special district, intrastate district, council of governments (regardless of whether the council of 
governments is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under State law), regional or interstate 
government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local government; an Indian tribe or authorized tribal 
organization, or in Alaska a Native village or Alaska Regional Native Corporation; a rural community, 
unincorporated town or village, or other public entity. See Section 2 (10), Homeland Security Act of 2002, 
Pub. L. 107-296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). 
 
Logistics: Providing resources and other services to support incident management. 
 
Logistics Section: The section responsible for providing facilities, services, and material support for the 
incident. 
 



19 

Major Disaster: As defined under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act 
(42 U.S.C. 5122), a major disaster is any natural catastrophe (including any hurricane, tornado, storm, 
high water, wind-driven water, tidal wave, tsunami, earthquake, volcanic eruption, landslide, mudslide, 
snowstorm, or drought), or, regardless of cause, any fire, flood, or explosion, in any part of the United 
States, which in the determination of the President causes damage of sufficient severity and magnitude 
to warrant disaster assistance under this Act to supplement the efforts and available resources of States, 
tribes, local governments, and disaster relief organizations in alleviating the damage, loss, hardship, or 
suffering caused thereby. 
 
Management by Objective: A management approach that involves a four-step process for achieving 
the incident goal. The Management by Objectives approach includes the following: establishing 
overarching objectives; developing and issuing assignments, plans, procedures, and protocols; 
establishing specific, measurable objectives for various incident management functional activities and 
directing efforts to fulfill them, in support of defined strategic objectives; and documenting results to 
measure performance and facilitate corrective action. 
 
Mitigation: The activities designed to reduce or eliminate risks to persons or property or to lessen the 
actual or potential effects or consequences of an incident. Mitigation measures may be implemented 
prior to, during, or after an incident. Mitigation measures are often informed by lessons learned from prior 
incidents. Mitigation involves ongoing actions to reduce exposure to, probability of, or potential loss from 
hazards. Measures may include zoning and building codes, floodplain buyouts, and analysis of hazard 
related data to determine where it is safe to build or locate temporary facilities. Mitigation can include 
efforts to educate governments, businesses, and the public on measures they can take to reduce loss 
and injury. 
 
Mobilization: The process and procedures used by all organizations (Federal, State, local, and tribal) for 
activating, assembling, and transporting all resources that have been requested to respond to or support 
an incident. 
 
Multi-agency Coordination Entity: A multi-agency coordination entity functions within a broader Multi-
agency Coordination System. It may establish the priorities among incidents and associated resource 
allocations, deconflict agency policies, and provide strategic guidance and direction to support incident 
management activities. 
 
Multi-agency Coordination Systems: Multi-agency Coordination Systems provide the architecture to 
support coordination for incident prioritization, critical resource allocation, communications systems 
integration, and information coordination. The components of Multi-agency Coordination Systems include 
facilities, equipment, emergency operation centers (EOCs), specific multi-agency coordination entities, 
personnel, procedures, and 
communications. These systems assist agencies and organizations to fully integrate the subsystems of 
the NIMS. 
 
Multi-jurisdictional Incident: An incident requiring action from multiple agencies that each have 
jurisdiction to manage certain aspects of an incident. In ICS, these incidents will be managed under 
Unified Command. 
 
Mutual-Aid Agreement: Written agreement between agencies and/or jurisdictions that they will assist 
one another on request, by furnishing personnel, equipment, and/or expertise in a specified manner. 
 
National: Of a nationwide character, including the Federal, State, local, and tribal aspects of governance 
and polity. 
 
National Disaster Medical System: A cooperative, asset-sharing partnership between the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security, and the U.S. Department of Defense. NDMS provides resources for 
meeting the continuity of care and mental health services requirements of the Emergency Support 
Function 8 in the Federal Response Plan. 



20 

National Incident Management System: A system mandated by HSPD-5 that provides a consistent 
nationwide approach for Federal, State, local, and tribal governments; the private-sector, and 
nongovernmental organizations to work effectively and efficiently together to prepare for, respond to, and 
recover from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size, or complexity. To provide for interoperability 
and compatibility among Federal, State, local, and tribal capabilities, the NIMS includes a core set of 
concepts, principles, and terminology. HSPD-5 identifies these as the ICS; Multi-agency Coordination 
Systems; training; identification and management of resources (including systems for classifying types of 
resources); qualification and certification; and the collection, tracking, and reporting of incident 
information and incident resources. 
 
National Response Plan: A plan mandated by HSPD-5 that integrates Federal domestic prevention, 
preparedness, response, and recovery plans into one all-discipline, all-hazards plan. 
 
Nongovernmental Organization: An entity with an association that is based on interests of its 
members, individuals, or institutions and that is not created by a government, but may work 
cooperatively with government. Such organizations serve a public purpose, not a private benefit. 
Examples of NGOs include faith-based charity organizations and the American Red Cross. 
 
Operational Period: The time scheduled for executing a given set of operation actions, as specified in 
the Incident Action Plan. Operational periods can be of various lengths, although usually not over 24 
hours. 
 
Operations Section: The section responsible for all tactical incident operations. In ICS, it normally 
includes subordinate branches, divisions, and/or groups. 
 
Personnel Accountability: The ability to account for the location and welfare of incident personnel. It is 
accomplished when supervisors ensure that ICS principles and processes are functional and that 
personnel are working within established incident management guidelines. 
 
Planning Meeting: A meeting held as needed prior to and throughout the duration of an incident to 
select specific strategies and tactics for incident control operations and for service and support planning. 
For larger incidents, the planning meeting is a major element in the development of the Incident Action 
Plan (IAP). 
 
Planning Section: Responsible for the collection, evaluation, and dissemination of operational 
information related to the incident, and for the preparation and documentation of the IAP. This section 
also maintains information on the current and forecasted situation and on the status of resources 
assigned to the incident. 
 
Preparedness: The range of deliberate, critical tasks and activities necessary to build, sustain, and 
improve the operational capability to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover from domestic 
incidents. Preparedness is a continuous process. Preparedness involves efforts at all levels of 
government and between government and private-sector and nongovernmental organizations to identify 
threats, determine vulnerabilities, and identify required resources. Within the NIMS, preparedness is 
operationally focused on establishing guidelines, protocols, and standards for planning, training and 
exercises, personnel qualification and certification, equipment certification, and publication management. 
 
Preparedness Organizations: The groups and fora that provide interagency coordination for domestic 
incident management activities in a non-emergency context. Preparedness organizations can include all 
agencies with a role in incident management, for prevention, preparedness, response, or recovery 
activities. They represent a wide variety of committees, planning groups, and other organizations that 
meet and coordinate to ensure the proper level of planning, training, equipping, and other preparedness 
requirements within a jurisdiction or area. 
 



21 

Prevention: Actions to avoid an incident or to intervene to stop an incident from occurring. Prevention 
involves actions to protect lives and property. It involves applying intelligence and other information to a 
range of activities that may include such countermeasures as deterrence operations; heightened 
inspections; improved surveillance and security operations; investigations to determine the full nature 
and source of the threat; public health and agricultural surveillance and testing processes; 
immunizations, isolation, or quarantine; and, as appropriate, specific law enforcement operations aimed 
at deterring, preempting, interdicting, or disrupting illegal activity and apprehending potential perpetrators 
and bringing them to justice. 
 
Private Sector: Organizations and entities that are not part of any governmental structure. It includes 
for-profit and not-for-profit organizations, formal and informal structures, commerce and industry, and 
private voluntary organizations (PVO). 
 
Processes: Systems of operations that incorporate standardized procedures, methodologies, and 
functions necessary to provide resources effectively and efficiently. These include resource typing, 
resource ordering and tracking, and coordination. 
 
Public Information Officer: A member of the Command Staff responsible for interfacing with the public 
and media or with other agencies with incident-related information requirements. 
 
Publications Management: The publications management subsystem includes materials development, 
publication control, publication supply, and distribution. The development and distribution of NIMS 
materials is managed through this subsystem. Consistent documentation is critical to success, because it 
ensures that all responders are familiar with the documentation used in a particular incident regardless of 
the location or the responding agencies involved. 
 
Qualification and Certification: This subsystem provides recommended qualification and certification 
standards for emergency responder and incident management personnel. It also allows the development 
of minimum standards for resources expected to have an interstate application. Standards typically 
include training, currency, experience, and physical and medical fitness. 
 
Reception Area: This refers to a location separate from staging areas, where resources report in for 
processing and out-processing. Reception Areas provide accountability, security, situational awareness 
briefings, safety awareness, distribution of IAPs, supplies and equipment, feeding, and bed down. 
 
Recovery: The development, coordination, and execution of service- and site-restoration plans; the 
reconstitution of government operations and services; individual, private sector, non-governmental and 
public-assistance programs to provide housing and to promote restoration; long-term care and treatment 
of affected persons; additional measures for social, political, environmental, and economic restoration; 
evaluation of the incident to identify lessons learned; post-incident reporting; and development of 
initiatives to mitigate the effects of future incidents. 
 
Recovery Plan: A plan developed by a State, local, or tribal jurisdiction with assistance from responding 
Federal agencies to restore the affected area. 
 
Resources: Personnel and major items of equipment, supplies, and facilities available or potentially 
available for assignment to incident operations and for which status is maintained. Resources are 
described by kind and type and may be used in operational support or supervisory capacities at an 
incident or at an EOC. 
 
Resource Management: Efficient incident management requires a system for identifying available 
resources at all jurisdictional levels to enable timely and unimpeded access to resources needed to 
prepare for, respond to, or recover from an incident. Resource management under the NIMS includes 
mutual-aid agreements; the use of special Federal, State, local, and tribal teams; and resource 
mobilization protocols. 



22 

Resources Unit: Functional unit within the Planning Section responsible for recording the status of 
resources committed to the incident. This unit also evaluates resources currently committed to the 
incident, the effects additional responding resources will have on the incident, and anticipated resource 
needs. 
 
Response: Activities that address the short-term, direct effects of an incident. Response includes 
immediate actions to save lives, protect property, and meet basic human needs. Response also includes 
the execution of emergency operations plans and of mitigation activities designed to limit the loss of life, 
personal injury, property damage, and other unfavorable outcomes. As indicated by the situation, 
response activities include applying intelligence and other information to lessen the effects or 
consequences of an incident; increased security operations; continuing investigations into nature and 
source of the threat; ongoing public health and agricultural surveillance and testing processes; 
immunizations, isolation, or quarantine; and specific law enforcement operations aimed at preempting, 
interdicting, or disrupting illegal activity, and apprehending actual perpetrators and bringing them to 
justice. 
 
Safety Officer: A member of the Command Staff responsible for monitoring and assessing safety 
hazards or unsafe situations and for developing measures for ensuring personnel safety. 
 
Section: The organizational level having responsibility for a major functional area of incident 
management, e.g., Operations, Planning, Logistics, Finance/Administration, and Intelligence (if 
established). The section is organizationally situated between the branch and the Incident Command. 
 
Span of Control: The number of individuals a supervisor is responsible for, usually expressed as the 
ratio of supervisors to individuals. (Under the NIMS, an appropriate span of control is between 1:3 and 
1:7.) 
 
Staging Area: Location established where resources can be placed while awaiting a tactical assignment. 
The Operations Section manages Staging Areas. 
 
State: When capitalized, refers to any State of the United States, the District of Columbia, the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the Commonwealth of the 
Northern Mariana Islands, and any possession of the United States. See Section 2 (14), Homeland 
Security Act of 2002, Pub. L. 107-296, 116 Stat. 2135 (2002). 
 
Strategic: Strategic elements of incident management are characterized by continuous long-term, high-
level planning by organizations headed by elected or other senior officials. These elements involve the 
adoption of long-range goals and objectives, the setting of priorities; the establishment of budgets and 
other fiscal decisions, policy development, and the application of measures of performance or 
effectiveness. 
 
Strike Team: A set number of resources of the same kind and type that have an established minimum 
number of personnel.  
 
Strategy: The general direction selected to accomplish incident objectives set by the IC. 
 
Supporting Technologies: Any technology that may be used to support the NIMS is included in this 
subsystem. These technologies include orthophoto mapping, remote automatic weather stations, infrared 
technology, and communications, among various others. 
 
Task Force: Any combination of resources assembled to support a specific mission or operational need. 
All resource elements within a Task Force must have common communications and a designated leader. 
 



23 

Technical Assistance: Support provided to State, local, and tribal jurisdictions when they have the 
resources but lack the complete knowledge and skills needed to perform a required activity (such as 
mobile-home park design and hazardous material assessments). 

Terrorism: Under the Homeland Security Act of 2002, terrorism is defined as activity that involves an 
act dangerous to human life or potentially destructive of critical infrastructure or key resources and is a 
violation of the criminal laws of the United States or of any State or other subdivision of the United 
States in which it occurs and is intended to intimidate or coerce the civilian population or influence a 
government or affect the conduct of a government by mass destruction, assassination, or kidnapping. 
See Section 2 (15), Homeland Security Act of 2002, Pub. L. 107-296, 116 Stat. 213 5 (2002). 

Threat: An indication of possible violence, harm, or danger. 

Tools: Those instruments and capabilities that allow for the professional performance of tasks, such as 
information systems, agreements, doctrine, capabilities, and legislative authorities. 

Tribal: Any Indian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or community, including any Alaskan 
Native Village as defined in or established pursuant to the Alaskan Native Claims Settlement Act (85 
stat. 688) [43 U.S.C.A. and 1601 et seq.], that is recognized as eligible for the special programs and 
services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians. 

Type: A classification of resources in the ICS that refers to capability. Type 1 is generally considered to 
be more capable than Types 2, 3, or 4, respectively, because of size; power; capacity; or, in the case of 
incident management teams, experience and qualifications. 

Unified Area Command: A Unified Area Command is established when incidents under an Area 
Command are multi-jurisdictional. (See Area Command.) 

Unified Command: An application of ICS used when there is more than one agency with incident 
jurisdiction or when incidents cross-political jurisdictions. Agencies work together through the designated 
members of the UC, often the senior person from agencies and/or disciplines participating in the UC, to 
establish a common set of objectives and strategies and a single IAP. 

Unit: The organizational element having functional responsibility for a specific incident planning, 
logistics, or finance/administration activity. 

Unity of Command: The concept by which each person within an organization reports to one and only 
one designated person. The purpose of unity of command is to ensure unity of effort under one 
responsible commander for every objective. 

Volunteer: For purposes of the NIMS, a volunteer is any individual accepted to perform services by the 
lead agency, which has authority to accept volunteer services, when the individual performs services 
without promise, expectation, or receipt of compensation for services performed. See, e.g., 16 U.S.C. 
742f(c) and 29 CFR 553.101. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

DATE: December 11, 2019 
 
TO: City Council   
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Water & Sewer Charges & Miscellaneous Water Service Charges for 2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adoption of revised water and sewer connection charges and miscellaneous charges beginning January 1, 2021.     
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The proposed charges as attached reflect current market pricing for year ending 2020.  The last update was 
effective October 1, 2019, approved by city council on September 16, 2019. 
 
Water and Sewer Connection Charges (Resolution No.1) 
      - Water and Sewer System Charge revisions hereby requested are: 
              Item I. (c):  Added Note clarifying waiver of fees for new construction Osburn Lakes lots.      
              Item II. (c):  Added Note clarifying waiver of fees for new construction Osburn Lakes lots.  
   Item III. (Table I):  Added 10" meter to system charges   
   Item VI.  Hydrant Flow Data Requests:  Increase rates for water modeling from $135.00 to $150.00, 
                              and actual flow rate analysis (field Test) from $270.00 to $290.00 to reflect  current costs of 
                              providing these services.    
 
      - Miscellaneous Water Service Charges revisions hereby requested are: (Resolution No.2) 
             Item VII. (a) & (b):  Increased Customer Deposits from $225.00 to $245.00 to reflect water & sewer 
                                              rate increase, and to maintain a minimum requirement based on historical 
                                              delinquent accounts.  
                                    
All other charges applicable to Resolutions (1) and (2) are consistent with cost of services provided and market 
rates.  No further increases recommend at this time.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
These charges are necessary to recoup material and labor costs, and to maintain reserve system capacity 
connection charges in accordance with best business practices, regulatory and American Water Works 
Association standards. 
 
Document originated by:  Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities  
  
Attachment/s:  (1) Resolution for Water & Sewer Connection Charges 
  (2) Resolution for Miscellaneous Water Service Charges 

 
 
 
 



   
RESOLUTION NO. 

 
ESTABLISHMENT OF WATER AND SEWER CONNECTION CHARGE POLICIES   

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2021 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso owns and operates water and wastewater utilities; 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso must have policies and water and sewer connection charges in addition to the basic rates 
pursuant to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso, Michigan Sec. 34-67 (Water service connections, connection 
charges), and Sec. 34-144 (sewer connection charges); 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan that: 
 
FIRST:  The city council hereby adopts the following connection charges for the water utility which shall become 

effective January 1, 2021. 
 
SECOND: That any policies previously adopted which conflict with the provisions of the following policies and services 

are hereby repealed. 
 

WATER AND SEWER CONNECTION CHARGES 
 

Water and sewer connection charges for new or increased size services are a combination of the applicable charges 
appearing below.  The Director of Public Services & Utilities shall verify the applicable charges before approving an 
application for service.  The applicant shall provide adequate information concerning water and sewer service 
requirements for the determination of service size.  
 
I.  Water Service Line Charges  
 

a) Option 1 - Contractor for owner provides all excavation, backfill and surface restoration. City performs tap and 
installs water service from main to curb stop and provides meter for interior installation. (SFR = single family 
residence) (DI = Ductile Iron Water Main)  (PVC = C900 Water Main).  

  
1” SFR Service DI $1,315 (1” tap, 1” corp, 1” copper to curb stop, curb stop, curb box, 5/8” meter)  
1” SFR Service DI $1,355 (1” tap, 1” corp, 1” copper to curb stop, curb stop, curb box, 3/4” meter)  
1” SFR Service PVC  $1,410 (1” tap, 1” saddle, 1” copper to curb stop, curb stop, curb box, 5/8” meter)  
1” SFR Service PVC  $1,450 (1” tap, 1” saddle, 1” copper to curb stop, curb stop, curb box, 3/4" meter)  
 
Other services:  If meter pit, add $125.00 parts and labor. 

 
b) Option 2 – City provides excavation, backfill and surface restoration, including street patch, from tap to curb stop, 

and/or when service line is installed by boring or directional drilling. This option is generally only available for in 
city customers.  

 
1” SRF Service DI $3,525  (1” tap, 1” copper to curb stop, 5/8” meter)  
1” SRF Service DI $3,565  (1” tap, 1” copper to curb stop, 3/4” meter)  
1” SRF Service PVC $3,620  (1” tap, 1” copper to curb stop, 5/8” meter)   
1” SRF Service PVC $3,660  (1” tap, 1” copper to curb stop, 3/4” meter)  
 
Other services:  If meter pit, add $125.00 parts and labor. 
 

c) Option 3 – Connection to existing water service stub (at property line), if stub was provided at City cost (such 
water service stubs are typically installed during new street and/or water main construction).   

 
1” SRF Service      $1,250.00 (5/8” meter, MTU, meter horn, curb box, material, labor, equipment, all fees)   
1” SRF Service      $1,285.00 (3/4” meter, MTU, meter horn, curb box, material, labor, equipment, all fees) 
1” SRF Service      $1,365.00 (1.0” meter, MTU, meter horn, curb box, material, labor, equipment, all fees)     
 Note:  Above fees previously included in lot price for Osburn Lakes Development 
 

d) Additional charges if applicable: 
 
Meter pit (for ¾” to 1” services)  $125 (parts and labor when interior meter set is not feasible) 



Winter construction surcharge  $300 (applicable generally between December 15 to March 15 to cover 
additional costs related to frost excavation and extended street patch 
maintenance prior to final patch)  

 
II.  Sewer Service Line Charge  

 
a) Option 1 - Contractor for owner provides all excavation, backfill and surface restoration 
  

4” or 6” service  $330 (parts and labor covers sewer wye or saddle tap by city) 
 
 b) Option 2 – Connection to existing sewer service stub to vacant lot, if stub was provided at City cost (such stubs 

are typically done prior to street construction).  
 

4” or 6” service  $1,000   
  Note: Above fees previously included in lot price for Osburn Lakes Development 
 

III.   Water & Sewer System Charges 
 
System Charges as provided in the table below account for water or sewer system reserve capacity provided for new 
customers but financed at system expense.  
 
Out of Town Water System Charges apply to retail customers outside the Owosso City Limits unless otherwise provided 
in an agreement between the City and the respective municipality. City Sewer System Charges do not apply to out-of-
town water services. The respective Township regulates sewer service connections in their jurisdiction and their sewer 
charges thus apply. 
 
Sewer System Charges do not apply to separate water only metered services such as irrigation, fire sprinkler service, or 
approved industrial applications where the water used does not go to a wastewater system.  
 
A residential duplex served by a single service line and meter shall have a minimum meter size of ¾”. Determination of 
appropriate meter size for other larger services is subject to review and approval by the Director of Utilities prior to 
acceptance of the application for service. That review shall be based on the user’s demand potential and generally 
accepted practices for sizing water meters based on expected average and peak flow rates. Generally, the meter size 
shall be reduced no more than one standard size from the size of the water line (e.g. a 1.5” meter is acceptable with a 2” 
service line).  
 
When an existing water service is enlarged or replaced with a larger water service due to an expansion of the customer’s 
water demand, the Water and Sewer System charges shall be charged based on that for the new meter size minus that 
for the existing water meter size. There is no credit or rebate on reduction of meter size.  In the event a new connection is 
made to up-size the service line (for example 6” to 8”) and the meter size remains the same, no additional system charges 
will be assessed. 
 

WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CHARGE TABLE I 
 
                Potable Water Service Water System Charge Sewer System Charge 
             Meter Size In Town Out of Town In Town 
      
             5/8”       $400           $600       $400  
            3/4"      $600           $900      $600  
           1"    $1,000        $1,500     $1,000  
           1.5"    $2,000        $3,000     $2,000  
          2"    $3,200        $4,800     $3,200  
          3"    $6,000        $9,000    $6,000  
          4"  $10,000      $15,000   $10,000  
          6"  $20,000      $30,000   $20,000  
                               8”                                                     $32,000           $48,000                $32,000 
                              10”      $46,000     $69,000                $46,000 
 
 
 

 
     



  FIRE SERVICE LINE CHARGES TABLE II   
  4"  $        1,000   $       1,500   
  6"  $        2,000   $       3,000   
  6" with pump  $        4,000   $       6,000   
  8"  $        4,000   $       6,000   
  8" with pump  $        6,000   $       9,000   
  10"  $        6,000   $       9,000   
  10" with pump  $        8,000   $     12,000   
  12"  $        8,000   $     12,000   
  12" with pump  $      10,000   $     15,000   
 
 
IV.  Water Main Assessment Charge (Out of City) 
 
For properties outside the City, that were not assessed or did not pay in a comparable way for the installation of the water 
main abutting their property, a Water Main Assessment Charge (WMAC) shall be paid prior to connection. This 
assessment is currently applicable to the Charter Townships of Owosso and Caledonia.  Caledonia Charter Township 
opted out of the WMAC effective October 6, 2011, and then reinstated the charges beginning January 1, 2019.   
 

Owosso Township cost per front linear foot of property  Minimum  Maximum  
 

Water (residential) $15      $900   $3,000 
 

Water (commercial $20      $2,000  
             or industrial) 
 
 Caledonia Township cost per front foot of property   

 
Water (all accounts) $35    None  None 

 
For corner lots the assessment applies only to the frontage abutting the water main to be used for the service connection. 
 
Water Main Assessment Charge revenue shall be dedicated and restricted to a replacement fund to be used for water 
main replacements in the respective Township.   
 
V.  Meter Service Line Charge 
 
These charges apply in cases where only the cost of meter installation is required for a new water meter and account. The 
charge includes costs of water meter, meter transmission unit (MTU), couplings/horn, service vehicle, one-hour meter 
installation and inspection, permit fee, and administration fee for 5/8”, 3/4”, and 1” meters only.  A licensed plumber may 
be required to make interior piping changes.    
 

5/8” meter $455      1.0” meter $560   
3/4" meter $485   
 

Meters larger than 1” will be charged at actual cost and be installed by a licensed contractor. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF MISCELLANEOUS WATER POLICY AND SERVICE CHARGES   
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso owns and operates water and wastewater utilities; 
 
Whereas, the city of Owosso must have policies and service charges in addition to the basic rates 
pursuant to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso, Michigan Sec. 34-79. Additional regulations 
and Sec. 34-81 Rules, regulations and fees; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 
FIRST:  The city council hereby adopts the following policies and service charges for the water utility 

which shall become effective January 1, 2021. 
 
SECOND: That any policies previously adopted which conflict with the provisions of the following 

policies and services are hereby repealed. 
 
I. Service Costs – Customer Request for Turn-on/off of Water Service 
 
 a. There shall be no service charge for routine turn-on or turn-off of a water service during normal 

working hours or for an emergency after-hours call.  Normal work hours are 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 
p.m. Monday-Friday excluding holidays.  An emergency is a situation such as a ruptured water 
service line that would result in significant loss of water and/or property damage and is not due to 
negligence or fault of the customer. 

 
b. A $30.00 service charge shall apply for return appointments during normal work hours when 

required by the customer's failure to keep a previous service appointment.  (Note: A water service 
will not be turned on unless a responsible person is present who can verify that there are no leaks 
in the internal plumbing.)  

 
c. A $30.00 service charge shall no longer apply for seasonal meter turn-on and account activation 

(during normal working hours only).  Quarterly Readiness to Service charges shall continue to be 
billed.   

 
d. A $60.00 service charge shall apply for after-hours, non-emergency customer-requested and 

scheduled service calls up to one hour in duration.  After-hours service exceeding one hour 
and/or requiring more than one employee will be charged the actual cost. 

 
II.  Service Costs - Customer Request for RPZ (reduced pressure zone) Backflow Inspection  
 
 a. Initial compliance inspections and noncompliance inspections are at no charge to the customer.   
 

b. If additional inspections are necessary, a $30.00 re-inspection fee for each additional inspection 
will be added to the water bill. 

 
III. Service Costs - Nonpayment of Water and/or Sewer Bills by Due Date 
 

a. A $30.00 service charge shall be applied when payment is not received by the shut-off due date, 
and the past due account was added to the shut-off listing.      

 



b. An additional $30.00 service charge shall be paid prior to turning on a water service, which was 
turned off for nonpayment, if such turn-on request would occur after 5:00 p.m. on a normal 
working day.   

 
 c. A $25.00 service charge shall be paid for returned payments (for any reason), for account holders 

having insufficient funds. A $35.00 service charge shall be paid if the returned payment amount is 
not repaid within seven days of notification.  

 
IV. Water Service Permit  
 
 a. A permit processing fee of $30.00 will be required for all new services requested.  
 
V. Hydrant Use Requests 
 

a. Contractors and special projects.  A $1,000 service charge will be required at time of permit 
application.  This fee includes the minimum charge of $50.00 for 5,000 bulk gallons of water, plus 
additional charges of $10.00 per 1,000 gallons, or fraction thereof, consumed greater than the 
minimum quantity.  Owosso water system personnel will attach a water meter and RPZ backflow 
preventer to the hydrant for contractor use.  If the water meter and RPZ are returned in good 
operating condition, the contractor will receive a $450.00 refund, less charges for additional water 
consumed greater than the minimum quantity.  Hydrant meters will not be provided from 
December 1 and March 31, unless the contractor can provide acceptable protection of equipment 
during freezing temperatures. 

  
b. Resident pool filling.  Minimum charge for the filling of pools is $300.00, and includes the first 

5,000 gallons of water.  A $10.00-per-1,000 gallons, or fraction thereof, will be charged after the 
first 5,000 gallons.      

     
VI. Hydrant Flow Data Requests 
 

a. The charge for water distribution modeling data (average day psi, max day psi, peak hour psi, 
and available fire flow in gallons per minute/GPM @ residual pressure of 20 psi) is $150.00.   

 
 b. The charge for actual field flow data & psi testing will be $290.00. This field work does not 
  include providing distribution modeling data.  
 
VII. Customer Deposits  
 
 a. Deposit for in-city-of-Owosso tenant accounts is $245.00.  
 
 b. Deposit for all accounts outside the city of Owosso is $245.00. 



 301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0570  ·  FAX (989) 723-8854 

MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  12/21/20 

TO:  City Council 

FROM:  Nathan Henne, City Manager 
Cheryl Grice, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: General City employees pay Increase request and 
MML study pay increase request to meet minimum pay range  

The FY2020-21 did not include a wage increase for the general city employees.  Due to 
the uncertainty of the covid situation and its unknown impact on the economy, we 
budgeted very conservatively. At this time we would like to implement a 2% raise for 
these employees in January 2021.  The increase reflects the city’s commitment to 
providing competitive salaries for our employees.   

We are also requesting that the balance of the MML study be implemented.  The 
FY2020-21 budget only included 50% of the recommended increase to meet the 
minimum recommended pay range for 7 employees.   

Fiscal Impact: Cost would come out of assigned fund balance. 

   2% Increase          MML Study Increase and Change (7 employees) 

General Fund    $ 12,530 $9,854 

Other Funds             $  5,633 $ 3,818 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO. 

AUTHORIZING A PAY RAISE AND MINIMUM RECOMMENDED PAY RANGE
FOR GENERAL CITY NON-UNION EMPLOYEES 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 10, 2021 

WHEREAS, the city wishes to provide competitive salaries for its employees; and 

WHEREAS, the city employed the Michigan Municipal League to conduct a wage study General City 
Non-Union employees and discovered that seven employees did not meet the minimum recommended 
pay range; and 

WHEREAS, the Owosso City Council adopted the 2020-2021 budget on June 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, said budget did not include a pay raise for General City Non-Union Employees due to the 
unknown costs of the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the pandemic has been less than anticipated to date. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 

FIRST: a 2% pay increase is hereby instituted for General City Employees, effective the first full 
pay period in January 2021. 

SECOND: the wages of the seven underpaid employees be increased to meet the minimum 
recommended pay range as noted in the MML study effective the first full pay period in 
January 2021. 

THIRD: funds shall come from the following accounts as noted: 
General Fund $22,384.00 
Other Funds $9,451.00 



MEMORANDUM 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

December 1, 2020 

Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 

Owosso Historical Commission 

OHC/CCM Contract for Executive Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Independent Contractor Agreement with Albert Martenis for Owosso Historical Commission 
Executive Director.   

BACKGROUND: 

In February, 2019 the OHC hired Mr. Martenis on an 11 month contract to serve as the Executive 
Director.  That agreement has recently expired and the OHC would like to increase Mr. Martenis’ pay and 
extend the contract term from 11 months to 18 months.   

The Owosso Historical Commission (OHC) and Castle City Museums (CCM) Board’s approval of the 17% 

increase from the previous contract was based on the fact that the Executive Director (ED) job description 
was expanded to include a dual role – that is, the ED will now be responsible for duties required for the 
success of both OHC and CCM. This scope increase follows the OHC vote at the 11/9/20 OHC meeting 
to have one set of members constitute both the OHC as well as the CCM Board. In addition, the 
OHC/CCM Board and the ED created and approved a list of income and fundraising plans that will that 
will tracked to assure the 17% increase ($5000) on an annual basis will not draw down the OHC fund 
balance for the remainder of the 2020-2021 fiscal year or the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 

The OHC/CCM Board’s approval of the longer term contract was based on the fact that continuity in the 
ED role is especially critical over the next 18 months. Specifically and primarily, the every other year 
home tour fundraiser will happen in fall 2021 with expanded scope and activities, the millage funding 
Capital Improvement Plan spending will be in high gear for the next several months, new displays and 
experiences at the Castle with a plan to “keep them fresh” will be rolled out, the non-profit bylaws and 
policies will come on line starting in January 2021 with the attendant training  and implementation 
knowledge that our current ED (Albert Martenis) has. Secondarily, and in addition, the OHC/CCM Board 
has decided to do longer range planning to increase income and fundraising over the long term and 
believes that if the OHC/CCM Board’s financial planning cycle is aligned to the City’s financial planning 
cycle, the communication and commitment to agreed upon financial goals will be more efficient. The 
move to a fiscal year-based contract for the ED is a one-time event; the current plan is for contracts to be 
one year (July 1 to June 30 each year). 

FISCAL IMPACTS TO CITY: 

The City currently allocates $40,000 to the OHC for FY 2020-21.  That will remain unchanged until the next 
budget is adopted.  It is unclear what the contribution to the OHC will be in future years. 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
OWOSSO HISTORICAL COMMISSION, ALBERT MARTENIS, AND THE CITY OF 

OWOSSO 
 
WHEREAS, the Independent Contractor Agreement between the OHC and Albert Martenis expires in 
December, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the OHC has approved another Independent Contractor Agreement with Mr. Martenis for 18 
months at a rate of $32,000 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 1 , 2020 the City of Owosso has budgeted a contribution to the OHC for salaries and 
wages in the amount of $40,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso has partnered with the OHC to manage certain historical city-owned 
properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the OHC is expected to balance and supplement their budget through fundraising activities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 
in the form attached, Independent Contractor Agreement between the Owosso Historical 
Commission and Albert Martenis up to the amount of $32,000 annually for a period of 18 
months. 

 
 
  
 
 



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE  
OWOSSO HISTORICAL COMMISSION/CASTLE CITY MUSEUMS 

 and  
ALBERT MARTENIS III 

 
 
THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is between Owosso Historical Commission 
(OHC) and Castle City Museums Board (CCMB), a Michigan municipal corporation and 501(c)3 non-profit organization 
respectively, both of which have a principal place of business at 301 West Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867, and 
Albert Martenis III, (“Albert”) a Michigan resident which has a principal residency at 718 W. Oliver, Owosso, MI 48867. 
For purposes of this Agreement, the combined OHC/CCMB will be referred to as “OHC”. 
 
 WHEREAS the OHC Board and Albert Martenis III, wish to enter into an independent contractor relationship 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth in this Agreement, the 
adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement will become effective when signed by both parties; provided, 
however, that Albert acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject to and conditional upon 
approval by a majority vote of the Owosso Historical Commission (“OHC”).  This Agreement shall begin on 
1-1-2021 and end on 6-30-2022 unless terminated prior to 6-30-2022 per Section 13 hereof. 
 

2. Services to be Performed.  Albert agrees to provide the services of the Executive Director according to the 
OHC approved position description and OHC approved results/planning documents provided separately.  

 
a. There will be bi-annual ED appraisals, led by the F&G Committee, and conducted by the OHC 

Chair. 
b. The appraisal criteria will be the role/job description and the results/planning table line items. 
c. Both the role/job description and the results/planning table may be updated during the term of this 

Agreement upon acceptance by of the OHC/CCM Board and the ED and so the role/job description 
and the results /planning table if effect at the time of the appraisal will be used for the appraisal. 

  
 3. Independent Contractor Status.  The parties agree that Albert is an independent contractor, and that Albert 
is not deemed to be an employee of the City of Owosso (City).  In his capacity as an independent contractor, Albert agrees 
to and represents the following: 
 

a. Albert has the right to perform services for third parties during the term of this Agreement, so long as they do 
not conflict with the duties that Albert is performing for the OHC hereunder. 

 
b. The services required hereunder must be performed to the satisfaction of the OHC; provided, however, that 

the means, manner, and method by which the services will be performed will be determined by the OHC-
assigned functional supervisor. 

 
c. The services required by this Agreement shall be performed by Albert, and the OHC shall not hire, supervise, 

or pay any assistants to help Albert. 
 

d. Albert shall receive coaching and mentoring from the OHC-named functional supervisor in the professional 
skills necessary to perform the services required by this Agreement. 

 
e. Albert shall be required by the OHC to devote less than full time to the performance of the roles and services 

defined in the role description attached to this Agreement. 
 
 The parties acknowledge and agree that the OHC is entering into this Agreement with reliance on the 
representations made by Albert relative to his independent contractor status. 
 



 4. Payment.  In consideration for all the services to be performed by Albert beginning 1-1-2021 and ending 12-
31-2021, the City agrees to pay Albert the total sum of $48,000.00 according to the following payment schedule: 
$3800.00 on 1-1-2021 and $2600.00 per month beginning on 2-1-2021 and ending on 6-1-2022. 

The OHC will not: 

a. Withhold FICA (Social Security and Medicare taxes) from Albert’s payments or make FICA payments on 
Albert’s behalf, or 

 
b. Make state or federal unemployment compensation contributions on Albert’s behalf or withhold state or 

federal income tax from Albert’s payments. 
 

c. Albert is responsible for all taxes incurred while performing services under this Agreement. 
 
 5. Expenses, Materials, Services and Benefits.  The OHC will provide Albert with workspace, office supplies, 
and such other services that the OHC determines are necessary for Albert to perform the services required hereunder. 
Albert shall be responsible for all other expenses relating to providing the services required under this Agreement and 
shall furnish all materials, equipment and supplies used to provide such services, including license fees, memberships and 
dues, uniforms and meals.  Albert will not be entitled to reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses relating to the services 
required under this Agreement unless reimbursement is approved in writing by the OHC Chairperson in advance.  
 
 6. Permits and Licenses.  Albert represents that he has complied with all federal, state, and local laws requiring 
business permits, certificates, and licenses required to carry out the services to be performed under this Agreement. 
 
 7. Fringe Benefits.  Albert understands that he is not eligible to participate in any employee pension, health, 
vacation pay, sick pay, or other fringe benefit plan of the City. 
 
 8. Unemployment Compensation. The City shall make no state or federal unemployment compensation 
payments on behalf of Albert. Albert will not be entitled to these benefits in connection with work performed under this 
Agreement. If Albert files a petition for and receives unemployment compensation, the total amount of unemployment 
compensation awarded to and received by Albert shall be deducted from and be an offset against the amount of 
compensation due and payable to Albert by the OHC under this Agreement. 
 
 9. Entire Agreement.  This is the entire Agreement between Albert and the OHC.  This Agreement may be 
modified only by a writing signed by both parties. 
 
 10. Applicable Law.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan (but any provision 
of Michigan law shall not apply if the application of such provision would result in the application of the law of a state or 
jurisdiction other than Michigan). 
 
 11. Assignment and Delegation.  Albert may not assign or subcontract any rights or obligations under this 
Agreement without the OHC’s prior written approval.  Albert may not designate anyone other than himself to perform the 
services required hereunder without the OHC’s prior written consent. 
 
 12. No Partnership.  This Agreement does not create a partnership relationship.  Albert does not have authority 
to enter contracts on the OHC’s behalf. 
 
 13. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party for any reason, with or without cause, upon 
thirty (30) days advance written notice.  Upon termination, Albert will return all materials and equipment provided by the 
OHC under this Agreement. 
 
 14. Compliance with Other Agreements.  Albert represents and warrants that the execution of this Agreement 
by it and its performance of its obligations hereunder will not conflict with, or result in the breach of any provision of, or 
the termination of, or constitute a default under, any agreement to which Albert is a party or by which Albert is or may be 
bound. 
 
 15. Nondiscrimination.  The parties agree that this Agreement will not be interpreted or enforced in a manner, 



which discriminates based on race, religion, sex, age, national origin, sexual orientation, or disability. 
 
 16. Binding Arbitration.  Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement shall 
be settled exclusively by arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) under its then-
current National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes, and judgment upon the award rendered by the 
arbitrators may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.   This Agreement to submit to binding arbitration 
specifically includes, but is not limited to, all claims that this Agreement has been interpreted or enforced in a 
discriminatory manner.  Arbitration shall take place at the AAA office located in Southfield, Michigan.  The parties will 
share equally all administrative charges and arbitrators’ fees; provided, however, that, upon the conclusion of the 
arbitration, the arbitrator shall direct the losing party to reimburse the prevailing party for the prevailing party’s actual and 
reasonable expenses and attorney fees incurred in the arbitration. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 
 
Owosso Historical Commission 
  
 
Signature: ___________________________ 
David L. Acton, Commission Vice-Chairperson 
Date: ____________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
Signature: ___________________________ 
Christopher Eveleth, Mayor, City of Owosso 
Date: ___________________________ 
 
 
 
Signature: _________________________ 
Amy Kirkland, Clerk, City of Owosso 
Date: 

  
 
 
Signature: _____________________________ 
Albert Martenis III 
Date:  _________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 

 
    
DATE: December 16, 2020  
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Josh Adams; Executive Director, Owosso Main Street/DDA 
 
SUBJECT: OMS/DDA Revolving Loan Fund – Revisions 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approval of the 2020/2021 OMS/DDA Loan & Grant Manual revisions. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
On Wednesday, December 1, 2020 during a Regular Board Meeting, the Owosso Main 
Street/DDA (OMS/DDA) Board of Directors voted to update the 2020/2021 Revolving Loan 
Fund Manual. The revisions are as follows: 
 
Revolving Loan Fund Manual Revisions: 
• The majority of the manual will remain the same as the 2019/2020 Manual.   
• Include a revision to application standard: “Loans and/or grants cannot be issued to projects 

that have either started or have been completed prior to approval of program application.” 
• Include a process revision: #11: “Once approved by OMS/DDA Board, the application will go 

before Owosso City Council for final approval.” 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
Dollars will be disbursed from the OMS/DDA Revolving Loan Fund.  



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
THE APPROVAL OF OMS/DDA REVOLVING LOAN FUND MANUAL REVISIONS 

 
WHEREAS, in 1994 the city of Owosso established the Downtown Owosso Revolving (formerly 
UDAG/CDBG) Loan Program for projects within the Owosso Downtown Development Authority district; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019 City Council approved the new OMS/DDA Revolving Loan & Grant 
Program, giving stewardship of the loan and grant process to the Owosso Main Street/DDA Board. 
 
WHEREAS, on Wednesday, December 2, 2020 during a Regular Board Meeting, the Owosso Main 
Street/DDA (OMS/DDA) Board of Directors voted to revise the 2020/2021 Revolving Loan Fund Manual. 
The revisions are as follows: 
 
Revolving Loan Fund Manual Revisions: 
• The majority of the manual will remain the same as the 2019/2020 Manual.   
• Include a revision to application standard: “Loans and/or grants cannot be issued to projects that have 

either started or have been completed prior to approval of program application.” 
• Include a process revision: #11: “Once approved by OMS/DDA Board, the application will go before 

Owosso City Council for final approval.” 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso approves the revisions to the OMS/DDA Loan & Grant Manual. 



OWOSSO OMS/DDA REVOLVING  
LOAN AND GRANT PROGRAM 

MANUAL AND PROCESS DESCRIPTION 

This manual and process version will be applicable from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2021 

INTRODUCTION 
This program is available to B1 – B4 zoned for-profit businesses, landowners, and corpora-
tions within the city limits. 

Owosso Main Street/Downtown Development Authority (OMS/DDA) is available to apply 
for loan dollars for projects within the district.  

OMS/DDA administers the program as authorized by the city council. 

The program is administered on a year-by-year basis. 
  
The Economic Vitality (EV) Committee of OMS/DDA leads the program and is responsible 
to recommend updates to the program on a fiscal year basis. 

The fiscal year is from July 1st of the current year through June 30th of the subsequent 
year. 

If applicable, the EV committee will present recommendations for updates to the OMS/
DDA Board each year at the March OMS/DDA Board meeting. 

The OMS/DDA Board will approve or reject the recommended changes at the April Board 
meeting.  

With or without changes, this Program Process and Manual will be approved by the OMS/
DDA Board and made available for use by July 1st of each year. 

All loans will be made at 3% fixed rate per year. 

Loan length will be ten years or less. 

Loan maximums are up to $50,000 per project. 

Grant maximums are up to $50,000 per project. 

Loans and/or grants may be made on the same project. 

Loans are paid prior to project start; grants are paid upon project completion. 

Repayment of loans will begin upon project completion. 

 1



Loans and/or grants cannot be issued to projects that have either started or have been 
completed prior to approval of program application.  

ELIGIBLE PROJECT TYPES 
1.  Building access improvements including elevators – loans or grants 
2. Preservation of historic buildings   
3. Upper story housing development 
4. Retail space build outs and upgrading 
5. Acquisition and improvement of blighted properties 
6. Signage purchase or restoration 
7. Environmental studies 
8. Small Business start-up costs (working capital only): {Examples of eligible working capi-
tal include: purchase of a point of sale system, marketing expenses, or inventory of retail 
goods.} 
9. Match on Main approved projects 
10. Emergency Response Implementation 

INELIGIBLE PROJECT TYPES 
1. Re-financing of debt owed to private sector entities such as banks, credit unions, etc. 
2. Projects or part of projects unrelated to the scope described in the program application 
3. Employee wages or benefits, rent, mortgage payments, utilities, machine leases, vehicle 
leases, taxes and insurance, professional fees, credit card processing fees and other soft 
costs. 
4. Payment of taxes, utilities, or other similar obligations 

APPLICATION PROCESS STEPS 
1. Obtain the application form from the OMS/DDA website (downtownowosso.org) and 
complete it 
2. If there are questions about completing the form, contact the OMS/DDA office at 
989-494-3344 
3. Submit by email the application form to: downtownowosso@gmail.com 
4. The EV committee of the OMS/DDA Board will review at their next meeting and advise 
applicant whether your application was accepted for further consideration. 
5. If your application was not accepted, you will be provided with the rationale for the de-
cision and if applicable, things to do to make the application acceptable to move forward 
6. If your application was for a grant, approval determination is by the OMS/DDA Board 
7. If your application was for a loan, preliminary approval determination is by the OMS/
DDA Board 
8. Upon preliminary approval by the OMS/DDA Board, the application is sent to the loan 
committee 
9. Upon review, the loan committee will request additional information as they deem nec-
essary 
10. If approved by the OMS/DDA Board for grants, and the loan committee for loans, a 
project plan with timing will be submitted to OMS/DDA 

A. all projects must be completed in two years or less 
B. the OMS/DDA EV committee will monitor project progress 
C. if projects are not completed in two years, loans payment will begin regardless  

11. Once approved by OMS/DDA Board, the application will go before Owosso City Council 
for final approval. 

 2



CRITERIA FOR ELIGIBLE PROJECT TYPES 
1. Building Access Projects 

A. The building must be multi-story and have 4,000 or more square feet per floor 
B. For shared elevator projects, adjoining building floor size can be included to 

achieve 4,000 square feet if necessary  
C. Projects may include barrier free lavatories, aisle and doorway widening, and 

ramps 
D. Architectural services for building access are eligible for a grant of up to 

$5,000  
E. Elevators for building access are eligible for a grant of up to $25,000  

    
2. Preservation of Historic Buildings 

A. If applicable, the project plan must be approved by the Historic District Com-
mission prior to submission to the loan committee 

3. Upper Story Housing Development 
A. The upper story must have 800 square feet or more; “micro loft” projects will 

be considered 
B. Air conditioning and cable wiring in each room except bathrooms must be in-

cluded 
C. Fire suppression must be included, and the fire suppression plan must be ap-

proved by the city building inspector prior submission to the loan committee 
D. Fire suppression is eligible for a grant of up to $25,000 for projects with two or 

more upper floor residential units 
E. Architectural services are eligible for a grant of up to $1,500 for each residen-

tial unit, with a maximum grant of $12,000 per project 
F. Elevators for upper story housing development are eligible for a grant of up to 

$25,000 

4. Retail Space Build Outs and Upgrading 
A. Projects may include mechanical and electrical systems, roof work, partitions, 

windows, doors, painting, and sign repair 
B. Architectural services are eligible for a grant of up to $3,000 per project 

5. Acquisition and Improvement of Blighted Properties 
A. A description of the plans for the property must be included with the applica-

tion form 
B. If preliminarily approved by OMS/DDA, a detailed plan with timing must be 

submitted to OMS/DDA for further review prior to submission of the applica-
tion to the loan committee 

6. Signage Purchase or Restoration 
A. Building must be 50 years or older 
B. If in the historic district, the plan must be approved by the Historic District 

Commission prior to submission to the loan committee 

7. Environment Studies 
A. The building or site must have a brownfield plan 
B. The building or site must be contaminated or suspected of being contaminated 
C. Phase I and Phase II studies are eligible 

 3



8. Emergency Response Implementation 
 Business & Property Owner Aid: 

A.These funds will be issued in temporary, 6-month durations Initiated by local, 
state, and/or national emergencies (natural or economical) - beyond the control 
of local business & property owners 

B. Eligible loan purposes include rent, utilities, payroll, and site restoration 
C. Loan amounts allowed up to $5,000.00. **Applications greater than $5,000.00 

can be reviewed.** 
D. Loans can be awarded to meet the emergency need of up to 3 months of eligi-

ble expenses  
E. Loan interest will be 0% if paid back within 12-months of award. Interest of 3% 

will start accumulating after the twelfth month.  
 Pre-existing Revolving Loans:  

F. Existing RLF loan payments maybe deferred up to 6-months   

CONCLUSIONS, QUESTIONS, AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
The Owosso Main Street Board of Directors will determine committee members. 

The committee consists of a city council representative, business owners, property own-
ers, representatives from traditional lending institutions, and Owosso Main Street volun-
teers. 

The loan committee will make approval decisions based on criteria established by the 
committee as applicable to the project description. 

If the loan committee does not grant project approval, it will submit rationale to OMS/
DDA. 

OMS/DDA may then approve the project and is empowered to work with the applicant to 
determine and apply and necessary conditions and/or documents to assure project suc-
cess. 

Questions on the program manual, process, or any other aspect of the program may be 
directed to the OMS/DDA office at 989-494-3344 or dowtownowosso@gmail.com. 

Each year, lead by the OMS/DDA EV committee, the OMS/DDA Board will update and re-
publish the manual and process based on continuous improvement input and recommen-
dations. 

 4



301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

City Manager’s Report: January 4, 2021 

Projects, Updates, Community Information, Staffing, General Operations 

Project Name Status 
ZONING AMENDMENTS 

210 Monroe St – APPROVED – at the 
Planning Commission meeting on 
Nov. 23rd

PENDING – Public Hearing at the City 
Council meeting on Jan 4th. 

City of Owosso property (2.46 acres) Rezoning from I-1 Light Industrial to R-2 Two 
Family District.  This change would allow for future residential development and to 
be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. 

ZONING PERMITS 
None None 

SITE PLANS 
Washington Park Smart Homes 
Development – APPROVED WITH 
CONDITIONS – at the Planning 
Commission meeting on Nov. 23rd 

PENDING – Public Hearing at the 
City Council meeting on Jan 4th. 

Site Plan Review of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

LAND DIVISIONS/COMBINATIONS 

1000 Center – 1546 Hiawatha Dr 
PENDING 

LAND DIVISION - Due to irregular lot sizes. City has requested a copy of a survey.  
Update-Surveyors schedules are booked until Spring 2021 

111 N Washington - PENDING LAND DIVISION - City has requested structural details of the buildings.  Update-
Building Official and Property Owner working to get the appropriate details in 
place. 

1445 W. North St. – PENDING LAND COMBINATION – Application submitted to combine the lot with a house on it 
and the vacant lot (same owners) in order to build a garage on the vacant lot.  
Assessor working with homeowners. 

BUILDING PERMITS – COMMERCIAL 

1370 E South St-Marijuana License FC Investment Holdings sold to Stash Ventures who has applied for recreational 
grow at this location.  FC had pulled permits to renovate for grow, but did not open 
the business. 

BUILDING PERMITS – YEAR END REPORT AND COMPARISON 

Value Permit Fees Total Value Permit Fees Total Value Permit Fees Total Value Permit Fees Total
Building $16,936,358 $229,145 384 $5,285,756 $102,707 311 $8,143,259 $165,075 379 $41,349,239 $351,612 281
Electrical $46,418 182 $29,936 256 $33,049 292 $36,303 171
Fence $0 0 $3,570 51 $3,690 50 $3,030 46
Mechanical $47,650 276 $40,276 290 $40,395 268 $46,921 255
Plumbing $23,877 99 $14,769 82 $16,554 99 $18,807 57
RIGHT OF WAY $2,000 118 $2,080 116 $1,660 96 $2,450 102
Vacant Property $4,450 46 $3,000 33 $2,000 19 $1,200 12
Zoning $1,700 34 $3,110 34 $1,100 26 $1,200 28

$16,936,358 $355,240 1,139 $5,285,756 $199,448 1,173 $8,143,259 $263,523 1,229 $41,349,239 $461,523 952

2017 2018 2019 2020

http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

CODE ENFORCEMENT – YEAR END REPORT AND COMPARISON 

ENFORCEMENTS BY CATEGORY 
 

2018 2019 2020 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

 
7 13 11 

  Rentals   4 3 
ANIMALS 

 
6 3 3 

 
Rentals 2 1 1 

APPLIANCES 
 

4 5 4 

 
Rentals 2 1 1 

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH 
 

134 102 72 

 
Rentals 50 49 33 

BLOWING GRASS INTO STREET 
 

2 1   
BRUSH 

 
8 5 2 

 
Rentals 4 1 1 

BUILDING VIOLATIONS 
 

53 51 44 

 
Rentals 18 19 7 

BUSHES-SIDEWALK VISIBILITY 
 

6 5 5 

 
Rentals 2 4   

DEAD TREE 
 

8 5 5 

 
Rentals 1 1   

DEMOLITION 
 

4 1 1 
DOG FECES 

 
6 8 4 

 
Rentals 4 6 3 

DOORS 
 

  1 2 

 
Rentals     1 

DRAIN ISSUES 
 

8 8 9 
  Rentals   2 1 
DRIVEWAY VIOLATIONS 

 
2 3   

 
Rentals 2 2   

DUMPSTER VIOLATIONS 
 

2 3 4 
  Rentals   2 1 
EVICTIONS 

 
  1 1 

 
Rentals   1 1 

EXTERIOR PAINT/SIDING 
 

    37 

 
Rentals     9 

FENCE VIOLATIONS 
 

19 14 14 

 
Rentals 2 3 2 

FRONT YARD PARKING 
 

51 26 20 

 
Rentals 23 11 6 

FURNITURE OUTSIDE 
 

25 7 6 

 
Rentals 12 5 5 

GARBAGE & DEBRIS 
 

184 162 139 

 
Rentals 96 72 50 

GARBAGE CANS 
 

11 20 19 

 
Rentals 4 7 9 

GARBAGE/JUNK IN THE ROW 
 

  31 208 

 
Rentals   12 83 

http://www.mason.mi.us/


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

GRAFFITI/DEFACEMENT OF PROP. 
 

  1 1 
HANDRIALS/GUARDS 

 
    2 

HEALTH & SAFETY  
 

7 15 9 

 
Rentals 5 10 2 

HOUSE FIRE 
 

  3 2 

 
Rentals   1 2 

HOUSE NUMBERS 
 

    3 
IMMINENT DANGER STRUCTURE 

 
    2 

LAWN MAINTENANCE  
 

117 78 163 

 
Rentals 62 22 41 

LEAVES 
 

  6 2 

 
Rentals   1   

MISC. VIOLATIONS  
 

9 4   

 
Rentals 2 1   

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS  
 

132 152 148 

 
Rentals 55 46 42 

NO BUILDING PERMIT  
 

29 25 53 

 
Rentals 9 6 6 

NO MECHANICAL PERMIT  
 

4     

 
Rentals 1     

NO POOL PERMIT  
 

2 2 5 

 
Rentals 1   2 

PLUMBING 
 

  2 4 
  Rentals   1   
REFRIGERATORS 

 
  1 2 

  Rentals   1   
RENTAL UNIT INSPECT  

 
37 82 20 

 
Rentals 37 82 20 

ROW VIOLATIONS  
 

1 6 8 
  Rentals   1 1 
RV/CAMPER VIOLATIONS  

 
9 7 4 

 
Rentals 5 1 1 

SCRAPPING MATERIALS  
 

1 2 1 

 
Rentals 1 1   

SIDEWALK VIOLATION  
 

8 1 5 
  Rentals 6   1 
SIGN VIOLATION  

 
16 3 14 

 
Rentals 2     

TRAILER VIOLATIONS  
 

1 3 1 
VACANT PROPERTY REG  

 
11     

VACANT/SQUATTERS  
 

2 1 9 
ZONING 

 
7 4 4 

 
Rentals 1 1 1 

 
Total Enf. 933 873 1072 

 
Total Rentals 409 378 336 

 

http://www.mason.mi.us/


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us

OPERATIONS AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS  

• Leaf Pickup - Fall 2020:  Leaf pickup is completed for 2020.
• Matthews Building Code Enforcement:  The agreement to have the Matthews Building code violations corrected by

April 1, 2021 has been signed by both parties.  This includes a new roof where the old has been removed, all boarded
up windows replaced, the granite veneer removed, the furring strips removed, and windows replaced that aren’t
flush with the original brick exterior.

• CARES and COVID Grants
o First Responder Payroll Reimbursement Grant:  50% has been approved and deposited in city’s bank account

($240,000).  We were asked to resubmit the application to clarify a few things for the next 50%.  Due to more
applications received than expected, the other 50% will be prorated at a lower amount than originally
pledged.

o First Responder Hazard Pay Grant:  $36,000 was paid to eligible employees ($1000 each) in late August and
the City was awarded 100% reimbursement.

o CESF COVID Supplies Grant - $11,200:  The DOJ has requested clarification on what supplies were used for.
Clarification will be submitted by December 4.

o Coronavirus Relief Local Government Grant:  The city received $109,198 in state revenue sharing
replacement funds to make up for losses this fiscal year.

o Ambulance Service Grant:  We received $23,571 from the US Health and Human Services for reductions in
Medicare revenue related to COVID.

o TOTAL COVID-19 GRANTS:  $419,970
• New State Budget:  The latest draft of the state’s budget does not include a reduction in revenue sharing.  The city

budgeted a 20% reduction this year but right now it looks like we may only see a 2% reduction mostly from
constitutional revenue sharing.  Statutory will be held the same as last year.  This is good news but until the economy
comes back 100% we need to be vigilant with finances.

• Michigan State of Emergency:  The state of emergency is over according to the Michigan Supreme Court.  The State
Health and Human Services Director, Robert Gordon, has issued his own COVID requirements that mostly mirrored
the governor’s.  This is based on a 1918 law from the State’s Spanish Flu response.  There have been some legal
challenges but no decision yet at the court level.

• Virtual Meetings:  Can continue under state law until Dec 31.  Council has confirmed the Mayor’s executive order
allowing for virtual meetings into 2021.

• 2020 General Election:  The recount for Mr. Cline was denied by the County.  The city had no say in this.
• FEMA Grant to Replace Fire Dept SCBA Packs:  Due to COVID’s effect on the federal budget, we were notified that the

city was denied a grant request to fund the replacement of the fire departments breather packs.  We will try again next
year.

• MASTER PLAN UPDATE:  City Council has started the 63 day comment period as required by state law.
• COVID Vaccine Distribution:  First tier vaccinations are ongoing.  Unclear when the next tier of employees/residents

will begin.
• County COVID Updates:  http://health.shiawassee.net/Emergency-Preparedness/COVID-19-Stats.aspx
• State COVID Updates:  https://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus/0,9753,7-406-98163_98173---,00.html

STAFFING UPDATES 
• New Hires/Promotions:  None
• Open Positions:  Water Treatment Plant Attendant, Public Works Director (offer declined.  Reposted position for 1

month)
• Announced Retirements or Departures:  Public Works Director - Jan 2021, Payroll Clerk - Dec 2020.
• Free flu shots for city employees were available on 9.30.2020.  31 employees and dependents participated.

CITY PROJECTS 
STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

2020 
Sidewalk 
Contract 

Sidewalk Maintenance Contract Sidewalk replacement complete.  Lawn restoration 
complete.  Grass growth will be evaluated in the 
spring. 

Complete 

2020 Street 
Contract #1 

North St (Hickory to Gould) Complete 

Summit St (Abbot to Rubelman) Complete 

http://www.mason.mi.us/
http://health.shiawassee.net/Emergency-Preparedness/COVID-19-Stats.aspx
https://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus/0,9753,7-406-98163_98173---,00.html


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us

2020 Street 
Contract #2 

Clark Ave (Oliver to King) Complete 

S Cedar St (South to Hampton) Complete 
2020 Street 
Patching 
Program 

Patch and repair streets in various 
locations city-wide 

Complete 

2021 Street 
Projects 
(planned) 

Gould St (Oliver to Moore) Pavement rehab with select curb and gutter repair.  
ADA sidewalk improvements, select sidewalk repair, 
and storm sewer.  Project currently under design 
phase.  Partially funded through MDOT Small Urban 
Grant Program.  Bid letting target – Jan, 2021. 

UTILITIES (Water and Sewer) 
Project Project Name/Description Status Completed 
Lead Action Level 
Exceedance 

Filter giveaway event Conducted 2 filter giveaway events in partnership 
with local and state health department.  
Remaining filters to be handed out at city hall for 
those who qualify.  Email 
safewater@ci.owosso.mi.us or call 989-725-0545 
to schedule an appointment to receive a filter 
curbside due to COVID lockdown.   

Complete 

Filter Distribution Distribute filters at city hall for those who qualify.  
See above for COVID lockdown procedures for 
filter giveaway.  

Ongoing 

Public Education Mailer Mail PE piece to every water account in the 
system. 

Complete 

6 month lead/copper re-test State mandated retesting for lead/copper levels 6 
months after initial exceedance 

Spring/Summer 
2021 

Lead/Galvanized 
Service Line 
Replacement - 
2021 

Replace 200 service lines in 
calendar year 2021 

First step is to definitively identify service line as 
lead or galvanized.  This involves either a home 
inspection or hydro excavation if home access is 
not possible. 

December 2021 

Water Billing 
Customer Portal 

ACLARA ACE Portal Staff continues to meet with ACLARA to 
implement the water use online customer portal.  

As soon as 
ACLARA ONE 
upgrade is 
made 

Water Treatment 
Plant 

North Clarifier repair Clarifier remains out of service.  Waiting on new 
parts to arrive 

Dec 2020 

Audit and certification of WTP lab Will be scheduled soon.  Current certification 
expires 12.19.20 

Dec 2020 

SCADA System Kick-off meeting with Tetra tech was 10.30.20 June 2021 
Backwash Pump and 16 inch hi 
service 

Kick-off meeting was 10.29.20 June 2021 

Wastewater Plant Headworks Project Bypass pumping contractor is behind.  
Construction has been delayed 3 weeks due to 
bypass pumping system issues. 

June 2021 

Screw pump building roof 
replacement 

Replace roof on screw pump building.  Postponed due 
to cost 

Scum well blower replacement (2) Might need larger blowers.  Reassessing cost for 
larger capacity blowers. 

In Process.  
Possibly 

postponed due 
to cost. 

Influent sampler replacement Replace 25 year old influent sampler Postponed 
Bisulfide tank replacement Replace bisulfide tank June, 2021 
Confined space entry equipment Purchased new confined space entry equipment.  June, 2021 

http://www.mason.mi.us/
mailto:safewater@ci.owosso.mi.us


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Worker safety.  
 Sludge Truck dump box  Replace corroded dump truck box June , 2021 
 Centrifuge gear box rehab Rebuild or replace sludge dewatering centrifuge 

gearbox 
June, 2021 

 
 VFD controller rehab (5) Rebuild/replace old variable frequency drive 

controllers 
June, 2021 

 Pipe hanger replacement Replace corroded plant sewer pipe hangers.  As 
needed.  Labor in house.  Pay as you go. 

June, 2021 

Drinking Water 
Plant 

SRF Project Replace backwash pump (2) and 16 inch hi 
service water main.  Preconstruction meeting 
mid-October, 2020 with completion date late 
spring, 2021. 

May, 2021 

Sewer Collection 
System – SRF 
Funded 

W Oliver – Fifth to Seventh Excavate and replace sewer main Complete 

 Meadow Dr – 1000 block Sewer repair and repaving Complete 
 Shiawassee Street Sewer repair and repaving Complete 
 Main Street @ Chestnut  Replace 8 feet of sewer main in intersection.  

Center lane was closed.  Other lanes were open 
to traffic. 

Complete 

Water Main 
Replacement 

Cleveland Street – Chestnut to 
Brooks 

 Complete 

 Lafayette Blvd – Main to Cleveland  Complete 
 Morris Street – Mack to north city 

limits 
 Complete 

 Robbins Street – Mack to south 
city limits 

 Complete 

 

PARKS/ CEMETERY/ FORESTRY/ NONMOTORIZED 
Project Project Name/Description Status Completed 

 CIS Trail Extension – Extend trail 
from Priest Rd. to City. 

Huron & Eastern Railroad told the city they will not 
agree to allow the trail to run along RR right of way 
for liability reasons.  Meeting scheduled with state, 
local and county stakeholders to regroup/strategize. 

TBD 

 Bennett Field Parking Lot Expansion  DPW expanded the parking lot for the ball fields to 
accommodate more vehicles during ball 
tournaments.  This will keep cars off the grass.  Paid 
for with parks millage money. 

Completed 

 Bennett Field Drainage 
Improvements 

Improve drainage at Bennett Field.  Paid for with 
parks millage money. 

Completed 

 Bentley Park Splashpad Conversion DPW converted the splashpad from a recycling 
system to a traditional pump-and-dump.  This will 
use more water but will be offset by the amount of 
annual labor and maintenance on the aging water 
recycling system.  Paid for with parks millage money 

 
 

Completed 

 Replace Dock at Hopkins Lake Current dock is leaking and sagging.  Parks 
Commission wants to replace it with a large, longer 
dock to improve fishing opportunities.  Staff will be 
soliciting bids in the coming month.  Estimated cost: 
20 – 30k.  To be paid for with parks millage money 

Bid request 
being drafted 

by engineering 

 Canoe/Kayak Launch installation (2) Parks Commission tentatively approved 2 new 
launches in city limits.  Staff was given locations to 
negotiate.  Non-governmental grants available – 
deadline Dec 2020.   Saginaw WIN Grant award for 
$10,500 in December.  The Parks Commission has 

Spring 2021 

http://www.mason.mi.us/


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

pledged an initial match of $15,000 from parks 
millage fund.  Right now we are looking at a launch 
site near the Middle School. 

 

MOTOR VEHICLE POOL 
DPW HydroVac Truck Used for less-invasive excavation and lead service 

line identification. 
Purchased 

 Valve Turning Machine Used for valve exercising and proper operation of 
valves for water system maintenance 

Purchased 

 Snow pusher 14 foot snow pusher attachment Purchased 
 Lawn tractor John Deere tractor for mowing and misc projects Purchased 
 Pavement Saw New Saw to assist with road cutting for utility and 

streets projects/maintenance 
Purchased 

 Sign Truck Mobile sign truck for projects within the street 
ROW.  Improve worker and traffic safety 

Purchased 

 5-yard dump truck Replace single axle dump truck Purchased 
 10 yard dump truck Replace tandem axle dump truck Purchased 
Public Safety FY 18-19 Police Cruiser Received May 2020.  On the road July, 2020 Received 
 FY 19-20 Police Cruiser On order.  Expected arrival Nov, 2020.   Received 
 Tower 1 repairs  The clutch fan failed and took out some blades and 

the fan shroud.  Repair will cost $4500. 
Complete 

 Engine 1 repairs Main pump failed the week of 10.11.20.  Engine 
was taken to Saginaw for repairs.  $4000.  While 
pump is being replaced, yearly maintenance and 
DOT inspection will be conducted a month earlier 
than usual. 

Complete 

 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS 
Library HVAC rehab Replace aging air conditioning systems.   Postponed - 

COVID 
 Library Improvements – replace 

kids’ area flooring 
Completed by Library.  Not budgeted or requested 
from Library in City’s FY 19-20 budget.   

N/A 

Public Safety Men’s police locker room shower Replace missing shower unit in men’s locker room.  
Waiting for estimate from local plumber. 

TBD 

 Repair plumbing  Second shower unit in fire men’s locker room 
clogged.  Could not get an estimate from 
Lampheres.  We have called other plumbers. 

TBD 

City Hall Replace city computers Replace 6 computers in city hall June, 2021 
 Finance wing carpet replacement Postponed due to COVID. FY 21-22 
 Retaining Wall Rebuild Postponed due to budget constraints.  Sidewalk 

remains closed. 
FY 21-22 

Main Street 
Parking Lot 

EV Charging Station Installation A check from the Revolving Loan Fund will be 
issued to the DDA on 11.4.20.  DDA says that 
shortly after, the installation company will be 
coming to town to install the station 

Spring 2021 

 

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS 
Library Lease Agreement between city and 

library for building maintenance 
Expires December 2020.  City Attorney will be 
issuing notice to the Library board of the City’s 
intention to negotiate a new agreement.  Original 
agreement from 1996 still in place.  Renews 
automatically every 5 years per case law. 

Winter 20/21 

Water Agreement between the city, 
Corunna, Owosso Twp, and 
Caledonia Twp for Treatment Plant 
maintenance/replacement/capacities 

Contract expires in 2021.  Glenn will provide 
notes for the next DPW Director to aid in 
negotiating a new contract by the end of 2021 

Dec 2021 

http://www.mason.mi.us/


301 W Main St, Owosso, MI 48867 
Office:  989-725-0599; Website: www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Sewer Agreement between the city, 
Corunna, Owosso Twp, and 
Caledonia Twp for WWTP 
maintenance/replacement/capacities 

Glenn will provide notes for the next DPW 
Director on negotiation of new sewer agreement 

TBD 

 

http://www.mason.mi.us/


November 2020

Owosso City Council

Building Department

Report Month:

From:

To: 

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES $0 $50 1
COMMERCIAL EXTERIOR WALLS $1,650 $145 1
DEMOLITION $0 $180 1
Electrical $0 $1,550 10
FENCE $0 $0 1
FOUNDATION - RESIDENTIAL $54,000 $1,410 6
FOUNDATION, COMMERCIAL $8,000 $300 1
GARAGE, DETACHED $7,300 $300 1
Mechanical $0 $4,980 19
NON-RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $40,000 $397 1
Plumbing $0 $210 2
PORCH $800 $80 1
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $50,000 $870 1
ROOF $39,453 $680 7
ROW-ENG $0 $0 1
ROW-UTILITY $0 $30 1
SIGN $0 $34 1
UTILITIES $0 $0 12
VACANT PROPERTY REGISTRATION $0 $200 2
WINDOWS $18,960 $80 1

Totals $11,496 71$220,163

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          - 21

2019 COMPARISON TOTALS

$501,985 $15,929November 2019 Totals 73

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

11/06/2020ENF 20-0905 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/06/2020711 WRIGHT AVE LETTER SENT N

11/23/2020ENF 20-0933 CLOSED 11/09/2020 11/23/2020735 W STEWART ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/23/2020ENF 20-0935 CLOSED 11/09/2020 11/23/2020222 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

12/04/2020ENF 20-0976 NO VIOLATION AT THIS
TIME

11/20/2020 12/04/2020652 N WASHINGTON ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

Total Entries 4

BRUSH PILES

11/13/2020ENF 20-0875 CLOSED 10/26/2020 11/13/2020528 RIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

Total Entries 1

BUILDING VIOL

11/16/2020ENF 20-0962 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/17/2020828 ALGER AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/30/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0967 LETTER SENT 11/17/2020831 ALGER AVE COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/30/2020ENF 20-0993 CLOSED 11/30/2020 12/02/2020739 W STEWART ST OBTAINED PERMIT Y

11/30/2020 05/12/2021ENF 20-0988 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/24/2020916 FLETCHER ST HOMEOWNER CALLED
IN

N

11/30/2020 05/12/2021ENF 20-0985 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/24/2020914 FLETCHER ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

10/28/2020ENF 20-0854 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

10/14/2020 11/03/2020507 BRADLEY ST CONTACT WITH
CONTRACTOR

VAC

11/19/2020ENF 20-0895 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/19/2020448 E MAIN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/23/2020ENF 20-0909 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/23/20201109 N WATER ST HOMEOWNER CALLED
IN

N

11/18/2020 04/14/2021ENF 20-0972 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/18/2020317 E WILLIAMS ST HOMEOWNER CALLED
IN

N

12/02/2020 12/23/2020ENF 20-0986 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/24/20201321 HERMAN ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

Total Entries 10

DEAD TREE

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/04/2020ENF 20-0924 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/06/20201413 DONALD ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

Total Entries 1

DOORS IN VIOLATION

11/03/2020 12/21/2020ENF 20-0915 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/03/2020332 N DEWEY ST CONTACT WITH
PROPERTY MANAGER

N

Total Entries 1

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

12/04/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0965 2ND NOTICE SENT 11/17/20201010 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT N

11/25/2020 12/16/2020ENF 20-0966 REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL 11/17/20201028 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/23/2020 12/09/2020ENF 20-0929 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/06/2020501 ABBOTT ST CONTACT WITH OWNER N

11/11/2020ENF 20-0897 CLOSED 10/29/2020 11/11/2020409 GROVER ST LETTER SENT N

11/25/2020 12/08/2020ENF 20-0952 LETTER SENT 11/12/2020508 GROVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

12/02/2020ENF 20-0981 CLOSED 11/23/2020 12/04/2020536 N SHIAWASSEE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/24/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0932 2ND NOTICE SENT 11/09/20201600 W SOUTH ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/23/2020 12/07/2020ENF 20-0957 FINAL NOTICE 11/13/2020728 W OLIVER ST LETTER SENT N

11/05/2020ENF 20-0894 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/05/2020820 BRADLEY ST LETTER SENT N

11/13/2020ENF 20-0918 CLOSED 11/04/2020 11/13/2020726 BRADLEY ST LETTER SENT Y

11/16/2020ENF 20-0893 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/16/2020813 BRADLEY ST EXTENSION GRANTED N

11/25/2020 12/15/2020ENF 20-0989 LETTER SENT 11/25/2020509 MILWAUKEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

11/30/2020 12/08/2020ENF 20-0992 CONTACTED
PROPERTY OWNER

11/30/2020607 FLETCHER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

Total Entries 13

GARBAGE CANS

11/12/2020ENF 20-0902 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/12/2020827 BROADWAY AVE INSPECTED PROPERTY N



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/19/2020ENF 20-0950 CLOSED 11/12/2020 11/19/2020831 BROADWAY AVE LETTER SENT N

Total Entries 2

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

11/25/2020ENF 20-0968 CLOSED 11/17/2020 11/25/2020609 WOODLAWN AVE LETTER SENT N

11/05/2020ENF 20-0901 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/05/2020622 WOODLAWN AVE INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/09/2020ENF 20-0908 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/09/2020812 ADAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

12/04/2020 12/11/2020ENF 20-0980 INSPECTION PENDING 11/23/2020514 W KING ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

11/04/2020ENF 20-0890 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/04/2020717 N WATER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/25/2020ENF 20-0973 CLOSED 11/18/2020 11/25/20201115 LYNN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/03/2020ENF 20-0885 CLOSED 10/27/2020 11/03/2020602 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0947 CLOSED 11/11/2020 11/19/2020615 QUEEN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/23/2020ENF 20-0914 CLOSED 11/03/2020 11/23/2020552 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT Y

12/03/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0987 LETTER SENT 11/24/2020514 N DEWEY ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/12/2020ENF 20-0931 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/12/2020822 MILWAUKEE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0930 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/19/2020428 S LYON ST LETTER SENT Y

11/05/2020ENF 20-0899 CLOSED 10/29/2020 11/05/20201020 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/23/2020ENF 20-0926 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/23/2020914 N DEWEY ST LETTER SENT Y

11/12/2020ENF 20-0927 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/12/2020917 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/03/2020ENF 20-0911 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/03/20201207 DEVONSHIRE CT INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/19/2020ENF 20-0928 CLOSED 11/06/2020 11/19/2020516 GROVER ST LETTER SENT Y

11/19/2020ENF 20-0955 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/19/2020700 WILTSHIRE DR INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/05/2020ENF 20-0900 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/05/2020720 HUNTINGTON DR INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/30/2020ENF 20-0956 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/30/20201005 WILTSHIRE DR LETTER SENT N



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/19/2020ENF 20-0954 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/19/20201225 N GOULD ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/25/2020ENF 20-0971 CLOSED 11/18/2020 11/25/2020614 N HICKORY ST LETTER SENT N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0953 CLOSED 11/12/2020 11/19/2020301 GOODHUE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/09/2020ENF 20-0910 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/09/2020119 STRATFORD DR LETTER SENT N

11/12/2020ENF 20-0921 CLOSED 11/04/2020 11/12/2020820 N BALL ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/09/2020ENF 20-0939 CLOSED 11/10/2020 11/17/2020715 N WASHINGTON ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

11/25/2020ENF 20-0938 CLOSED 11/10/2020 11/25/2020415 E MASON ST LETTER SENT N

11/25/2020ENF 20-0975 CLOSED 11/19/2020 11/25/2020725 DIVISION ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/17/2020ENF 20-0934 CLOSED 11/09/2020 11/17/2020804 GRAND AVE INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/05/2020ENF 20-0880 CLOSED 10/26/2020 11/05/2020419 HUGGINS ST LETTER SENT N

11/04/2020ENF 20-0891 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/04/2020906 N HICKORY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/17/2020ENF 20-0937 CLOSED 11/10/2020 11/17/2020327 N HICKORY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

12/02/2020ENF 20-0940 CLOSED 11/10/2020 12/02/2020328 N PARK ST LETTER SENT Y

11/03/2020ENF 20-0883 CLOSED 10/26/2020 11/03/2020634 N WASHINGTON ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/30/2020 12/08/2020ENF 20-0994 INSPECTION PENDING 11/30/2020116 E KING ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0944 CLOSED 11/11/2020 11/19/2020623 N WASHINGTON ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/04/2020ENF 20-0889 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/04/2020397 N CHIPMAN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/10/2020ENF 20-0916 CLOSED 11/03/2020 11/10/2020702 N DEWEY ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/03/2020ENF 20-0884 CLOSED 10/27/2020 11/03/2020625 E KING ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/04/2020ENF 20-0873 CLOSED 10/22/2020 11/04/2020416 PRINDLE ST LETTER SENT Y

11/23/2020ENF 20-0958 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/24/2020325 W STEWART ST LETTER SENT Y

11/17/2020ENF 20-0942 CLOSED 11/03/2020 11/17/20201401 CARR ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/30/2020 12/08/2020ENF 20-0978 INSPECTION PENDING 11/20/2020115 W KING ST PARTIALLY COMPLIED Y

11/04/2020ENF 20-0863 CLOSED 10/20/2020 11/04/2020631 N BALL ST LETTER SENT N

12/04/2020 12/07/2020ENF 20-0977 LETTER SENT 11/20/2020639 N BALL ST HOMEOWNER CALLED
IN

N

11/04/2020ENF 20-0881 CLOSED 10/26/2020 11/04/2020304 CORUNNA AVE LETTER SENT Y

12/02/2020ENF 20-0919 REF TO DPW 11/04/2020 12/02/2020906 BEEHLER ST WO SUBMITTED N

11/16/2020ENF 20-0920 CLOSED 11/04/2020 11/17/20201114 BEEHLER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/04/2020ENF 20-0892 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/04/2020223 N LANSING ST INSPECTED PROPERTY Y

11/23/2020ENF 20-0913 CLOSED 11/03/2020 11/23/2020809 RIVER ST LETTER SENT Y

11/16/2020ENF 20-0859 CLOSED 10/16/2020 11/17/2020229 S CEDAR ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

11/23/2020ENF 20-0888 CLOSED 10/28/2020 11/23/2020433 E EXCHANGE ST LETTER SENT Y

12/04/2020ENF 20-0969 REF TO DPW 11/17/2020 12/04/2020443 E MAIN ST WO SUBMITTED N

12/04/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0979 LETTER SENT 11/23/2020523 E EXCHANGE ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/17/2020ENF 20-0941 CLOSED 11/10/2020 11/17/2020507 S CEDAR ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0943 CLOSED 11/11/2020 11/19/2020602 RYAN ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

12/03/2020 12/10/2020ENF 20-0982 INSPECTION PENDING 11/24/2020440 E HOWARD ST CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

12/03/2020ENF 20-0983 CLOSED 11/24/2020 12/03/2020423 HURON ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/19/2020ENF 20-0951 CLOSED 11/12/2020 11/19/2020703 CORUNNA AV LETTER SENT Y

Total Entries 59

HANDRAILS AND GUARDS REQUIRED

11/03/2020ENF 20-0580 CLOSED 08/04/2020 11/03/2020215 N LANSING ST HOMEOWNER CALLED
IN

N

Total Entries 1

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

11/19/2020ENF 20-0945 REF TO DPW 11/11/2020 11/19/2020528 GARFIELD AVE WO SUBMITTED Y



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/16/2020ENF 20-0906 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/16/2020603 FRAZER AVE LETTER SENT N

11/03/2020ENF 20-0371 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

06/22/2020 11/04/2020611 FRAZER AVE CONTACT WITH OWNER N

11/23/2020 12/07/2020ENF 20-0974 REF TO POLICE 11/18/20201009 W MAIN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

11/12/2020ENF 20-0468 RESOLVED 07/10/2020 11/12/2020213 S LANSING ST LETTER SENT VAC

10/30/2020ENF 20-0823 CLOSED 10/02/2020 11/19/2020715 N BALL ST RECHECK N

11/16/2020ENF 20-0964 CLOSED 11/17/2020 11/16/2020810 E EXCHANGE ST DISMISSED N

12/04/2020 12/14/2020ENF 20-0984 LETTER SENT 11/24/20201024 RYAN ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/24/2020 12/08/2020ENF 20-0923 INSPECTED PROPERTY 11/05/2020916 MILWAUKEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED Y

11/19/2020ENF 20-0912 CLOSED 11/03/2020 11/19/20201301 W MAIN ST RESOLVED COMM

11/04/2020ENF 20-0176 CLOSED 03/19/2020 11/11/2020510 RIVER ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/18/2020ENF 20-0876 CLOSED 10/26/2020 11/18/2020209 N ELM ST LETTER SENT N

11/11/2020ENF 20-0898 CLOSED 10/29/2020 11/11/2020304 S OAK ST LETTER SENT N

11/25/2020 01/25/2021ENF 20-0936 EXTENSION GRANTED 11/09/2020616 E MASON ST CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

11/12/2020ENF 20-0904 CLOSED 10/30/2020 11/12/2020850 BROADWAY AVE EXTENSION GRANTED N

10/29/2020ENF 20-0903 COMPLIED 10/30/2020 11/03/2020847 BROADWAY AVE CONTACT WITH OWNER Y

12/02/2020ENF 20-0970 CLOSED 11/18/2020 12/04/2020618 RIVER ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/23/2020ENF 20-0959 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/23/2020814 HAMMONT ST LETTER SENT N

11/23/2020ENF 20-0960 CLOSED 11/13/2020 11/23/20201210 MACK ST LETTER SENT N

11/04/2020ENF 20-0829 CLOSED 10/05/2020 11/04/2020214 CASS ST LETTER SENT Y

11/04/2020ENF 20-0886 CLOSED 10/27/2020 11/04/2020815 S BALL ST LETTER SENT N

10/30/2020ENF 20-0907 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

10/30/2020 11/02/2020201 S CEDAR ST LETTER SENT N

11/25/2020 12/15/2020ENF 20-0990 LETTER SENT 11/25/2020503 MILWAUKEE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/19/2020ENF 20-0834 CLOSED 10/07/2020 11/20/2020529 FLETCHER ST PARTIALLY COMPLIED N

Total Entries 24

NO BUILDING PERMIT

11/04/2020ENF 20-0844 CLOSED 10/12/2020 11/05/2020819 N BALL ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

11/11/2020ENF 20-0948 NO VIOLATION 11/11/2020 11/12/2020210 S OAK ST COMPLAINT LOGGED N

11/05/2020ENF 20-0831 CLOSED 10/06/2020 11/06/2020644 N SAGINAW ST INSPECTED PROPERTY N

10/26/2020ENF 20-0882 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

10/26/2020 11/05/2020704 GRAND AVE CONTACT WITH OWNER N

11/25/2020 12/09/2020ENF 20-0991 PENDING PERMIT
APPLICATION

11/25/2020117 E MAIN ST CONTACT WITH
CONTRACTOR

COMM

11/16/2020ENF 20-0963 OBTAINED BLDG
PERMIT

11/16/2020 11/17/2020812 BRADLEY ST CONTACT WITH
CONTRACTOR

COMM

Total Entries 6

RV/CAMPER VIOLATIONS

11/09/2020ENF 20-0922 RESOLVED 11/05/2020 11/09/2020201 ROBBINS ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

Total Entries 1

SIGN VIOLATION

12/04/2020 12/10/2020ENF 20-0946 INSPECTION PENDING 11/11/2020311 CORUNNA AVE CONTACT WITH
BUSINESS

COMM

Total Entries 1

VACANT STRUCTURES

12/01/2020ENF 20-0949 CLOSED 11/11/2020 12/01/2020614 ALGER AVE INSPECTED PROPERTY VAC

12/01/2020 12/22/2020ENF 20-0961 LETTER SENT 11/13/2020805 E EXCHANGE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED VAC

Total Entries 2

WINDOWS

11/05/2020 12/07/2020ENF 20-0925 LETTER SENT 11/06/2020116 W EXCHANGE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/8Code Enforcement Activity12/04/20

NOVEMBER 2020

11/03/2020 12/07/2020ENF 20-0917 LETTER SENT 11/03/2020117 W EXCHANGE ST COMPLAINT LOGGED COMM

Total Entries 2

Total Records: 128 Total Pages: 8



NOVEMBER 2020Monthly Inspection List

BOOTH, MARK MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 14

FREEMAN, GREG CODE ENFORCEMENT

Total Inspections: 111

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR

Total Inspections: 15

HISSONG, BRAD BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 60

Report Summary

Grand Total Inspections: 200

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



 
 

OWOSSO PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 

202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 
  
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   1 December 2020   
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Eric E. Cherry 
 Police Department Lieutenant 
  
RE:   November 2020 Police Reports 
 
 
 
 Attached are the statistics for the Police Department for November 2020.  One 
report is an offense summary for the month of November, by offense type.  The other 
report, neighborhood crime report, lists the occurred on date, case number, location, 
and the complaint type for reports in November.  The officers completed two hundred 
eighty-two (282) field interviews this month, which are calls were a full criminal report is 
not needed.  Your Owosso Police Officers arrested twenty-eight (28) persons this month 
for thirty-seven (37) total offenses. 
 
 For November 2020 the police handled five hundred eighteen (518) police 
events, forty-seven (47) were traffic stops, about one (1) percent of their work activity. 
 
 On the following page are two (2) pie charts one showing calls handled by 
Owosso City Police District, there are five (5) districts within the City of Owosso.  The 
second pie chart is calls throughout the county handled by agency. 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully, 
 
 
 

Lt. Eric E. Cherry

 
 
 

 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



 BELOW IS A BREAKDOWN OF POLICE EVENTS HANDLED BY OWOSSO POLICE, BY DISTRICT 

 
OD1:  Owosso City District 1 (northwest, north of M-21 and west of M-52) 
OD2:  Owosso City District 2 (northeast, north of M-21 and east of M-52) 

OD3:  Owosso City District 3 (southwest, south of M-21 and west of M-52) 
OD4:  Owosso City District 4 (southeast, south of M-21 and east of M-52, excluding business district and police office) 

ODB:  Owosso City Downtown Business District 
D1:  Shiawassee County northwest district (west of M-52 and north of Hibbard Road) 
D3:  Shiawassee County northeast district (east of M-52 and north of Hibbard Road) 

Others:  Included City of Corunna’s 3 districts and any other area officer’s responded. 
BELOW IS A BREAKDOWN OF EVENTS HANDLED BY AGENCY 

 
SCSD:  Shiawassee County Sheriff’s Office          DUPD:  Durand City Police SCFD:  Shiawassee County Fire Departments 
PEPD:  Perry City Police   LAPD:  Laingsburg City Police SCAC:  Shiawassee County Animal Control 

Others: All Other Departments         SP35: Michigan State Police Post #35  OWPD:  Owosso City Police 
SCAS:  Shiawassee County Ambulance Services COPD:  Corunna City Police 911:  Shiawassee County 911 Center 

MOPD: Morrice City Police 



 
NOVEMBER NEIGHBORHOOD CRIME REPORT 
 
 

Occurred 
Date 

Case No Location Offense 

11/1/2020 2064501454 800 block Corunna Ave AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/2/2020 2064501456 200 block S Chipman St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/5/2020 2064501477 900 block S Glenwood Ave AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/17/2020 2064501532 700 block S Isham St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/23/2020 2064501558 600 block N Shiawassee St  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/23/2020 2064501558 600 block N Shiawassee St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/29/2020 2064501581 1400 block W Cleveland St AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 
11/4/2020 2064501470 600 block Frazier St CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 
11/17/2020 2064501528 1200 block Penbrook Dr  CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 
11/21/2020 2064501551 700 block S Alger St CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 
11/25/2020 2064501572 1000 block N Washington St CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 
11/28/2020 2064501578 600 block S Oakwood Ave CIVIL CUSTODIES - INCAPACITATION 
11/5/2020 2064501474 1300 block W Mack St CIVIL CUSTODIES - INSANITY (MENTAL) 
11/3/2020 2064501466 1200 block Penbrook Dr  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/4/2020 2064501469 1200 block Penbrook Dr DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/4/2020 2064501465 600 block N Shiawassee St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/4/2020 2064501468 1200 block Penbrook Dr  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/8/2020 2064501497 1300 block W Chatham St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/13/2020 2064501518 800 block W River St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/13/2020 2064501519 W Main St/S Lansing St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/21/2020 2064501559 700 block S Lingle Ave DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/24/2020 2064501568 1000 block N Saginaw St DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 
11/1/2020 2064501450 200 block E Goodhue St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/5/2020 2064501479 1200 block S Shiawassee St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/7/2020 2064501484 700 block N Washington St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/7/2020 2064501484 700 block N Washington St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/12/2020 2064501514 Cass St/S Shiawassee St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/13/2020 2064501515 900 block W Main St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/17/2020 2064501530 500 block E Oliver St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/22/2020 2064501552 1000 block S State St DISORDERLY CONDUCT 
11/6/2020 2064501487 500 block W Ament St EXTORTION 
11/4/2020 2064501471 600 block S Glenwood Ave FAMILY -OTHER 
11/8/2020 2064501503 800 block Krust Dr FRAUD -FALSE 

PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 
11/8/2020 2064501508 700 block E Exchange St FRAUD -FALSE 

PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 



11/15/2020 2064501527 1400 block W Penbroke Dr FRAUD -FALSE 
PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 

11/24/2020 2064501567 700 block N Hickory St FRAUD -FALSE 
PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 

11/25/2020 2064501569 W King St/N Hickory St HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 
11/8/2020 2064501495 400 block W Genesee St IMMIGRATION 
11/8/2020 2064501494 600 block S Washington St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/9/2020 2064501501 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/10/2020 2064501504 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/18/2020 2064501533 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/19/2020 2064501537 400 block S Oakwood St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/22/2020 2064501554 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - LOST AND 

FOUND PROP 
11/3/2020 2064501475 1100 block S Shiawassee St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 

SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 
11/8/2020 2064501493 1400 block W Stewart St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 

SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 
11/18/2020 2064501534 200 block S Water St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 

SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 
11/19/2020 2064501541 700 block S Chipman St INSPECTIONS/INVESTIGATIONS - 

SUSPICIOUS SITUATIONS 
11/1/2020 2064501454 800 block Corunna Ave JUVENILE RUNAWAY 
11/2/2020 2064501456 200 block S Chipman St KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 
11/7/2020 2064501486 400 block S Chipman St LARCENY -OTHER 
11/19/2020 2064501535 600 block W Fletcher St LARCENY -OTHER 
11/17/2020 2064501544 1600 block W South St LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 
11/29/2020 2064501582 1200 block W Penbrook Dr LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 
11/20/2020 2064501545 200 block S Oak St LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 
11/9/2020 2064501505 800 block E King St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO EMS 
11/1/2020 2064501452 1000 block N Dewey St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO FIRE 

DEPARTMENT 
11/29/2020 2064501579 1300 block W Frederick St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO FIRE 

DEPARTMENT 
11/1/2020 2064501451 500 block E Main St MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO OTHER 

POLICE AGENCY 
11/21/2020 2064501550 2500 block Pennsylvania Ave MISCELLANEOUS - ASSIST TO OTHER 

POLICE AGENCY 
11/11/2020 2064501509 1200 block N Chipman St MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 
11/13/2020 2064501517 400 block N Dimmick St MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 



11/19/2020 2064501536 700 block S Lingle Ave MISCELLANEOUS - NATURAL DEATH 
11/5/2020 2064501481 1200 block S Shiawassee St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 
11/23/2020 2064501560 400 block Howard St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 
11/24/2020 2064501565 1100 block S Washington St MISCELLANEOUS - NON-CRIMINAL 
11/21/2020 2064501549 1300 block S Shiawassee St MISCELLANEOUS - SUICIDE 
11/3/2020 2064501464 1200 block W Main St MOTOR VEHICLE VIOLATION 
11/5/2020 2064501480 800 block N Ball St MOTOR VEHICLE VIOLATION 
11/13/2020 2064501531 1300 block Young St MOTOR VEHICLE VIOLATION 
11/1/2020 2064501457 900 block W Main St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/1/2020 2064501455 500 block E Exchange St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/5/2020 2064501473 300 block N Lansing St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/5/2020 2064501474 1300 block W Mack St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/7/2020 2064501488 500 block E Corunna Ave NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/8/2020 2064501490 900 block W Main St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/9/2020 2064501496 700 block W Stewart St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/9/2020 2064501499 500 block E Comstock St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/9/2020 2064501500 700 block S Chipman St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/12/2020 2064501512 500 block E Mason St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/12/2020 2064501513 1500 block E Industrial Dr NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/14/2020 2064501521 1200 block Penbrook Dr NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/15/2020 2064501526 300 block E Exchange St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/17/2020 2064501529 300 block W Ridge St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/19/2020 2064501538 Lynn St/Robbins St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/20/2020 2064501542 1600 block W South St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/20/2020 2064501543 500 block E Comstock St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/22/2020 2064501555 1300 block S Pearce St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/22/2020 2064501556 600 block W Campbell Dr NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/23/2020 2064501557 300 block S Oakwood Ave NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/23/2020 2064501564 400 block E Main St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/26/2020 2064501573 200 block N Elm St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/26/2020 2064501596 900 block Dingwall Dr NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/26/2020 2064501574 300 block N Cedar St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/27/2020 2064501575 1300 block Henry St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/28/2020 2064501577 400 block W North St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/28/2020 2064501584 Clinton St NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/30/2020 2064501586 700 block S Grand Ave NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 
11/1/2020 2064501453 1400 block E Corunna Ave OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/2/2020 2064501456 200 block S Chipman St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/4/2020 2064501471 600 block S Glenwood Ave OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 



11/9/2020 2064501499 500 block E Comstock St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/10/2020 2064501502 1600 block W South St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/10/2020 2064501506 200 block S Chipman St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/14/2020 2064501523 200 block S Chipman St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/19/2020 2064501540 Lansing St/Main St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/20/2020 2064501543 500 block E Comstock St OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/27/2020 2064501576 100 block S Lansing St  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 
11/2/2020 2064501456 200 block S Chipman St OBSTRUCTING POLICE 
11/8/2020 2064501489 900 block W Main St OBSTRUCTING POLICE 
11/11/2020 2064501511 W M-21/S Delaney Rd OBSTRUCTING POLICE 
11/12/2020 2064501513 1500 block E Industrial Dr OBSTRUCTING POLICE 
11/3/2020 2064501464 1200 block W Main St OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 

LIQUOR OR DRUGS 
11/5/2020 2064501480 800 block N Ball St OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 

LIQUOR OR DRUGS 
11/15/2020 2064501524 600 block E Main St OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 

LIQUOR OR DRUGS 
11/20/2020 2064501546 200 block S Shiawassee St RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 
11/23/2020 2064501563 1000 block S Chipman St TRAFFIC - DRIVER LICENSE LAW 

VIOLATIONS 
11/25/2020 2064501571 N Shiawassee St/W Oliver St TRAFFIC - DRIVER LICENSE LAW 

VIOLATIONS 
11/3/2020 2064501464 1200 block W Main St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/5/2020 2064501480 800 block N Ball St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/6/2020 2064501482 E Main St/S Gould St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/9/2020 2064501498 Oliver St/Oak St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/23/2020 2064501561 S Gould St/E Main St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/23/2020 2064501564 400 block E Main St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/29/2020 2064501583 E Main St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/30/2020 2064501585 400 block W Main St TRAFFIC - DRIVING ON 

SUSP/REVOKED/REFUSED LICENSE 
11/15/2020 2064501524 600 block E Main St TRAFFIC - NO OPERATORS LICENSE 
11/25/2020 2064501569 W King St/N Hickory St TRAFFIC - RECKLESS DRIVING 
11/23/2020 2064501564 400 block E Main St TRAFFIC - REGISTRATION LAW VIOLATIONS 
11/2/2020 2064501441 Main St/Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/2/2020 2064501459 Main St/Dewey St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 



11/3/2020 2064501460 W Main St/S Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/3/2020 2064501462 S Shiawassee St/W Clinton St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/4/2020 2064501472 W King St/N Seventh St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/5/2020 2064501478 Exchange St/Ball St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/6/2020 2064501482 E Main St/S Gould St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/6/2020 2064501483 W Main St/S Chestnut St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/7/2020 2064501485 N Shiawassee St/King St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/8/2020 2064501491 E Comstock St/Hickory St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/11/2020 2064501510 S Palmer St/W Gute St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/13/2020 2064501516 Main St/Water St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/14/2020 2064501522 Shiawassee St/Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/15/2020 2064501524 600 block E Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/15/2020 2064501525 Saginaw St/Goodhue St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/19/2020 2064501539 S Chestnut St/W Stewart St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/21/2020 2064501547 300 block W Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/21/2020 2064501548 100 block W Main St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/23/2020 2064501562 N Shiawassee St/W King St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/23/2020 2064501563 1000 block S Chipman St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/25/2020 2064501570 W Clinton St/S Elm St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/25/2020 2064501571 N Shiawassee St/W Oliver St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - ACCIDENT 
11/2/2020 2064501458 100 block S Howell St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 

ACCIDENT 
11/24/2020 2064501566 600 block S Alger Ave TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 

ACCIDENT 
11/29/2020 2064501580 200 block S Shiawassee St TRAFFIC, NON-CRIMINAL - NON-TRAFFIC 

ACCIDENT 
11/24/2020 2064501568 1000 block N Saginaw St WEAPONS OFFENSE - OTHER 
    

Total 155   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOVEMBER OFFENSE REPORT 
 
Offense Total Offenses 

0301 - 03000 - Illegal Entry 1 

1099 - 10001 - Kidnapping ( Other) 1 

1302 - 13002 - Aggravated/Felonious Assault - Family - Other Weapon 3 

1306 - 13002 - Aggravated/Felonious Assault - Non-Family - Strong Arm 3 

1313 - 13001 - Assault and Battery/Simple Assault 28 

1399 - 13002 - Assault (Other) 1 

2199 - 21000 - Extortion (Other) 1 

2305 - 23005 - Larceny - Personal Property from Vehicle 1 

2308 - 23003 - Larceny - From Building (Includes library, office used by 
public, etc) 

2 

2399 - 23007 - Larceny (Other) 2 

2674 - 26001 - Fraud (Larceny) by Conversion 1 

2699 - 26001 - Fraud (Other) 3 

2901 - 29000 - Damage to Property - Business Property 1 

2902 - 29000 - Damage to Property - Private Property 8 

3073 - 30002 - Retail Fraud Theft 1st Degree 1 

3805 - 38003 - Contribute to Delinquency of Minor (Except Alcohol) 1 

4801 - 48000 - Resisting Officer 3 

4877 - 48000 - Fleeing and Eluding (Felony) 1 

5005 - 50000 - Contempt of Court 1 

5006 - 50000 - Obstructing Justice 2 

5011 - 50000 - Parole Violation 2 

5012 - 50000 - Probation Violation 2 

5070 - 50000 - Violation of Preliminary Injunctive Order (Peace Bond) 3 

5213 - 52003 - Weapons, firing of (includes Careless, Reckless, Heedless 
Use) 

1 

5311 - 53001 - Disorderly Conduct 4 

5312 - 53001 - Disturbing the Peace 3 

5393 - 53001 - Disorderly Conduct (Other) 1 

7070 - 70000 - Runaway 1 

8013 - 54001 - Motor Vehicle Accident - Failed to Report Accident 1 

8028 - 54002 - Operating with Blood Alcohol Content of .08% or more 1 

8041 - 54002 - Operating Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor 2 

8073 - 54003 - Traffic - Reckless Driving 1 

8271 - 54003 - Traffic - No Operators License 1 

8273 - 54003 - Traffic - Driving on Susp/Revoked/Refused License 8 

 



8275 - 54003 - Traffic - Driver License Law Violations 2 

8277 - 54003 - Traffic - Registration Law Violations 1 

8328 - 54003 - Motor Vehicle Violation 3 

9906 - 92002 - Civil Custodies - Incapacitation 5 

9908 - 92004 - Civil Custodies - Insanity (Mental) 1 

9910 - 93001 - Traffic, Non-Criminal - Accident 22 

9911 - 93002 - Traffic, Non-Criminal - Non-Traffic Accident 3 

9943 - 98007 - Inspections/Investigations - Suspicious Situations 4 

9944 - 98008 - Inspections/Investigations - Lost and Found Prop 6 

9946 - 99001 - Miscellaneous - Suicide 1 

9947 - 99002 - Miscellaneous - Natural Death 3 

9954 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to Fire Department 2 

9954 - 99009 - Miscellaneous - Non-Criminal 3 

9955 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to EMS 1 

9956 - 99008 - Miscellaneous - Assist to Other Police Agency 2 

Total 155 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
NOVEMBER DAILY ACTIVITY REPORTS SUMMARY REPORT 
 
Activity Total 

Alarms 11 

Appearance Citations 3 

Assist Another Unit 279 

Business Property Inspections 25 

Community Service 7 

Directed Patrols 204 

Original Arrests 11 

OWI Arrests 1 

Park Patrols 106 

Parking/Municipal Citations Issued 1 

Residential Property Inspections 4 

School Patrols 256 

Supplemental Complaints 39 

Traffic Accidents 19 

Traffic Citations Issued 4 

Traffic Warnings 37 

Training 5 

Warrant Arrests 7 

Written Complaints 384 

Total  Activities 1403 
 

 

 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 301  W.  M AI N    OW OS S O,  MI C HI GA N 4886 7 -29 58   ( 989 )  725 -0599  
     

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   December 15, 2020     
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart   
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   November 2020 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
 
 
Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for November 2020. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 244 incidents in the month of October.  
  
OFD responded to 19 fire calls and responded to 225 EMS calls.  
 
  
 
  
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



Previous Month  Nov 1, 2020  -  Nov 30, 2020 

Nov 2 Nov 4 Nov 6 Nov 8 Nov 10 Nov 12 Nov 14 Nov 16 Nov 18 Nov 20 Nov 22 Nov 24 Nov 26 Nov 28 Nov…

0

2.5

5

7.5

10

12.5

15

Jul '19 Oct '19 Jan '20 Apr '20 Jul '20 Oct '20

Week Ending 11/1/20 11/8/20 11/15/20 11/22/20 11/29/20 12/6/20 12/13/20 12/20/20 12/27/20 1/3/21 1/10/21 1/17/21 1/24/21 Total

(11) Structure
Fire 1 1 2

(14) Natural
vegetation fire 1 1

(30) Rescue,
emergency
medical call
(EMS), other

1 1

(31) Medical
assist 1 1

(32) Emergency
medical
service (EMS)
incident

8 44 63 54 51 5 225

(41)
Combustible/f…
spills & leaks

1 1

(44) Electrical
wiring/equipm…
problem

1 1 2

(46) Accident,
potential
accident

1 1

(53) Smoke,
odor problem 1 1

(55) Public
service
assistance

1 1

(61)
Dispatched
and canceled
en route

1 1 1 3

(62) Wrong
location, no
emergency
found

1 1

(73) System or
detector
malfunction

1 1 1 3

UNK 1 1

Total 11 47 67 60 54 5 244

7%
FIRE
Percentage of Total
Incidents

93%
EMS
Percentage of Total
Incidents

244
INCIDENTS
In Selected Time Slice

30
DAYS
In Selected Time Slice

   Counts % Rows % Columns % All

   
A N A L Y T I C S

Total Record Volume by Incident Type

Page 1 of 2



  Draft 

MINUTES FOR  
REGULAR MEETING 

OWOSSO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
Wednesday, November 18, 2020 6:00 p.m.   

VIA ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING 
 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 6:05 p.m. by Chairman Teich. 
 
ROLL CALL was taken by Recording Staff Liaison, Josh Adams. 
 
PRESENT: Chairman Steven Teich; Commissioner Gary Wilson, Commissioner Matthew Van Epps; 
Commissioner Dianne Acton 
 
ABSENT: Commissioner Scott Newman; Commissioner Lance Omer; Secretary Philip Hathaway 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: Barry Paxton, applicant; Jackie Hoist, applicant’s architect; and Jim 
Woodworth, downtown property owner 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  
 
MOTION FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER WILSON.  MOTION WAS SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER VAN EPPS AS PRESENTED 
 
AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MINUTE APPROVAL:  
 
MOTION FOR APPROVAL BY COMMISSIONER VAN EPPS.  MOTION WAS SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER ACTON AS PRESENTED 
 
AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: None 
  
PUBLIC/COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: Jim Woodworth commented on his building located at 123 N. 
Washington Street (known as the Fifth-Third Building). Mr. Woodworth updated the Commission on 
recent activities associated on the property. He stated that earlier in the year a portion of the marble 
paneling fell off of the upper-level façade. Upon further investigation they discovered that many areas of 
the paneling were buckling and shifting. In addition, mounting brackets were deteriorating. As a result, 
they chose to remove the marble skin completely from the upper-level facades. Mr. Woodworth 
indicated that they spoke with Rob McKay with SHPO about the historic nature of the marble skin, but 
Mr. McKay indicated that the historic brick underneath was more important. Mr. Woodworth informed 
the commission that he is currently getting proposals for the restoration of the historic brick façade 
including the replacement of the historic windows. Mr. Woodworth stated that it is their goal to restore 
the upper-level façade to what it was prior to the marble paneling being installed in the early 1960s. Mr. 
Woodworth stated that they are working with a consultant to find grant funding to help with the 
development of the property, but all cost estimates and design development is in the very early stages.  
 
Committee Reports:  None 
 
Public Hearings:  None 
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



  Draft 

Items of Business: 
  
 1)  Application: 108 E. Exchange Street – Front & Rear Façade Redevelopment 
 
Property owner, Barry Paxton and architect Jackie Hoist presented the application for front and rear 
façade redevelopment at 108 E. Exchange Street.  

The plans for the façade redevelopment are to bring the front façade back to its pre-covered state. The 
removal of the metal paneling has been done. The applications requests to restore the historic brick, 
recreate the 1890 façade.  

Ms. Hoist indicated that historic photographs of the building are extremely rare, and records of the 
façade are limited. They were able to discern many of the architectural features from the buildings of 
the same time period around it. Ms. Hoist also indicate that the portion of the building overhanging the 
alley was constructed post World War II, possibly in the 1950s. As a result, the siding of that portion is 
different. It is proposed that wood, clapboard siding will be installed on that portion of the façade.  Ms. 
Hoist also indicated that the window lintel located on the overhang portion is different than the other 
window lintels due to the timeframe that the addition was building. The differentiation in lintels and 
siding material help prevent the creation of a false sense of history. 

Mr. Paxton also introduced the installation of a new window and door in the rear façade. The window 
and door will be installed in the historic location that openings were located prior to later infill.  

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER WILSON TO ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF APPROAPRIATENESS 
FOR THE FRONT & REAR FAÇADE REDEVELOPMENT 108 E. EXCHANGE STREET, SECONDED 
BY COMMISSIONER ACTON.  

AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
2) Matthews Building – Updates & Discussion 
 
Mr. Adams updated the commission on the work taking place at 300 W. Main Street (Matthews 
Building). Mr. Adams indicated that there was not much to update at this time. He indicated that he is 
still waiting for formal roof reconstruction plans to be provided by the owner to the building department. 
Once plans are received, they will be sent to the commission for review.  
 
Commissioner Van Epps indicated that the HDC’s Demolition by Neglect designation on the property 
should be addressed in our future meetings. Mr. Van Epps indicated that remediation actions could 
take place on the property if they exceed the 90-day deadline issued in the demolition by neglect letter.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 
 
BOARD COMMENTS:  Chairman Teich introduced a new historical designation write-up/decal that he 
has been developing. These decals are historic descriptions of each contributing building that will help 
educate the public and celebrate the historic structures within the district. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER ACTON AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER VAN EPPS TO 
ADJOURN AT 7:03 P.M. 
  
       ____________________________________ 
      Phil Hathaway, Secretary 



 

 

MINUTES 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/MAIN STREET 

 
CITY OF OWOSSO 

DECEMBER 2, 2020 AT 7:30 A.M. 

VIRTUAL MEETING VIA ZOOM VIDEO CONFERENCING 

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by Chairman Dave Acton at 7:44 A.M. 

ROLL CALL: Was taken by Recording Secretary Debbie Hebert 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Dave Acton, Vice-Chairman Bill Gilbert, Commissioner Jon Moore, 
Commissioner Lance Omer, Commissioner Susan Osika, Commissioner Josh Ardelean. 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Commissioner Kenn Cushman 

OTHERS PRESENT: Josh Adams, DDA Director 

AGENDA: IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER MOORE AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY 
MEMBER OSIKA TO AMEND THE AGENDA TO INCLUDE A DISCUSSION ON FUTURE BOARD 
MEMBERS. 

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED.  

FUTURE BOARD MEMBERS DISCUSSION – Director Adams shared that Mayor Eveleth has had 
conversations with 2-3 candidates to fill vacancies.   
 
MINUTES: IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OSIKA AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY 
MEMBER OMER TO APPROVE THE MINUTES AS AMENDED BELOW FOR MEETING HELD  
NOVEMBER 4, 2020. 
 
Amendments: 

1) Chairman Dave Acton’s last name misspelling to be corrected from Action to Acton. 
 
2) Commission Jon Moore’s first name misspelling to be correct from John to Jon. 

 
3) Original: RLF Application (216 W. Main Street) – After review of the manual, there was not a 

requirement to submit request for a grant prior to a project as the reason for the denial.  
 

        Corrected: After review of the manual, there was not a requirement to submit request for a   
        loan/grant prior to a project as the reason for the denial. 
 

4) OMS/DDA & City Financial Responsibility Maintenance List was not attached as noted.  It will be 
attached to the minutes of the meeting held December 2, 2020. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CAFarr
Text Box
This item reprinted from the meeting of December 21, 2020.



 

 

 
Amendments (continued) 
 

5) BOARD COMMENTS:  
 
Original: Chairman Acton wishes for complete transparency in handling all situations.   
Corrected: Chairman Acton wishes for complete transparency in handling all financial situations.    
 
Original: Chairman Acton requested Treasurer Cushman to develop a policy allowing Director 
Adams leeway within a structure for rare, but small issues that occur from time to time for 
maintenance expenses not associated with a work plan. It will be presented as a resolution in a 
near future meeting  
 
Corrected: Chairman Acton requested Treasurer Cushman to develop a Sponsorship Application 
for nonprofits or other entities in the community or thru the DDA to request sponsorship or donated 
dollars from the DDA. 

 

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS:  

1) CHECK REGISTER -   Adams shared the details of the American Speedy Printing invoice received 
late this fall for Shiawassee Safe July Promotional Materials. 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER MOORE TO 
APPROVE THE CHECK REGISTER FOR NOVEMBER, 2020 AS PRESENTED.  

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED.  

2) 2020/2021 Budget Report- Director Adams in response to a question, explained that the Glo Budget 
is currently at $800.  As expenses and income come in, they will be applied against that budget.  If any profit, it 
will returned to Glo to increase their budget to purchase additional supplies for the event.   Other discussion 
occurred on additional fixed costs.   

3) RLF Manual Revision –   Loans and grants cannot to be issued to projects that have either 
started or been completed prior to approval of program application.  
Under Application Process Steps – Item # 11 will be added - The application is then presented to City 
Council for final approval. 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OMER, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OSIKA TO 
APPROVE THE REVISIONS TO THE RLF MANUAL.  

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
4) OMS/DDA Annual Audit 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER MOORE TO 
APPROVE THE ANNUAL AUDIT AS PRESENTED. 

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 



 

 

 

5) 2021/2022 Goals & Objective Approval – The board agreed to continue the FY 2019/2020 that 
were difficult to complete due to Covid constraints into FY 2020/2021.  No Board Retreat will be 
held. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OMER , SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER GILBERT TO 
APPROVE 2021/2022 Goals & Objectives. 
 
AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

6) Woodard Place ( pocket park) – Discussion 
 
Director Adams received calls over Thanksgiving Holiday from Roger Snyder regarding Central 
Pharmacy on W. Exchange Street regarding foundation issues - mortar popping out in the 
basement due to water.  Doug Peterson was contacted to remove dirt.  The leak stopped. The 
water had been going thru the spots where their utilities went into the building. A quote will be 
obtained to backfill and restore to original condition to drain away from wall.  

COMMITTEE UPDATES: 

1) Design and Business Vitality – Reviewed plans/goals for FY20/2021 to refine ideas with additional 
information.  Downtown decorations are looking very nice.  The ladies hired have gone above and 
beyond for the fee that they charge.  All supplies purchased are included in their budget. 
 

2) Promotion & Outreach – Glo Weekend and Small Business Saturday have been held.  Adaptations 
were done to meet Covid restrictions.  Communication issues arose.  Neighborhoods and houses may 
be added in upcoming years.  Glo Run took placed with 134 runners with a phased start .  
Preliminary reports from downtown business owners report sales higher than expected.  Local support 
provided a great boost for them. 
 

3)  Business Owners Committee –   Survey was sent.  Data is still being collected.  To date, only 10 
businesses have responded. from over 100 sent.  Individual messages will be  sent.  
 

BOARD CONTINUING EDUCATION INFORMATION:  
 
Director Adams will be sending the board an updated Directors Report.  A winterization Grant was completed 
from the SBAM for purchasing outdoor igloos and heaters for downtown restaurants.  OMS/DDS did not receive 
that grant. MEDC is offering another round of Covid Response funding. This round will focus restaurants, tourist 
locations, gyms and theaters.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

BOARD COMMENTS: Osika suggests that once grant information received December 15, 2020 from MEDC  
that it be sent to board members to circulate information to downtown businesses.   

Moore shared his family’s enjoyment of the weekend’s activities.  He notes that Owosso does a great job 
showing a true sense of community.  

ADJOURNMENT: IT WAS MOVED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OSIKA AND SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY 
MEMBER  OMER TO ADJOURN AT 9:02 A.M.  

AYES: ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 



Minutes of a meeting – City of Owosso and OMS/DDA representatives – 9-3-20 

Purpose of the meeting: To determine the list of streetscape maintenance items and assign financial 
responsibility for each to either OMS/DDA or the City of Owosso 

Attendees: City Manager Nathan Henne, Mayor Pro Tem and City Council representative to OMS/DDA 
Sue Osika, OMS/DDA Executive Director Josh Adams, DPW Director Mark Mitchell, OMS/DDA Board 
Chair Dave Acton, and OMS/DDA Design Committee Chair Bill Gilbert 

The former list of items needing to be paid for was reviewed and updated. 

What follows is the current list and the agreed upon responsibility. 

 Repair/replace curbs – City 
 Paint pavement per any applicable codes – City 
 Remove/prevent weeds in paver cracks – OMS/DDA 
 Sweep and/or wash sidewalks to keep them free of dirt, debris, leaves, cigarette butts, etc. 

(including power washing to remove stains, gum, paint, etc. as required) – OMS/DDA 
 Machine sweep streets along curbs to remove dirt, debris, leaves, butts, etc. – City 
 All aspects of flower beds and flower containers including plant selection, and the labor to plant, 

weed, clean up after growing season, and water (including the cost of the water) – OMS/DDA 
 Purchase of flower containers – OMS/DDA 
 Tree trimming – City 
 Tree removal and replacement labor – City 
 Tree purchases – OMS/DDA 
 Tree selection – OMS/DDA (ideally in collaboration with Bill Brooks) 
 Sidewalk paver maintenance and repair – City  
 Grass cutting – City 
 Grass weeding and edging – OMS/DDA  

o OMS/DDA will create a specification including a map of what grass and walkways need 
cutting, weeding, and edging 

o The specification will be reviewed, and consensus will be achieved with the City (Mark 
Mitchell) prior to the 2021 growing season (target no later than February 1st, 2021) 

 Light fixture and maintenance (painting, cleaning, repairing) – City 
 Light fixture and maintenance if a licensed electrician must do the work – OMS/DDA 
 Light bulb replacement labor (use only LED’s) – City 
 Light bulb purchase (use only LED’s) – OMS/DDA 
 Wire, connectors, etc. pertaining to the downtown district maintenance only – OMS/DDA 
 Utility plug maintenance (in flower beds, at base of light fixtures, etc.) – OMS/DDA 

OMS/DDA may accomplish their responsibility items with volunteers or contractors or a combination of 
volunteers and contractors, the City may accomplish their responsibility items with City staff or 
contractors or a combination of staff and contractors. 

Submitted by Dave Acton 

 

  


	AGENDA
	Virtual Meeting Notice

	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	Minutes of December 21, 2020

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan Review-North Washington Street
	2. Rezoning Request-210 Monroe Street
	3. Ordinance Amendment-Chapter 34 Utilities & Services-A
	4. Ordinance Amendment-Chapter 34 Utilities & Services-B

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Proposed Special Assessment Project-Glenwood Avenue
	2. Flexible Spending Plan Adoption
	3. Purchase Authorization-WACHS Valve Turner
	4. Purchase Authorization-Sign Truck
	5. Niche Bar and Lounge Traffic Control Order
	6. Warrant 595

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. Emergency Action Support Plan Adoption
	2. Policy Changes-Water Connection & Miscellaneous Water Policies
	3. Pay Increase & Minimum Recommended Pay Range-General City Employees
	4. OHC-CCM Executive Director Contract
	5. Downtown Revolving Loan Fund Standards
	6. Capitol Bowl-Discharge of Mortgage

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. City Manager's Report - December 2020
	2. Building Report-November 2020
	3. Code Enforcement-November 2020
	4. Inspections-November 2020
	5. Police Report-November 2020
	6. Fire/EMS Stats-November 2020
	7. Owosso Historic District Commission-Minutes of November 18, 2020
	8. Downtown Development Authority-Minutes of December 2, 2020

	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT

	Name of individual or group: Niche Bar & Lounge
	Date: 12/28/20
	Name: Pete Yerian
	Title: Owner
	Address 1: 112 N. Washington Street
	Address 2: Owosso, MI 48867
	Phone: 989.413.1207
	Requested Dates: 1/5/21 through 3/1/21
	Requested Hours: the whole duration 
	Area Requested Parking Lot  Parade Route 1: 4 parking spaces in front of business
	Area Requested Parking Lot  Parade Route 2: 
	Detailed description of the use for which the request is made 1: Due to state-wide COVID restrictions Niche
	Detailed description of the use for which the request is made 2: Bar & Lounge would like to use parking spaces for outdoor/shanty seating for patrons. 
	Rules of Participation: Off
	Proof of Insurance: Yes
	Insurance Waiver: Off


